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12thCBSE- ACCOUNTANCY | PAPERSET-1 |  
QUESTIONS - 21 

THE MARKS ARE MENTIONED ON EACH QUESTION 
 

PART – A: ACCOUNTING FOR PARTNERSHIP FIRMS AND COMPANIES 
Q. 1. what is meant by 'issue of debentures as collateral security’?      1 

Q. 2. A partnership deed provides for the payment of interest on capital but there was a loss instead of profits during 

the year 2010-2011. A What rate will the interest on capital be allowed?      1 

Q. 3. Give any one distinction between sacrificing ratio and gaining ratio.     1 

Q. 4. state any one purpose for admitting a new partner in a firm.      1 

Q. 5. What is meant by calls-in-advance?          1 

Q. 6. Give the meaning of 'Reconstitution of a partnership firm.       1 

Q. 7. Sundram Ltd. purchased Furniture for Rs3,00,000 from Ravindram Ltd. Rs1,00,000 were Paid by drawing a 

Promissory Note in favour of Ravindram Ltd. The balance was paid by issue of Equity Shares of Rs10 each at a 

premium of.25%. Pass necessary journal Entries is the books of Sundram Ltd.  3 

Q. 8. Nav Lakshmi Ltd. invited applications for issuing 3000, 12% Debentures of Rs100 each at a premium of Rs.50 

per Debenture. The full amount was payable on application. Applications were received for 4000 debentures. 

Applications for 1000 debentures were Rejected and application money was refunded. Debentures were allotted to 

the remaining applicants. Pass Journal Entries for the above transactions in the books of Nav Lakshmi Ltd.  

Q.9. Lalan and Balan were partners in a firm sharing profits in the ratio of 3: 2 Their fixed capitals on 1-4-2010 were: 

Lalan Rs1,00,000 and Balan Rs2,00,000. They allow agreed to interest-on capital @ 12% per annum and to charge on 

drawings @ 15% per annum. The firm earned a profit, before all above adjustments, of Rs30,000 for the year ended 

31-3-2011. The drawing of Lalan and Balan during the year were Rs3,000 and Rs5,000 respectively. Showing your 

calculations, clearly prepare Profit and toss Appropriation A/c of Lalan and Balan. The interest on capital will be 

allowed even if the firm incurs a loss.          4 

Q.10. A, B, C and Dare partners sharing profits in the ratio of 3:3:2:2 respectively. D retires and A, B, and C decide to 

share the future profits in the ratio of 3 :2: 1. Goodwill of the firm is valued at t 6,00,000. Goodwill already appears in 

the books at Rs4,50,000. The profits for the first year after D's retirement amount to Rs2,00,000. Give the necessary 

Journal Entries to record Goodwill and to distribute the profits. show your calculations clearly.   4 

Q. 11. On 1st April, 2012, Vishwas Ltd. Was formed with an authorized capital of Rs.10,00,000 divided into 1,00,000 

equity shares of Rs 10 each. The company issued prospectus inviting application for 90,000 equity shares. The 

Company received applications for 85,000 equity shares. The 1st year, Rs 8 per share were called. Ram holding 1,000 

shares & shyam holding 2,000 shares did not pay first call of Rs2 per share. Shyam’s shares were after the first call & 

later on 1,500 of the forfeited shares were re-issued at Rs6 per share, Rs8 called up.     4 

Show the following: 

(a) Share Capital in Balance Sheet of company as per revised Schedule VI, part-I of the Companies Act,1956. 

(b) Also prepare 'Notes to Accounts, for the same. 
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Q. 12. Kailash Ltd. Issued 1000; 10% debentures of Rs.100 each at a premium of 5% on 1st Jan’12. The terms of issue 

provided that Rs. 25,000 debentures of 5% on every year commencing from the end of 2012 elther by purchase or by 

drawing atpar at the option of the company. At the end of the year 2012, the companypurchased debentures or face 

value Rs. 7,000 Rs.95 per debenture and Rs 10000 atRs96 per debenture. The expenses amounted to Rs.300. 

Journalise these transactions ignoring payment of Interest.        4 

Q. 13. Sanjay and Sameer were partners in a firm sharing profits in the ratio of 2:3. On31-3-2011, thelr Balance Sheet 

was as follows:            6 

Balance Sheet of Sanjay and Sameer as on 31-3-2011 

 

 

 

 

 

The firm was dissolved on 1-4-2011 and the Assets and Liabilities were settled asfollows: 

(1) Sanjay agreed to take over Land and Building at Rs3,50,000 by paying cash: 

(2) Stock was sold for Rs 90,000. 

(3) Creditors accepted Debtors in full settlement of their claim. 

Pass necessary Journal Entries for dissolution of the firm. 

Q.14. Atal and Madan were partners in a firm sharing profits in the ratio of 5 : 3. On 31st Mar, 2011, they admitted 

Mehra as a new partner for 1/5th share in the profits. The New profit sharing ratio was 5 : 3 : 2. On Mehra’s 

admission the Balance Sheet of the firm was as follows:        8 

 

 

 

 

On Mehra’s admission it was agreed that 

(i) Mehra will bring Rs. 40,000 as his capital and Rs. 16000 for his share of Goodwill premium, half of which was 

withdrawn by Atal and Madan; 

(ii) A provision of 2½ bad and doubtful debts was to be created; 

(iii) Included in the sundry creditors was an item of Rs. 2500 which was not be paid; 

(iv) A provision was to be made for an outstanding bill for electricity Rs. 3000; 

(v) A claim of Rs. 325 for damages against the firm was likely to be admitted. Provision for the same was to be made. 

After the above adjustments, the Capitals of Atal and Madan were to be adjusted on the Basis  of Mehra’s Capital. 

Actual cash was to be brought on or to be paid off to Atal and Madan as the case may be. 

Prepare Revaluation A/c, Capital A/c of the partners and The Balance Sheet of the New Firm. 

Q. 15. Khanna, Seth and Mehta were partners in afirm sharing profits in the ratio 3 : 2 : 5. On 31-12-10 the Balance 

sheet of Khanna, Seth and Mehta was as follows: 
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On 14th March, 2011, Seth Died. 

The Partnership deed provided that on the death of a partner the executor of the deceased partner is entitled to: 

(i) Balance In Capital A/c; 

(ii) Share in profits up to the date of death on the basis of last year’s profit; 

(iii) His share in profit/ loss on revlaution of assets and re-assessment of liablities which were as follows; 

(a) Land and Building was to be appreciated by Rs. 1,20,000; 

(b) Machinery was to be deprciated to Rs. 1,38,000 and stock to Rs. 25,000; 

(iv) The net amt. payable to Seth’s executors was  transferred to his laon a/c which was to be paid later; 

Prepare Revaluation A/c, partner’s Capital A/c, Seth’s Executors A/c and the Balance Sheet of Khanna and Mehta 

who decided to continue the business keeping their Capital balances in their new profit sharing ratio. Any Surplus or 

deficit to be transferred to current a/c of the partners. 

PART – B: ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Q.16. State the significance of analysis of financial statements to, Top Management. 1 mark 

Q.17. What is the objective of preparing a Cash Flow statement? 1 mark 

Q.18. While preparing cash flow statement, what type of activity is payment of cash to acquire shares of another 

company by a trading company'? 1 mark 

Q.19. X Ltd' has a current ratio of 3: land quick ratio of 2:1. If the excess of current assets over quick assets as 

represented by stock is Rs40,000, calculate. current assets and current liabilities. 3 marks 

Q. 20. From the following information, calculate any two of the following ratios: 4 marks 

(a) Debt-Equity Ratio; (b) Working Capital Turnover Ratio; (c) Return on investment. Information: Equity Share 

Capital Rs10,00,000, General Reserve Rs1,00,000; profit after Tax and Interest Rs3,00,00 12% Debentures 

Rs4,00,000; Creditors Rs3,00,000; Land and Building Rs13,00,000; 

Furniture Rs3,00,000; Debtors Rs2,90,000; Cash Rs1,10,000 and Preliminary expenses Rs 1,00,000. Sales for the year 

ended 31-3-2011 was Rs3,00,000 and Tax paid 50%. 
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12th CBSE- ACCOUNTANCY | PAPERSET-2 | 

QUESTIONS - 25 
THE MARKS ARE MENTIONED ON EACH QUESTION 

 
PART - A: ACCOUNTING FOR PARTNERSHIP FIRMS AND COMPANIES 

Q. 1. If the Partners' Capitals are fixed, where will you record the interest charged on drawings?    1 

Q.2. State the ratio in which the partners share the accumulated profits when there is a change in the profit sharing 

ratio amongst existing partners.           1 

Q. 3. At what rate is interest payable on the amount remaining unpaid to the executor of deceased partner?  1  

Q.4. Give the Journal entry to distribute 'Workmen Compensation Reserve' of Rs70,000 at the time of retirement of 

Neeti when there is a claim of Rs25,000 against it. The firm has three partners Raveena, Neeti and Raiat.   1 

Q.5. What is meant by 'Calls-in-Arrears’?          1  

Q. 6. At what rate is interest paid by the company on calls-in-advance, if it has not prepared its Own Articles of 

Association?              1 

Q. 7. what is meant by 'issue of debentures as collateral security’?       1 

Q. 8. Mohan, Neeraj and Peeyush are partners in a firm. They contributed Rs75,000 each ascapital three years ago. 

At that time Peeyush agreed to look after the business as Mohan and Neeraj were busy. The profits for the past 

three years were Rs45,000, Rs30,000 and respectively. Rs60,000 While going through the books of accounts. Mohan 

noticed that profit had been distributed in 1: 1: 2 ratio. When he enquired from Peeyush about this, peeyusi 

answered that since he looked after the business he should get more profit. Mohan disagreed and it was decided to 

distributed profits equally with retrospective effect for the last three years.     3 

(a) You have to make corrections in books of accounts of Mohan, Neeraj & Peeyush bypassing an adjustment entry. 

(b) Identify the value which is being ignored by peeyush.         

Q. 9. Pass the necessary Journal entries for the issue of 7% Debentures in the following cases:    3  

(a) 200 Debentures of Rs150 each issued at l0% premium redeemable at Rs200 each. 

(b) 200 Debentures of Rs200 each issued at a discount of l0% redeemable at par. 

Q. 10. Tuteja Constructions Ltd. had an outstanding balance of Rs1,26,00,000,9% debentures of Rs200 each 

redeemable at a premium of 3%. According to the terms of redemption, the company redeemed 50% of the above 

debentures by converting them into shares of Rs10 each at a discount of l0%. Record the entries for redemption of 

Debentures in the books of Tuteja Constructions Ltd.         3  

Q. 11. Asin and Shreyas are partners in a firm. They admit Ajay as a new partner with 1/5th Share in the profits of the 

firm. Ajay brings Rs5,00,000ashisshareof capital. The value of the total assets of the firm was Rs15,00,000 and 

outside liabilities were valued at Rs5,00,000 on that date. Give the necessary Journal entry to record goodwill at the 

time of Ajay's admission. Also show your workings.         4 

Q.12. Nikhil Ltd. purchased-a running business from Sonia Ltd. fora sum of Rs22,00,000 by issuing 20,000 fully paid 

equity shares of Rs100 each at a premium of 10%. The assets and liabilities consisted of the following:  4 

Machinery Rs7,00,000, Debtors Rs2,50,000, Stock Rs5,00,000, Building Rs11,50,000 and Bills Payable Rs2,50,000. 

Pass necessary Journal entries in the books of Nikhil Ltd. for the above transactions.  
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Q. 13. Nandan, John and Rosa are partners sharing profits in the ratio of. 4:3: 2. On 1stApril, 2012, john gave a notice 

to retire from the firm. Nandan and Rosa decided to share future profits in the ratio of 1: 1. The capital accounts of 

Nandan and Rosa after all adjustments showed a balance of Rs43,000, and Rs80,500 respectively. The total amount 

to be paid to john was Rs95,500. This amount was to be paid by Nandan and Rosa in such a way that their capitals 

become proportionate to their new profit sharing ratio. Pass necessary journal entries in the books of the firm for 

the above transactions. Show your working clearly.         4 

Q. 14. The authorised capital of Suhas Ltd. is Rs50,00,000 divided into 25,000 shares of Rs200 each. Out of these, the 

company issued 12,000 shares of Rs200 each at a premium of 10%. The amount per share was payable as follows: 

Rs50 on applicationRs60 on allotment (including premium) 

Rs30 on first call andbalance on final call, Public applied for 11,000 shares. All the money was duly received.  

Prepare an extract of Balance sheet of suhas Ltd. as per Revised schedule III of the companies Act 2013 disclosing the 

above information. Also prepare ‘Notes to accounts’ for the same.       4 

Q. 15. Ahmad, Bheem and Daniel are partners in a firm. on 1st April 201l the balance intheir capital accounts stood 

at Rs.8,00,000, Rs6,00,000 and Rs4,00,000 respectively. They shared profits in the proportion of 5: 3:2 respectively. 

Partners are entitled to interest on capital @5% per annum and salary to Bheem @ Rs3,000 per month and a 

commission of Rs12,000 to Daniel as per the provisions of the partnership deed. Ahmad's share of profit, excluding 

interest on capital, is guaranteed at not less than Rs25,000 p.a. Bheem's share of profit, including interest on. Capital 

but excluding salary, is guaranteed at not less than Rs55,000 p.a. Any deficiency arising on that account shall be 

metby Daniel. The profits of the firm for the year-ended 31st March 2012 amounted to Rs2,16,000. Prepare ‘profit 

and Loss Appropriation Account' for the year ended 31st March 2012.       6 

Q.16. The Balance Sheet of Sindhu, Rahul and Kamlesh, who were sharing profits in the ratio of 3: 3: 4 respectively, 

as on 31st March’2012was as follows: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Sindhu died on 31st July 2012. The Partnership Deed provided for the following on the death of a partner: 

(a) Goodwill of firm be valued at two years 'purchase of average profits for the last three years which were Rs80,000. 

(b) Sindhu's share of profit till the date of his death was to be calculated on the basis of sales. Sales for the year 

ended 31st March 2012 amounted to Rs8,00,000 and that from 1st April to 3lst July 2012 Rs3,00,000. The profit for 

the year ended 31stMarch 2012 was Rs2,00,000. 

(c) Interest on Capital was to be provided @ 6% p.a. 

(d) According to Sindhu's will, the executors should donate his share to ‘Matri Chaya – an orphanage for girls'. 

Prepare Sindhu's Capital A/c to be rendered to his executor. Also identify the value being highlighted in the question. 
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Q. 17. Starplus Company issued for public subscription 1,50,000 shares of the value of 

Rs100 each at a discount of 10o/o payable per share as follows: 

Rs20 on application, Rs30 on allotment and Rs40 on call. 

The company received applications for 3,00,000 shares. The allotment was done as under: 

(a) Applicants of 30,000 shares were allotted 10,000 shares. 

(b) Applicants of 1,40,000 shares were allotted 80,000 shares. 

(c) Remaining applicants were allotted 50,000 shares. 

After adjusting excess money in allotment, the money was returned. Harit, a shareholder who had applied for 7,000 

shares of group (b), failed to pay allotment and call money. Roshan, another shareholder who was allotted 6,000 

shares, paid the call money along with the allotment. Roshan also belonged to group (b). 

Pass necessary journal entries to record the above transactions in the books of the company. Show your working 

notes clearly.              8  

OR. 

Record the Journal entries for forfeiture and reissue in the following cases: 

(a) X Ltd. forfeited 200 shares of Rs100 each, Rs70 called up, on which the shareholders had paid application and 

allotment money of Rs50 per share. Out of these, 150 shares were re-issued to Naresh as Rs70 paid up for Rs80 per 

share. 

(b) Y Ltd. forfeited l80 shares of Rs10each, Rs8 called up, issued at a premium of Rs2 per share to R for non-payment 

of allotment money of Rs5 per share (including premium). Out of these, 160 shares were re-issued to Sanjay as Rs8 

called up for Rs10 per share fully paid up. 

Z Ltd. forfeited 30 shares of Rs100 each issued at a discount of Rs10 per share for nonpayment of first and final call 

money of Rs30 per share. Out of these, 20 shares were reissued at Rs30 per share fully paid up. 

Q. 18. Sarthak and Vansh are partners sharing profits in the ratio of 2: 1. Since both of them are specially abled 

sometimes they find it difficult to run the business on their own. Mansi, a common friend, decides to help them. 

Therefore they admit her intopartnership for 1/3rd share in profits. She brings Rs50,000 for goodwill 

andproportionate capital.  

At the time of admission of Mansi, the Balance Sheet ofSarthak and Vansh was as under: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

It was decided to 

(i) Reduce the value of Stock by Rs10,000. 

(ii) Plant is to be valued at Rs80,000. 

(iii) An amount of Rs3,000 included in Creditors was not payable. 
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(iv) Half of the Investments were taken over by Sarthak and remaining were valued at 25,000. Prepare Revaluation 

Account, Partners' Capital Accounts and Balance Sheet of reconstituted firm. Identify the value being conveyed in 

the question.              8 

OR 

Q.18. Prashant and Rajesh were partners in a firm sharing profits in the ratio of 3: 2. In spite of repeated reminders 

by the authorities, they kept dumping hazardous material into a nearby river. The court ordered for the dissolution 

of their partnership firm on 3lst March 2012. Prashant was deputed to realize the assets and to pay the liabilities. He 

was paid Rs1,000 as commission for his services. The financial position of the firm on 3lst March 2012was as follow: 

Balance Sheet as on 31st March 2012 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Following was agreed upon: 

(i) Prashant agreed to pay off his wife's loan. 

(ii) Debtors realized Rs24,000. 

(iii) Rajesh took away all investments at Rs27,000. 

(iv Building realized Rs1,52,000. 

(v) Creditors were payable after 2 months. They were paid immediately at 10% discount. 

(vi) Bills Receivable were settled at a loss of Rs1,400. 

(vii) Realizations expenses amounted to Rs2,500. 

Prepare Realizations Account Partners' Capital Accounts and Cash Account to close the books of the firm. Identify the 

value being conveyed in the question. 

PART - B: FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ANALYSIS 

Q. 19. Under which type of activity will you classify 'Commission and Royalty Received' while preparing Cash Flow 

Statement? 1 marks 

Q. 20. Give an example of the activity which remains financing activity for every enterprise. 1 marks 

Q. 21. State any one limitation of financial statements analysis. 1 marks 

Q. 22. Under what heads and sub-heads will the following items appear in the BalanceSheet of a company, as per 

Revised Schedule VI Part I of the Companies Act 1956: 3 Marks 

(i) Debentures;    (ii) Loose tools;     (iii) Calls-in-advance. 

Q. 23. Compute 'Debtors Turnover Ratio' from the following information: Total Sales Rs5,20,000, Cash Sales 50% of 

the Credit Sales, Closing Debtors Rs80,000, Opening Debtors are 3/4th of Closing Debtors. 
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(b) Current liabilities of a company are Rs1,60,000. Its Liquid ratio is 1.5: l and Current ratio is 2.5: 1. Calculate Quick 

assets and Current assets.            4  

Q. 24. From the following statement of Profit and Loss of Moon track Ltd., for the years ended 31st March 2011 and 

2012, prepare a 'Comparative statement of profit and Loss.        4  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Q. 25. Following are the Balance Sheets of krishtec Ltd. For the year ended 31st March 2011 and 2012: 

 

 

 

 

Prepare a Cash Flow Statement after taking into account the following adjustments: 

(a) The company paid interest  35,000 on its long-term borrowings. 

(b) Depreciation charged on tangible fixed assets was Rs. 1,20,000. 6 marks 
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12th CBSE- ACCOUNTANCY | PAPERSET-3 | 

QUESTIONS - 25 
THE MARKS ARE MENTIONED ON EACH QUESTION 

PART – A: ACCOUNTING FORPARTNERSHIP FIRMS AND COMPANIES 
Q. 1. X, Y and Z were partners sharing profits in the ratio of ½, 3/10, 1/10. X retired from the from the firm. 

Calculate the raining ratio of remaining partners.         1  

Q. 2. State the rights acquired by a newly admitted partner.        1  

Q. 3. Distinguish between' Dissolution of Partnership' and 'Dissolution of Partnership firm' on the basis of Court's 

intervention.              1 

Q. 4. Give the meaning of 'Reconstitution of a partnership firm.        1 

Q. 5. D Ltd. invited applications for issuing 10,00,000 equity shares of Rs10 each. The public applied for 8,55,000 

shares. Can the company proceed for the allotment of shares? Give reason in support of your answer.   1  

Q. 6. A Ltd. forfeited 100 equity shares Rs10 each issued at a premium of 21% for the non-payment of final call of Rs5 

including premium, State the maximum amount of discount at which these shares can be re-issued.   1 

Q. 7. what is meant by issue of debentures as collateral security?       1  

Q. 8. Hemant and Nishant were partners in a firm sharing profits in the ratio of 3: 2. Their capitals were Rs1.60,000 

and Rs1,00,000 respectively. They admitted Somesh on 1stApril, 2013 as a new partner for 1/5thshare. In the future 

profits. Somesh brought  Rs1,20,000 as his capital. Calculate the-value of goodwill of the firm and record necessary 

journal entries for the above transactions.          3  

Q. 9. Tata Ltd. issued 5,000,10% debentures of Rs100 each on 1st April, 2012. The issue    was fully subscribed. 

According to the terms of issue, interest on debentures is payable half-yearly on 30th September and 31stMarch and 

the tax deducted at source is 10%. Pass the necessary journal entries related to the debenture interest for the half-

yearly ending on 31stMarch, 2013 and transfer of interest on debentures of Statement of Profit & Loss.   3  

Q. 10. On 1stApril, 2014, Z Ltd. had 1,000, 12% Debentures of Rs100 each. Interest on debentures is payable half 

yearly on 30th June and on 3st December. On 1st July 2014, the company purchased 300 Own Debentures at Rs 93 for 

the investment purpose and sold the same @ Rs99 after few months.       3 

Record the necessary journal entries on date of purchase and sale.  

Q. 11. Singh and Gupta decided to start a partnership firm to manufacture low cost jute bags as plastic bags were 

creating many environmental problems. They constituted capitals of Rs1,00,000 and Rs50,000 on 1st April, 2012 for 

this. Singh expressed his willingness to admit Shakti as a partner without capital, who is specially abled but a very 

creative and intelligent friend of his. Gupta agreed to this. The terms of partnership were as follows:  

(i) Singh, Gupta and Shakti will share profits in the ratio of 2 :2: 1. 

(ii) Interest on capital will be provided @ 60% p.a. Due to shortage of capital, Singh contributed Rs 25,000 on 30th  

September, 2012 and Gupta contributed Rs10,000 on 1stJanuary, 2013 as additional capital. The profit of the firm for 

the year ended 31st March, 2013 was Rs1,58,900. 

(a) Identify any two values which the firm wants to communicate to the society. 

(b) Prepare Profit &Loss Appropriation Account for the year ending 31st March,2013.     4  
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Q. 12. Monika, Sonika and Manisha were partners in a firm sharing profits in the ratio of 2:2: 1 respectively. on 

31stMarch, 2013 their Balance sheet was as under:        4 

Balance Sheet as on 31stMarch,2013 

 

 

 

 

 

Sonika died on 30thJune, 2013. It was agreed between her executors and the remaining partners that: 

(a) Goodwill of the firm be valued at 3 years' purchase of average profits for the last four years. The average profits 

were Rs2,00,000. 

(b) Interest on capital be provided at 12% p.a. 

(c) Her share in the profits up to the date of death will be calculated on the basis of average profits for the last 4 yrs. 

Prepare Sonika's Capital Account as on 30thJune, 2013.  

Q.13. On 1st April, 2012, Vishwas Ltd. Was formed with an authorized capital of Rs.10,00,000 divided into 1,00,000 

equity shares of Rs 10 each. The company issued prospectus inviting application for 90,000 equity shares. The 

Company received applications for 85,000 equity shares. During the first year, Rs 8 per share were called.  4 

Ram holding 1,000 shares and shyam holding 2,000 shares did not pay first call of Rs2 per share. Shyam’s shares 

were after the first call and later on 1,500 of the forfeited shares were re-issued at Rs6 per share, Rs8 called up.  

Show the following: 

(a) Share Capital in Balance Sheet of company as per revised Schedule VI, part-I of the Companies Act,1956.  

(b) Also prepare 'Notes to Accounts, for the same. 

Q.14. Pass necessary journal entries for the following transactions in the books of Gopal Ltd: 4 marks 

(i) Purchased furniture 4 for Rs2,50,000 from M/s Furniture Mart. The payment to M/s Furniture Mart was made by 

issuing equity shares of t 10 each at a premium of 25%. 

(ii) Purchased a running business from Aman Ltd. for t a sum of Rs15,00,000. The payment of Rs12,00,000 was made 

by issue of fully paid equity shares of Rs10 each and balance by a bank draft. The assets and liabilities consisted of 

the following: 

Plant Rs3,50,000; stock Rs4,50,000; Land and Building Rs6,00,000; sundry Creditors Rs1,00,000. 

Q. 15. Seema, Thnuja and Tripti were partners in a firm trading garments. They were sharing profits in the ratio of 5: 

3 : 2.Their capitals on 1st April, 2012 were Rs3,00,000; Rs 4,00,000 and Rs8,00,000 respectively. After the flood in 

Uttarakhand, ail partners decided to help tire flood victims personally. For this Seema withdrew Rs 20,000 from the 

firm on 15thSeptember, 2012. Tanuja instead of withdrawing cash, from the firm took garments amounting to 

Rs24,000 from the firm and distributed those to the flood victims. On the other hand, Tripti withdrew Rs2,00,000 

from her capital on 1st January,2013 and provided a mobile medical van in the flood affected area.   6 

The partnership deed provides for charging interest on drawing s @ 6% p.a. After the final accounts were prepared it 

was discovered that interest on drawings had not been charged. Give the necessary adjusting journal entry and show 

the working notes clearly. Also state any two values which the partners wanted to communicate to the society. 
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Q. 16. Hanif and jubed were partners in a firm: sharing profits in the ratio of their capitals. On 31stMarch, 2013 their 

Balance Sheet was as follows:           6 

Balance Sheet of Hanif and jubed as on 31stMarch, 2013 

 

 

 

 

 

 

On the above date the firm was dissolved:  

(i) Debtors were realised at a discount of 5%" 50% of the stock was taken over by Hanif at 10% less than the book 

value. Remaining stock was sold for Rs65,000. 

(ii)  Furniture was taken over by jubed for Rs1,35,000. Machinery was sold as scrap for Rs74,000. 

(iii) Creditors were paid in full. 

(iv) Expenses on realisation Rs8,000 were paid by Hanif. 

Prepare Realisation Account. 

Q. 17. X Ltd. invited applications for issuing 75,000 equity' shares of Rs10 each at a premium of Rs5 per share. The 

amount was payable as follows:  

On application and allotment – Rs9 per share (including premium) 

On first and final call - the balance amount 

Applications for 3,00,000 shares were received. Applications for 2,00,000 shares were rejected and money refunded. 

Shares were allotted on pro-rata basis to the remaining applicants. The first and final call was made. The amount was 

duly received except on 1,500 shares by applied Ravi. His shares were forfeited. The forfeited shares were re – issued 

at a discount of Rs4 per share. Pass necessary journal entries for tire above transactions in the books of X Ltd.  8 

Q.18. Y Ltd. invited applications for issuing 80,000 equity shares of Rs10 each at a discount of 10%. The amount was 

payable as follows: 

On application and allotment Rs6 per share   

On first and final call - the balance amount. 

Applications for 2,00,000 shares were received. Applications for 40,000 shares were rejected and money refunded. 

Shares were allotted on pro-rata basis to the remaining applicants. Excess application money received on application 

and allotment in case of Pro-rata allotment was also referred. The first and final call was made. All money was 

received except on 1,600 shares applied by Rohan. His shares were forfeited. The forfeited shares were re-issued at 

the maximum discount permissible under the law.  

Pass necessary journal entries for the above transactions in the books of Y Ltd.      8 
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PART – B: ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Q. 19. What is meant by' Cash Flow Statement?         1  

Q. 20. Why is separate disclosure of cash flow from investing important while preparing Cash Flow Statement?  1  

Q. 21. State any one objective of financial statements analysis. 1 mark  

Q. 22. Under which sub-headings will the following items be placed in the Balance Sheet of a company as per revised 

schedule-III, Part-I of the Companies Act, 2013: 3  marks  

(i) Capitals Reserves (ii) Bond (iii) Loans repayable on demand   

(iv) Vehicles  (v) Goodwill       (vi) Loose tools.  

Q 23. From the following Statement of Profit & Loss of Fenox Ltd. for the year ended 31stMarch, 2013, prepare a 

Comparative Statement of Profit & Loss; 4 marks  

 

 

 

Rate of income tax was 40%  

Q.24. (a) The quick ratio of a company is 1.5: 1. State with reason which of the following transactions would  

(i) increase;    (ii) decrease or     (iii) not change the ratio:   

(1) Paid rent Rs3,000 in advance. 4 marks 

(2) Trade receivables included a debtor Shri Ashok who paid his entire amount due Rs.9,700. 

(b) From the following information compute 'Proprietary Ratio':  

   Rs       Rs 

Long-Term Borrowings 2,00,000   Long-Term Provisions     1,00,000 

Current Liabilities      50,000    Non-Current Assets      3,60,000 

Current Assets     90,000 

Q. 25. Prepare a Cash Flow Statement on the basis of the information given in the Balance Sheet of Simco Ltd. as at 

31-3-2013 and 31-3-2012: 6 marks 
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12th CBSE- ACCOUNTANCY | PAPERSET-4 |  
QUESTIONS - 25 

THE MARKS ARE MENTIONED ON EACH QUESTION 
 

PART – A: ACCOUNTING FORPARTNERSHIP FIRMS AND COMPANIES 
Q.1. In the absence of Partnership Deed, interest on loan of a partner is allowed:     1 

(i) at 8% per annum.       (ii) at 6% per annum. 

(iii) no interest is allowed.     (iv) at 12% per annum.  

Q.2. Geeta, Sunita and Anita were partners in a firm sharing profits in the ratio of 5 : 3 : 2. On 1.1.2015 they admitted 

Yogita as a new partner for V10m share in the profits. On Yogita's admission, the Profit and Loss Account of the firm 

was showing a debit balance of Rs20,000 which was credited by the accountant of the firm to the capital accounts of 

Geeta, Sunita and Anita in their profit sharing ratio. Did the accountant give correct treatment? Give reason in 

support of your answer.            1 

Q.3. On the death of a partner, his share in the profits of the firm till the date of his death is transferred to the:  

(i) Debit of Profit and Loss Account.    (ii) Credit of Profit and Loss Account. 

(iii) Debit of Profit and Loss Suspense Account.   (iv) Cr. of Profit and Loss Suspense Account. 1 mark  

Q.4. Anant, Gulab and Khushbu were partners in a firm sharing profits in the ratio of 5 : 3 : 2. From 1.4.2014, they 

decided to share the profits equally. For this purpose the goodwill of the firm was valued at ( 2,40,000. 

Pass necessary journal entry for the treatment of goodwill on change in the profit sharing ratio 6f Anant, Gulab and 

Khushbu.              1 

Q.5. Give the meaning of forfeiture of shares.          1 

Q.6. Nirman Ltd. issued 50,000 equity shares of Rs10 each. The amount was payable as follows:  

On application - Rs3 per share 

On allotment - Rs2 per share 

On first and final call - The balance  

Applications for 45,000 shares were received and shares were allotted to all the applicants. Pooja, to whom 500 

shares were allotted, paid her entire share money at the time of allotment, whereas Kundan did not pay the first and 

final call on his 300 shares. The amount received at the time of making first and final call was:   1 

(i) Rs2,25,000         (ii) Rs2,20,000 

(iii) Rs2,21,000         (iv) Rs2,19,500  

Q.7. Guru Ltd. invited applications for issuing 5,00,000 equity shares of Rs10 each at a premium of Rs5 per share. 

Because of favorable market conditions the issue was over-subscribed and applications for L5,00,000 shares were 

received. Suggest the alternatives available to the Board of Directors for the allotment of shares.   3 

Q.8. On 1.4.2013, Brij and Nandan entered into partnership to construct toilets in government girl’s schools in the 

remote areas of Uttarakhand. They contributed capitals of Rs10,00,000 and Rs.15,00,000 respectively. 

Their profit sharing ratio was 2 : 3 and interest allowed on capital as provided in the Partnership Deed was 127o per 

annum. During the year ended 31.3.2014, the firm earned a profit of Rs2,00,000. 

Prepare Profit and Loss Appropriation Account of Brii and Nandan for the year ended 31.3.2014.    3 
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Q. 9. 'Suvidha Ltd.' is registered with an authorized capital of Rs10,00,00,000 divided into 10,00,000 equity shares of 

100 each. The company issued 1,00,000 shares for public subscription. A shareholder holding 100 shares, failed to 

pay the final call of Rs20 per share. His shares were forfeited. The forfeited shares were re-issued at Rs90 per share  

as fully paid up. Present the 'Share Capital's in the Balance Sheet of the company as per Schedule VI Part I of the 

Companies Act, 1956. Also prepare 'Notes to Accounts'.         3  

Q.10. 'Good Blankets Ltd.' are the manufacturers of woolen blankets. Blankets of the company are exported to many 

countries. The company decided to distribute blankets free to 5 villages of Kashmir destroyed by the recent floods.  

It also decided to employ 100 young persons from these villages in their newly established factory at Solan in 

Himachal Pradesh. To meet the requirements of funds for starting its new factory the company issued 50,000 equity 

shares of Rs10 each and 2,0000 8% debentures of Rs100 each to the vendors of machinery purchase for Rs7,00,000.  

Pass necessary journal entries for the above transactions in the books of the company. Also identify any one value 

which the company wants to communicate to the society.        3  

Q.11. Arun, Varun and Karan were partners in a firm sharing profits in the ratio of 4 : 3 : 3. On 31.3.2014, their  

Balance Sheet was as follows: 

 

 

 

 

 

On 30.9.2014, Karan died. The Partnership Deed provided for the following to the executors of the deceased partner: 

(a) His share in the goodwill of the firm calculated on the basis of three years purchase of the average profits of the 

last four years. The profits of last four years were Rs1,90,000; Rs1,70,000; Rs1,80,000 and Rs1,60,000 respectively. 

(b) His share in the profits of the firm till the date of his death calculated on the basis of the average profits of the 

last four years. 

(c) Interest @ 8% p.a. on the credit balance, if any, in his Capital Account. (d) Interest on his loan @12% p.a. 

(e) A Prepare Karan's Capital Account to be presented to his executors, assuming that his interest on loan were 

transferred to his Capital Account.  

Q.12. Prem, Param and Priya were partners in a firm. Their fixed capitals were Prem Rs2,00,000; Param Rs3,00,000 

and Priya Rs5,00,000. They were sharing profits in the ratio of their capitals. The firm was engaged in the sale of 

ready-to-eat food packet at three different locations in the city, each being managed by Prem, Param and Priya.    

The outlet managed by Prem was doing more business than the outlets managed by Param and Priya. Prem 

requested Param and Priya for a higher share in the profits of the firm which Param and Priya accepted. It was 

decided that the new profit sharing ratio will be 2 : 1 : 2 and its effect will be introduced retrospectively for the last 

four years. The profits of the last four years were Rs2,00,000; Rs3,50,000; Rs4,75,000 and Rs5,20,000 respectively. 

Showing your calculations clearly, pass a necessary adjustment entry to give effect to the new agreement between 

Prem, Param and Priya.             4  
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Q.13. On 1.1.2008, Uday and Kaushal entered into partnership with fixed capitals of Rs7,00,000 and Rs3,00,000 

respectively. They were doing good business and were interested in its expansion but could not do the same because 

of lack of capital. Therefore, to have more capital, they admitted Govind as a new partner on 1.1.2010. Govind 

brought Rs10,00,000 as capital and the new profit sharing ratio decided was 3 : 2 : 5. On 1.1.2012, another new 

partner Hari was admitted with a capital of Rs8,00,000 for 1/10thshare in the profits, which he acquired equally from 

Uday, Kaushal and Govind. On 1.4.2014 Govind died and his share was taken over ty Udayand Hari equally.  

(i) The sacrificing ratio of Uday and Kaushal on Govind's admission. 

(ii) New profit sharing ratio of Uday, Kaushal, Govind and Hari on Hari's admission. 

(iii) New profit sharing ratio of Uday, Kaushal and Hari on Govind's death.      6  

Q.14. 'Ananya Ltd.' had an authorized capital of Rs10,00,00,000 divided into 10,00,000 equity shares of t 100 each. 

The company had already issued 2,00,000 shares. The dividend paid per share for the year ended 31.3.2007 was 

Rs30. The management decided to export its products to African countries. To meet the requirements of additional 

funds, the finance manager put up the following three alternate proposals before the Board of Directors:  

(i) Issue 47,500 equity shares at a premium of Rs100 per share. 

(ii) Obtain a long-term loan from bank which was available at 2% per annum. 

(iii) Issue 9% debentures at a discount at 5%. 

After evaluating these alternatives, company decided to issue 1,00,000, 9% debentures on 1.4.2008. The face value 

of each debenture was Rs100. These debentures were redeemable in four instalments starting from the end of third 

year, which was as follows: Prepare 9% debenture account from 1.4.2008 till all debentures were redeemed.  6 

Q.15. Mala, Neela and Kala were partners sharing profits in the ratio of 3 : 2 : 1. On 1.3.2015 their firm was dissolved. 

The assets were realized and liabilities were paid off. The accountant prepared Realisation Account, Partners'Capital 

Accounts and Cash Account, but forgot to post few amounts in these accounts. You are required to complete these 

below given accounts by posting correct amounts.  
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Q.16. 'BMY Ltd.' invited applications for issuing 1,00,000 equity shares of Rs10 each at a premium of Rs10 per share. 

The amount was payable as follows:  

On application - Rs10 per share (including Rs5 premium)     On allotment - The balance 

The issue was fully subscribed. A shareholder holding 300 shares paid the full share money with application. Another 

shareholder holding 200 shares failed to pay the allotment money. His shares-were forfeited. Later on these shares 

were re-issued for Rs4,000 as fully paid up.  

Pass necessary journal entries for the above transactions in the books of BMY Ltd. 8 marks  

OR 

Q.16. ‘Blue Star Ltd.' was registered with an authorized capital of Rs2,00,000 divided into 20,000 shares of Rs10 

each. 6,000 of these shares were issued to the vendor for building purchased. 8,000 shares were issued to the public 

and Rs5 per share were called up as follows:  

On application - Rs2 Per share       On allotment - Rs1 Per share 

On first call - Balance of the called up amount  

The amount received on these shares were as follows: 

On 6,000 shares - Full amount called      On 1,250 shares - Rs3 Per share 

On 750 shares - Rs2 Per share  

The directors forfeited 750 shares on which Rs2 per share were received. 

Pass necessary journal entries for the above transactions in the books of Blue Star Ltd.   

Q.17. Om, Ram and Shanti were partners in a firm sharing profits in the ratio of 3 : 2 :1. On 1stApril, 2014 their 

Balance Sheet was as follows : 

 

 

 

 

 

On the above date, Hanuman was admitted on the following terms: 

(i) He will bring Rs1,00,000 for his capital and will get 1/10thshare in the profits. 

(ii) He will bring necessary cash for his share of goodwill premium. The goodwill of the firm was valued at Rs3,00,000. 

(iii) A liability of Rs18,000 will be created against bills receivables discounted. 

(iv) The value of stock and furniture will be reduced by 20%. 

(v) The value of land and building will be increased by 10%. 

(vi) Capital accounts of the partners will be adjusted on the basis of Hanuman's  capital in their profit sharing ratio by 

opening current accounts. 

Prepare Revaluation Account and Partners' Capital Accounts  

OR 

Q.17. Xavier, Yusuf and Zaman were partners in a firm sharing profits in the ratio of 4 : 3: 2. On 1.4.2014 their 

Balance Sheet was as follows :  
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Yusuf had been suffering from ill health and thus gave notice of retirement from the firm. An agreement was, 

therefore, entered into as on 1.4.2014, the terms of which were as follows: 

(i) That land and building be appreciated by 10%. 

(ii) The provision for bad debts is no longer necessary. 

(iii) That stock be appreciate by 20%. 

(iv) That goodwill of the firm be fixed at Rs54,000. Yusuf's share of the same be adjusted into Xavier's and Zaman's 

Capital Accounts, who are going to share future profits in the ratio of 2:1. 

(v) The entire capital of the newly constituted firm be readjusted by bringing in or paying necessary cash so that the 

future capitals of Xavier and Zaman will be in their profit sharing ratio. 

Prepare Revaluation Account and Partners' Capital Accounts. 8 marks  

PART – B: ANALYSIS OF FINANICAL STATEMENTS 

Q.18. Which of the following transactions will result into flow of cash? 1 mark  

(i) Cash withdrawn from bank Rs20,000. 

(ii) Issued Rs20,000, 9% debentures for the vendors of machinery. 

(iii) Received Rs19,000 from debtors. 

(iv) Deposited cheques of Rs10,000 into bank.  

Q.19. The accountant of Manav Ltd. while preparing Cash Flow Statement added depreciation provided on fixed 

assets to net profit for calculating cash flow from operating activities. Was he correct in doing so? Give reason. 1 mks 

Q.20. Under which major headings and sub-headings will the following items be shown in the Balance Sheet of a 

company as per Schedule VI Part I of the Companies Act,1956: 4 mark  

(i) Net loss as shown by Statement of Profit and Loss.   (ii) Capital redemption reserve.  

(iii) Bonds.   (iv) Loans repayable on demand. (v) Unpaid dividend.    

(vi) Buildings.   (vii) Trademarks.   (viii) Raw materials.   

Q.21. The Current Ratio of a company is 2.1 : 1.2. State with reasons which of the following transactions will 

increase, decrease or not change the ratio: 4 marks  

(i) Redeemed 9%, debentures of Rs1,00,000 at a premium of 10%. (ii) Received from debtors Rs17,000. 

(iii) Issued Rs2,00,000 equity shares to the vendors of machinery.  

(iv) Accepted bills of exchange drawn by the creditors Rs7,000  

Q.22. The motto of 'Pharma Ltd.' a company engaged in the manufacturing of tow-cost generic medicines, is 'Healthy 

India'. Its management and employees are hardworking, honest and motivated. The net profit of the company 

doubled during the year ended 31.3.2014.  
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Encouraged by its performance, the company decided to pay bonus to all employees at double the rate than last 

year. Following is the Comparative Statement of Profit and Loss of the company for the years ended 31.3.2013 and 

31.3.2014.  

Pharma Ltd.Comparative Statement of Profit and Loss 

 

 

 

 

 

(i) Calculate Net Profit Ratio for the years ending 31stMarch, 2013 and 2014. 

(ii) Identify any two values which 'Pharma Ltd.' is trying to propagate. 4 marks  

Q. 23. Following is the Balance Sheet of Solar Power Ltd. as at 31.3.2014: 

Solar Power Ltd. 

Balance Sheet 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Notes to Accounts: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

During the year a piece of machinery costing Rs48,000 on which accumulated depreciation was Rs32,000 was sold 

for Rs12,000. Prepare Cash Flow Statement 
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12th CBSE- ACCOUNTANCY | PAPERSET-5 | 

QUESTIONS - 25 
THE MARKS ARE MENTIONED ON EACH QUESTION 

 
PART – A: ACCOUNTING FORPARTNERSHIP FIRMS AND COMPANIES 

Q. 1. A group of 40 people wants to form a partnership firm. They want your advice regarding the maximum number 

of persons that can be there in a partnership firm & the name of the Act under whose provisions it is given.  1 

Q. 2. P, Q and R were partners in firm sharing profit the ratio of 3:2:1. They admitted S as new partner for 1/8thshare 

in the profits, which he acquired 1/16 from P and 1/16thfrom Q. Calculate new profit sharing ratio of P, Q, R & S.  1  

Q. 3. On 28 -2-201.6 the first call of Rs2 per share became due on 50,000 equity shares allotted by Kumar Ltd. Komal 

a holder of 1,000 shares did not pay the first call money. Kovil a holder of 750 share paid the second and final call of t 

4 per share along with the first call. Pass necessary journal entry for the amount received by opening calls - in -

arrears and calls-in - advance account in the books of the company.      1 

Q.4. Distinguish between 'Dissolution of Partnership' & 'Dissolution of Partnership Firm' on basis of 'Economic 

Relationship'.              1 

Q.5. State the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for the creation of, Debenture Redemption Reserve'.  1 

Q. 6. Tom and Harry were partners in a firm sharing profits in the ratio of 5: 3. During the year ended 31.3.2015 Tom 

had withdrawn Rs40,000. Interest on his drawings amounted to Rs2,000. Pass necessary journal entry for charging 

interest on drawings assuming that the capitals of the partners were fluctuating.     1 

Q. 7. On 2.3.2016 L and B Ltd. issued 635,9% debentures of Rs500 each. Pass necessary journal entries for the issue 

of Debentures in the following situations: 

(a) When Debentures were issued at 5% discount, redeemable at 10% premium.  

(b) When Debentures were issued at l2o/o premium, redeemable at 69% premium.     3 

Q.8. State any three circumstances other than (i) death of a partner, (ii) admission of a partner and (iii) retirement of 

a partner when need for valuation of goodwill of a firm may arise.       3 

Q.9. K Ltd. took over the assets of Rs15,00,000 and liabilities of Rs5,00,000 of P Ltd. for a purchase consideration of 

Rs13,68,500. Rs25,500 were paid by issuing promissory note in favor of P Ltd. payable after two months and the 

balance was paid by issue of equity shares of Rs100 each at a premium of 25%. 

Pass necessary journal entries for the above transactions in the books of K. Ltd.      3 

Q.10. To provide employment to the youth and to develop Baramula district of Jammu and Kashmir, Jyoti Power Ltd. 

decided to setup a power plant. For raising funds the company decided to issue 8,50,000 equity shares of Rs10 each 

at a premium of Rs.3 per share. The whole amount was payable on application. Applications for 20,00,000 shares 

were received. Applications for 3,00,000 shares were rejected and shares were allotted to the remaining application 

on pro-rata basis. Pass necessary journal entries for the above transactions in the books of the company and identify 

any two values which the company wants to propagate.         3 

Q. 11. Vikas, Vivek were partners in a firm sharing profits in the ratio of 3: 2. On 14.2014 they admitted Vandana as a 

new partner for 1/8th share in the profits with a guaranteed profit of Rs1,50,000. The new profit sharing ratio 

between Vivek and Vikas will remain the same but they decided to bear any deficiency on account of guarantee to 
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Vandana in the ratio 2: 3. The profit of the firm for the year ended 31.3.2015 was Rs9,00,000. Prepare Profit and Loss 

Appropriation Account of Vikas, Vivek and Vandana for the year ended 31.3.2015.     4 

Q. 12. Manav Nath and Narayan were partners in a firm sharing profits in the ratio of 1:2:1. The firm closes its books 

on 31stMarch every year. On 30th September, 2015 Nath died. On that date his capital account showed a debit 

balance of Rs5,000. There was debit balance of Rs30,000 in the profit and loss account. The goodwill of the firm was 

valued at Rs3,80,000. Nath's share of profit in the year of his death was to be calculated on the basis of the average 

profit of last 5 years, which was Rs90,000. 

Pass necessary journal entries in the books of the firm on Nath’s death.       4 

Q. 13. Lal and Pal were partners in a firm sharing profits in the ratio of 3: 7. On 1.4.2015 their firm was dissolved. 

After transferring assets (other than cash) and outsider's liabilities to realization account you are given the following 

information:  

(a) A creditor of Rs3,60,000 accepted machinery valued at Rs5,00,000 and paid to the firm Rs.1,40,000.  

(b) A second creditor for Rs50,000 accepted stock at Rs45,000 in full settlement of his claim.  

(c) A third creditor amounting to Rs90,000 accepted Rs45,000 in cash and investments worth Rs43,000 in full 

settlement of his claim. (d) Loss on dissolution was Rs15,000. 

Pass necessary journal entries for the above transactions in the books of the firm assuming that all payments were 

made by cheque.             6 

Q. 14. R, S and T were partners in a firm sharing profits in the ratio of 1:2:3. Their Balance Sheet as on 31-3-2015 was 

as follows:  

Balance Sheet of R, S and T as on 31-3-2015 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

R, S and T decided to share the profits equally with effect from 1.4.2015. For this it was agreed that: 

(i) Goodwill of the firm be valued at Rs1,50,000 

(ii) Land be revalued at Rs80,000 and building be depreciated by 6%. 

(iii) Creditors of Rs5,000 were not likely to be claimed and hence be written off. 

Prepare Revaluation Account, Partner's Capital Accounts and Balance Sheet of the reconstituted firm.  

Q. 15. on 1-4-2013 JJJ Ltd. had Rs1,00,00,000, 10% Debentures of Rs100 each outstanding. 
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(i) on 1-4-2014 the company purchased in the open market 30,000 of its own debentures for Rs99 each and 

cancelled the same immediately. 

(ii) on 28-2-2015 the company redeemed at per debentures of Rs50,00,000 by draw of a lot. 

(iii) on 31-1-2016 the remaining debentures were purchased for immediate cancellation for Rs19,99,000. Ignoring 

interest on debentures and debenture redemption reserve, pass necessary journal entries for the above transactions 

in the books of the company. 6 marks 

Q. 16. SK Ltd. invited applications for issuing 3,20,000 equality shares of Rs10 each at a premium of Rs5 per share. 

The amount was payable as follows: 

On application - Rs3 per share (including premium Rs1 per share)  

On allotment - Rs5 per share (including premium Rs2 per share) 

One First and Final Call - Balance. 

Applications for 4,00,000 shares were received. Applications for 40,000 share were rejected and application money 

refunded. Shares were allotted on pro-rata basis to the remaining applicants. Excess money received with 

applications was adjusted towards sums due on allotment. Jeevan holding 800 shares failed to pay the allotment 

money and his shares were immediately foreited. Afterwards final call was made, Ganesh who had applied for    

2,700 shares failed to pay the final call. His shares were also forfeited. Out of the forfeited shares 1,500 shares were 

reissued at Rs8 per share fully paid up. The re-issued shares included all the forfeited shares of Jeevan. 

Pass necessary journal entries for the above transactions in the books of the company. 8 marks  

OR 

Q.16. BBG Ltd. had issued 1,00,000 equity shares of Rs10 each at a premium of Rs3 per share payable with 

application money. While passing the journal, entries related to the issue, some blanks are left. You are required to 

complete these blanks.  

Books of BGG Ltd. JOUNRAL 
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Q.17. L, M and N were partners in a firm sharing profits in the ratio of 3: 2: 1. Their Balance Sheet on 31.3.2015 was a 

follows: 8 marks    

Balance Sheet of L, M and N as on 31-3-2015 

 

 

 

 

 

 

On the above data O was admitted as a new partner and it was decide that: 

(i) The new profit sharing ratio between L, M, N and O will be 2: 2: 1: 1. 

(ii) Goodwill of the firm was valued at Rs.1,80,000 and O brought his share of goodwill premium in cash. 

(iii) The market value of investment was Rs.35,000. 

(iv) Machinery will be reduced to Rs.58,000. 

(v) A creditor of Rs5,000 was not likely to claim the amount and hence to be written- off. 

(vi) O will bring proportionate capital so as to give him 1/6thShare in the profit of the firm.  

Prepare Revaluation Account, Partner's Capital Accounts and the Balance Sheet of the reconstituted firm.  

OR 

Q.17. J, H and K were partners in a firm sharing profit's in the ratio of 5:3:2. On 31-3-2015 their Balance Sheet was as 

follows:  

Balance Sheet of J, H and K as on 31stMarch, 2015 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

On the above date H retired and J and K agreed to continue the business on the following terms: 

(i) Goodwill of the firm was valued at Rs1,02,000. 

(ii) There was a claim of Rs8,000 for workmen's compensation. 

(iii) Provision for bad debts was to be reduced by Rs2,000. 

(iv) H will be paid Rs14,000 in cash and the balance will be transferred in his loan account which will be paid in four 

equal yearly instalments together with interest @ 10% p.a. 
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(v) The new profit sharing ratio between j and K will be 3: 2 and their capitals will be in their new profit sharing ratio. 

The capital adjustments will be done by opening current accounts. Prepare Revaluation Account, Partner's Capital  

Accounts and Balance Sheet of the firm.  

PART-B: ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Q. 18. Give the meaning of 'Cash Flow Statement'. 1 marks 

Q. 19. An enterprise may hold securities and loans for dealing or trading purpose in which case they are similar to 

inventory acquired specifically for resale.' Is the statement correct? Cash Flows from such activities will be classified 

under which type of activity while preparing Cash Flow Statement? 1 marks 

Q.20. (a) One of the objectives of 'Financial Statements Analysis is to judge the ability of the firm to repay its debt 

and assessing the short term as well as the long-term liquidity position of the firm. 'State two objectives of analysis’. 

(b) List any two items that are presented under the head 'other current liabilities' and any two items that are 

presented under the head 'other current assets' as per schedule III of the Companies Act, 2013. 4 marks 

Q. 21. (a) What is meant by Activity Ratios? 

(b) From the following in formation calculate inventory turnover ratio; Revenue form operations Rs16,00,000; 

Average inventory Rs.2,20,000; Gross Loss Ratio 5%. 4 marks 

Q. 22. Following is the statement of Profit and Loss of Moon India Ltd. for the year ended 31st March,2015. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The motto of Moon India Ltd. is to produce and distribute green energy in the backward areas of India. It has also 

taken up a project of giving vocational training to the girls belonging to the backward areas of Rajasthan. You a 

required to prepare a comparative statement of Profit and Loss of Moon India Ltd. from the given statement of 

Profit and Loss and also Identify any two values that the company wishes to convey to the society. 4 marks 

 

Q. 23. Following is the Balance Sheet of M.M Ltd as at 31-3-2015:  6 marks  

M.M. Ltd. Balance Sheet as at 31-3-2015 
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Notes to Account: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(i) 12%Debentures were redeemed on 31-3-2015, (ii) Tax Rs70,000 was paid during the year.  

Prepare Cash Flow Statement. 
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12th CBSE- MATHEMATICS | PAPERSET-1 |  
QUESTIONS - 29 

THE MARKS ARE MENTIONED ON EACH QUESTION 
SECTION – A 

Question numbers 1 to 10 carry 1 mark each. 
Q.1. write the principal value of 𝐭𝐚𝐧−𝟏(√𝟑) − 𝐜𝐨𝐭−𝟏(−√𝟑). 1 mark 

Q.2. Write the value of 𝐭𝐚𝐧−𝟏 [(𝟐𝒔𝒊𝒏−𝟏 √𝟑/𝟐)]. 1 mark 

Q.3. for what value of x, is the matrix 1 mark 

𝟎    1 -2  

𝑨 = 𝟏    0 3 a 𝐬𝐤𝐞𝐰–𝐬𝐲𝐦𝐦𝐞𝐭𝐫𝐢𝐜𝐦𝐚𝐭𝐫𝐢𝐱 ? 

      −𝟐   -3 0 

Q.4. if matrix 𝑨 = [ 1-1] 𝐚𝐧𝐝𝐀𝟐 = 𝐊𝐀, 𝐈𝐭𝐡𝐞𝐧𝐰𝐫𝐢𝐭𝐞𝐭𝐡𝐞𝐯𝐚𝐥𝐮𝐞𝐨𝐟𝒌. 1 mark 

      -1  1 

Q.5. Write the differential equation representing the family of curves y = mx when m is an 

arbitrary consent. 1 mark 

Q.6. if 𝑨𝒊𝒋is the cofactor of the 𝒂𝒊𝒋of the determinant. 1 mark 

𝑨 =  2    -3 5 𝐭𝐡𝐞𝐯𝐚𝐥𝐮𝐞𝐨𝐟𝒂𝟑𝟐 ,𝑨𝟑𝟐 . 

6    0 4 

        1        5        -7 

Q.7. P and Q are two points with position vectors 𝟑𝒂  − 𝟐𝒃⃗  𝒂𝒏𝒅𝒂 +𝒃⃗  respectively. Write the position vector of a 

point R which divides the line segment PQ in the ratio 2 : 1 externally. 1 mark 

Q.8. Find | 𝑥 |, if for a unit vector 𝐚  , ( 𝒙⃗  − 𝐚  ). (𝒙⃗  + 𝐚  ) = 𝟏𝟓. 1 mark 

Q.9. Find the length of the perpendicular drawn from the origin to the plane 2x – 3y + 6z + 21 = 0. 1 mark 

Q.10. The money to be spent for the welfare of the employees of a firm is proportional to the rate of change of its 

total revenue (marginal revenue). If the total revenue (in rupees) received from the sale of x units of a product is 

given by  

𝑹 (𝒙⃗) = 𝟑𝒙⃗𝟐 + 𝟑𝟔𝒙⃗ + 𝟓, find the marginal revenue, when x = 5, write which value does the question indicate. 1 mark 

SECTION – B 

Question numbers 11 to 22 carry 4 marks each 

Q.11. Consider f: 𝑹+ → [𝟒, ∞) given by f (x) = 𝒙⃗𝟐 + 𝟒. Show that f is invertible with the inverse 𝒇−𝟏 of f given by 𝒇−𝟏 (y) 

=√𝒚 − 𝟒 where 𝑹+ is the set of all non – negative real numbers. 4 marks 

Q.12. Show that: 4 marks 

𝒕𝒂𝒏 (1/2 sin-13/4) = 4 - √7 

 3 

OR 

Q.12. Solve the following equation: 4 marks 

𝒄𝒐𝒔 (𝒕𝒂𝒏−𝟏𝒙⃗) = 𝒔𝒊𝒏 (𝒄𝒐𝒕−𝟏𝟑/4) 

Q.13. Using properties of determinants, prove the following: 4 marks 
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𝒙⃗ 𝒙⃗ + 𝒚 𝒙⃗ + 𝟐𝒚 

     𝒙⃗ + 𝟐 𝒚𝒙⃗ 𝒙⃗ + 𝒚  = 𝟗𝒚𝟐(𝒙⃗ + 𝒚). 

     𝒙⃗ + 𝒚 𝒙⃗ + 𝟐𝒚 𝒙⃗ 

Q.14. if 𝒚𝒙⃗ = 𝒆𝒚−𝒙⃗, 𝐩𝐫𝐨𝐯𝐞𝐭𝐡𝐚𝐭 4 marks 

𝒅𝒚 = (𝟏 + 𝒍𝒐𝒈𝒚)𝟐 

        𝒅x 𝒍𝒐𝒈𝒚 

Q.15. Differentiate the following with respect to x: 4 marks 

𝒔𝒊𝒏−𝟏𝟐𝒙⃗+𝟏. 𝟑𝒙⃗ 

𝟏 + (𝟑𝟔)𝒙⃗) 

Q.16. Find the value of k, for which 

 √𝟏 + 𝒌𝒙⃗ − √𝟏–𝒌𝒙⃗ , 𝒊𝒇 − 𝟏 ≤ 𝒙⃗<𝟎 

𝒇(𝒙⃗0  𝒙⃗ 

 𝟐𝒙⃗ + 𝟏 , 𝒊𝒇𝟎 ≤ 𝒙⃗<𝟏 

 𝒙⃗ − 𝟏 

Is continuous at x = 0. 4 marks 

OR 

𝑰𝒇𝒙⃗𝒂𝒄𝒐𝒔𝟑𝜽𝒂𝒏𝒅𝒚 = 𝒂𝒔𝒊𝒏𝟑𝜽, 𝒕𝒉𝒆𝒏𝒇𝒊𝒏𝒅𝒕𝒉𝒆𝒗𝒂𝒍𝒖𝒆𝒐𝒇𝒅𝟐𝒚𝒂𝒕𝜽, =𝝅 

          𝒅𝒙⃗𝟐 6 

Q.17. Evaluate: 4 marks 

∫𝒄𝒐𝒔𝟐𝒙⃗ − 𝒄𝒐𝒔𝟐∝𝒅𝒙⃗ 

𝒄𝒐𝒔𝒙⃗ − 𝒄𝒐𝒔∝ 

OR 

Q.17. Evaluate: 

                ∫𝒙⃗ + 𝟐       = 𝒅𝒙⃗. 

√𝒙⃗𝟐 + 𝟐𝒙⃗ + 𝟑 

Q.18. Evaluate: 4 marks 

∫𝒅𝒙⃗ 

𝒙⃗(𝒙⃗𝟓 + 𝟑) 

Q.19. Evaluate: 4 marks 

𝟐𝝅∫0𝟏 d𝒙⃗ 

𝟏 + 𝒆𝒔𝒊𝒏𝒙⃗ 

Q.20. 𝑰𝒇𝒂  = 𝒊 ̂ − 𝒋 ̂+ 𝟐𝒌 ̂ 𝒂𝒏𝒅𝒃⃗ = 𝟓𝒊 ̂ − �̂�+ 𝝀𝒌 ̂, 𝒕𝒉𝒆𝒏𝒇𝒊𝒏𝒅𝒕𝒉𝒆𝒗𝒂𝒍𝒖𝒆𝒐𝒇𝝀. 𝒔o 𝒕𝒉𝒂𝒕𝒂 +𝒃⃗  𝒂𝒏𝒅𝒂  

−𝒃⃗ 𝒂𝒓𝒆𝒑𝒆𝒓𝒑𝒆𝒏𝒅𝒊𝒄𝒖𝒍𝒂𝒓𝒗𝒆𝒄𝒕𝒐𝒓𝒔. 4 marks 

Q.21. Show that the lines 

𝒓  = 𝟑𝒊 ̂ + 𝟐𝒋 ̂− 𝟒𝒌 ̂ + 𝝀(𝒊 ̂ + 𝟐𝒋 ̂+ 𝟐𝒌 ̂); 

 𝒓 = 𝟓𝒊 ̂ − 𝟐𝒋 ̂ + 𝝁(𝟑𝒊 ̂ + 𝟐𝒋 ̂ + 𝟔𝒌 ̂ ) 

Are intersection. Hence find their point of intersection. 4 marks 

OR 
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Q.21.Find the vector equation of the plane through the points (2, 1, -1) and (-1,3,4) and Perpendicular to the plane 𝒙⃗ 

− 𝟐𝒚 + 𝟒𝒛 = 𝟏𝟎. 

 

Q. 22. The probabilities of two student’s A and B coming to the school in time are 𝟑/7𝒂𝒏𝒅 5/7respectively. 

Assuming that the events, ‘A coming in time’ and ‘B coming in time’ are independent, find the probability of only one 

of them coming to the school in time. Write at least one advantage of coming to school in time. 4 marks 

SECTION- C 

Question numbers 23 to 29 carry 6 marks each 

Q. 23. Find the area of the greatest rectangle that can be inscribed in an ellipse.6 marks 

𝒙⃗𝟐 + 𝒚𝟐= 𝟏. 

𝒂𝟐𝒃⃗𝟐        OR 

Q.23. Find the equation of tangents to the curve 𝟑𝒙⃗𝟐 − 𝒚𝟐 = 𝟖, which pass through the 𝐩𝐨𝐢𝐧𝐭 (4/3, 0) 

Q. 24. Find the area of the region bounded by the parabola 6 marks 𝒚 = 𝒙⃗𝟐𝒂𝒏𝒅𝒚 = |𝒙⃗|. 

Q.25. Find the particular solution of the differential equation 6 marks 

(𝒕𝒂𝒏−𝟏𝒚 − 𝒙⃗)𝒅𝒚 = (𝟏 + 𝒚𝟐)𝒅𝒙⃗, 𝒈𝒊𝒗𝒆𝒏𝒕𝒉𝒂𝒕𝑾𝒉𝒆𝒏𝒙⃗ = 𝟎, 𝒚 = 𝟎. 

Q. 26. Find equation of plane passing through line of intersection of Perpendicular distance from origin is unity. 6 M 

𝐏𝐥𝐚𝐧𝐞𝐬 𝒓 . (𝒊 ̂ + 𝟑𝒋 ̂ ) − 𝟔 = 𝟎𝒂𝒏𝒅 𝒓 . (𝟑𝒊 ̂ − 𝒋 ̂ − 𝟒𝒌 ̂ ) = 𝟎,𝒘𝒉𝒐𝒔𝒆 

OR 

Find the vector equation of the line passing through the point (1, 2, 3) and parallel to the planes 

 𝒓  . (𝒊 ̂ − 𝒋 ̂ + 𝟐𝒌 ̂ ) = 𝟓𝒂𝒏𝒅 𝒓  . (𝟑𝒊 ̂ + 𝒋 ̂ + 𝒌 ̂ ) = 𝟔. 

Q. 27. In a hockey match, both teams A and B scored same number of goals up to the end of the game, so to decide 

the winner, the referee asked both the captains to throw a die alternately and decided that the team, whose captain 

gets a six first, will be declared the winner. If the captain of team A was asked to start, find their respective 

probabilities of winning the match and state whether the decision of the referee was fair or not. 6 marks 

Q. 28. A manufacturer considers that men &women workers are equally efficient &so he pays them at the same rate. 

He has 30 & 17 units of workers (male & female) & capital respectively; which he uses to produce two types of goods 

A & B. to produce one unit of A, 2 workers & 3 units of capital are required while 3 workers & 1 unit of capital is 

required to produce one unit of B. if A & B are priced atRs100 & Rs120 per unit respectively, how should he use his 

resources to maximize the total revenue? Form the above as an LPP & solve graphically.Do you agree with this view 

of the manufacturer that men & women workers are equally efficient & so should be paid at the same rate? 6 marks 

Q. 29. The management committee of a residential colony decided to award some of its members (say x) for 

honesty, some (say y) for helping other (say z) for supervising the workers to keep the colony neat & clean. The sum 

of all the awardees is 12. Three times the sum of awardees for cooperation & supervision added to two times the 

number of awardees for honesty is 33. If the sum of the number of awardees for honesty & supervision is twice the 

number of awardees for helping others, using matrix method, find the number of awardees of each category. Apart 

from these values, namely, honesty, cooperation & supervision, suggest one more value which the management of 

the colony must include for awards. 6 marks  
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12th CBSE- MATHEMATICS | PAPERSET-2 | 

QUESTIONS - 29 
THE MARKS ARE MENTIONED ON EACH QUESTION 

SECTION – A 
Question number 1 to 10 carry 1 marks each: 

Q.1. If (𝑹) = {(𝒙⃗, 𝒚): 𝒙⃗ + 𝟐𝒚 = 𝟖} is a relation on N, write the range of R. 1 mark 

Q.2. If 

𝒕𝒂𝒏−𝟏𝒙⃗ + 𝒕𝒂𝒏−𝟏𝒚 =𝝅, 𝒙⃗𝒚<𝟏, 

       𝟒 

Then write the value of 𝒙⃗ + 𝒚 + 𝒙⃗𝒚. 1 mark 

Q.3. If A is square matrix such that 𝑨𝟐 = 𝑨, then write the value of 𝟕𝑨 − (𝑰 + 𝑨)𝟑, where I is an identity matrix. 1 mark 

Q.4. If  𝒙⃗–𝒚𝒛  = [-1   4 ] find the value of 𝒙⃗ + 𝒚. 1 marks 

           𝟐𝒙⃗–𝒚𝒘       0    5 

Q.5. If |𝟑𝒙⃗𝟕| = |8   7|find the value of 𝒙⃗. 1 mark 

 −𝟐𝟒 6   4 

Q.6. If 𝒇(𝒙⃗) = ∫𝒙⃗
0𝒕𝒔𝒊𝒏𝒕𝒅𝒕, then write the value of 𝒇′(𝒙⃗). 1 mark 

Q.7. Evaluate: 1 mark 

∫4
2𝒙⃗𝒅𝒙⃗. 

𝒙⃗𝟐 + 𝟏 

Q.8. Find the value of ‘p’ for which the vectors 𝟑𝒊 ̂ + 𝟐𝒋 ̂ + 𝟗𝒌 ̂ 𝒂𝒏𝒅𝒊 ̂ − 𝟐𝒑𝒋 ̂ + 𝟑𝒌 ̂ are parallel. 1 mark 

Q.9. Find 𝒂  . (𝒃⃗  ×𝒄  ), 𝐢𝐟𝒂  = 𝟐𝒊 ̂ + 𝒋 ̂ + 𝟑𝒌 ̂ ,𝒃⃗  = −𝒊 ̂ + 𝟐𝒋 ̂ +𝒌 ̂ 𝒂𝒏𝒅𝒄  = 𝟑𝒊 ̂ + 𝒋 ̂ + 𝟐𝒌 ̂. 1 mark 

Q.10. If the Cartesian equation of a line are 

𝟑–𝒙⃗ = 𝒚 + 𝟒 = 𝟐𝒛 – 𝟔 

𝟓     7        4  

Write the vector equation for the line. 1 mark 

SECTION – B 

Question numbers 11 to 22 carry 4 marks each: 

Q.11. If the function 𝒇: 𝑹 → 𝑹 be given by 𝒇(𝒙⃗) = 𝒙⃗𝟐 + 𝟐&𝒈: 𝑹 → 𝑹 be given by 

𝒈(𝒙⃗) =      𝒙⃗, 𝒙⃗ ≠ 𝟏, 

𝒙⃗ − 𝟏 

find 𝒇𝒐𝒈𝒂𝒏𝒅𝒈𝒐𝒇& hence find 𝒇𝒐𝒈(𝟐)𝒂𝒏𝒅𝒈𝒐𝒇(−𝟑). 4 marks 

Q.12. Prove that: 4 marks 

𝐭𝐚𝐧−𝟏[√𝟏 + 𝒙⃗ − √𝟏–𝒙⃗] = 𝝅 – 1  𝐜𝐨𝐬−𝟏𝒙⃗ ,−𝟏≤ 𝒙⃗ ≤ 𝟏 

[√𝟏 + 𝒙⃗ + √𝟏–𝒙⃗]     𝟒𝟐  √𝟐 

OR 

Q.12. If 

𝐭𝐚𝐧−𝟏(𝒙⃗ − 𝟐) + 𝐭𝐚𝐧−𝟏(𝒙⃗ + 𝟐) = 𝝅 , 𝐟𝐢𝐧𝐝𝐭𝐡𝐞𝐯𝐚𝐥𝐮𝐞𝐨𝐟𝒙⃗. 

    (𝒙⃗–𝟒) (𝒙⃗ + 𝟒)    𝟒 
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Q.13. Using properties of determinants, prove that: 4 marks 

𝒙⃗ + 𝒚  𝒙⃗ 𝒙⃗ 

𝟓𝒙⃗ + 𝟒𝒚 𝟒𝒙⃗ 𝒙⃗ = 𝒙⃗𝟑 

𝟏𝟎𝒙⃗ + 𝟖𝒚 𝟖𝒙⃗ 𝟑𝒙⃗ 

Q.14. Find the value of 

𝒅𝒚𝒂𝒕𝜽 =𝝅 

𝒅𝒙⃗ 𝟒 

𝒊𝒇𝒙⃗ = 𝒂𝒆𝜽(𝒔𝒊𝒏𝜽 − 𝒄𝒐𝒔𝜽) 𝒂𝒏𝒅𝒚 = 𝒂𝒆𝜽(𝒔𝒊𝒏𝜽 + 𝒄𝒐𝒔𝜽). 4 marks 

Q.15. If 𝒚 = 𝑷𝒆𝒂𝒙⃗+ 𝑸𝒆𝒃⃗𝒙⃗, show that: 4 marks 

𝒅𝟐𝒚− (𝒂 + 𝒃⃗)𝒅𝒚+ 𝒂𝒃⃗𝒚 = 𝟎. 

     𝒅𝒙⃗𝟐 𝒅𝒙⃗ 

Q.16. Find the value(s) of 𝒙⃗ for which 𝒚 = [𝒙⃗(𝒙⃗ − 𝟐)]𝟐 is an increasing function. 4 marks 

OR 

Find the equations of the tangent & normal to the curve 

𝒙⃗𝟐 – 𝒚𝟐= 𝟏 𝒂𝒕𝒕𝒉𝒆𝒑𝒐𝒊𝒏𝒕 (√𝟐𝒂, 𝒃⃗). 

    𝒂𝟐 −𝒃⃗𝟐 

Q. 17. Evaluate:4 𝑚𝑎𝑟𝑘𝑠 

∫𝝅
𝟎𝟒𝒙⃗𝒔𝒊𝒏𝒙⃗=𝒅𝒙⃗. 

      𝟏 + 𝒄𝒐𝒔𝟐𝒙⃗ 

OR 

𝐄𝐯𝐚𝐥𝐮𝐚𝐭𝐞: ∫𝒙⃗ + 𝟐𝒅𝒙⃗ . 

√𝒙⃗𝟐 + 𝟓𝒙⃗ + 𝟔 

Q. 18. Find particular solution of differential equation 𝒅𝒚= 𝟏 + 𝒙⃗ + 𝒚 + 𝒙⃗𝒚,𝐠𝐢𝐯𝐞𝐧𝐭𝐡𝐚𝐭𝐲 = 𝟎𝐰𝐡𝐞𝐧𝒙⃗ = 𝟏. 4 𝑚𝑎𝑟𝑘𝑠 

      𝒅𝒙⃗ 

Q. 19. Solve the differential equation 4 marks 

(𝟏 + 𝒙⃗𝟐) 𝒅𝒚+ 𝒚 = 𝒆𝐭𝐚𝐧−𝟏𝒙⃗ 

      𝒅𝒙⃗ 

Q. 20. Show, four points A, B, C & D with vectors 𝟒𝒊 ̂ + 𝟓𝒋 ̂ +𝒌 ̂, −𝒋 ̂ −𝒌 ̂, 𝟑𝒊 ̂ + 𝟗𝒋 ̂ + 𝟒𝒌 ̂ &𝟒(−𝒊 ̂ + 𝒋 ̂ + 𝒌 

̂)𝐫𝐞𝐬𝐩𝐞𝐜𝐭𝐢𝐯𝐞𝐥𝐲𝐚𝐫𝐞𝐜𝐨𝐩𝐥𝐚𝐧𝐚𝐫 . 4 𝑚𝑎𝑟𝑘𝑠 

OR 

Q.20. The scalar product of the vector 𝒂   = 𝒊 ̂ + 𝒋 ̂ +𝒌 ̂ with a unit vector along the sum of vectors 𝒃⃗   = 𝟐𝒊 ̂ + 𝟒𝒋 ̂−𝟓𝒌 ̂ 

𝒂𝒏𝒅𝒄 = 𝝀𝒊 ̂ + 𝟐𝒋 ̂ + 𝟑𝒌 ̂ 𝒊𝒔𝒆𝒒𝒖𝒂𝒍𝒕𝒐𝒐𝒏𝒆. 𝒇𝒊𝒏𝒅𝒕𝒉𝒆 𝒗a𝒍𝒖𝒆𝒐𝒇𝝀𝒂𝒏𝒅𝒉𝒆𝒏𝒄𝒆𝒇𝒊𝒏𝒅𝒕𝒉𝒆𝒖𝒏𝒊𝒕𝒗𝒆𝒄𝒕𝒐𝒓𝒂𝒍𝒐𝒏𝒈𝒃⃗  +  𝒄. 

Q. 21. A line passes through (2, -1, 3) & is perpendicular to the lines  

𝒓  = (𝒊 ̂ + 𝒋 ̂ −𝒌 ̂) + 𝝀(𝟐𝒊 ̂ + 𝟐𝒋 ̂ −𝒌 ̂) 𝒂𝒏𝒅 

 𝒓 = (𝟐𝒊 ̂ − 𝒋 ̂ − 𝟑𝒌 ̂ ) + 𝝁 (𝒊 ̂ + 𝟐𝒋 ̂ − 𝟐𝒌 ̂ ). 

Obtain its equation in vector & Cartesian form. 4 marks 

Q. 22. An experiment succeeds thrice as often as it fails. Find the probability that in the next five trails, there will be 

at least 3 successes. 
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SECTION- C 

Question numbers 23 to 29 carry 6 marks each. 

Q. 23. Two school A & B want to award their selected students on the values of sincerity, truthfulness & helpfulness. 

The school A wants to award Rs 𝒙⃗ each, Rs 𝒚 each &Rs 𝒛 each for the three respective values to 3,2 & 1 student 

respectively with a total award money of Rs 1,600.School B wants to spend rs 2,300 to award its 4,1 &3student on 

the respective values ( by giving the same award money to the three values as before). If the total amount of award 

for one prize on each value is rs 900, using matrices, find the award money for each value. A part from these three 

values, suggest one more value which should be considered for award. 6 marks 

Q.24. Show that the altitude of the right circular cone of maximum volume that can be inscribed in a sphere of radius 

r is 𝟒𝒓 ..Also show that the maximum volume of thecone 𝟖  𝐨𝐟 𝐭𝐡𝐞 𝐯𝐨𝐥𝐮𝐦𝐞 𝐨𝐟 𝐭𝐡𝐞 𝐬𝐩e𝐡𝐫𝐞. 6 marks 

𝟑       𝟐𝟕 

Q.25. Evaluate: 6 marks 

∫ 𝟏 𝒅𝒙⃗. 

𝒄𝒐𝒔𝟒𝒙⃗ + 𝒔𝒊𝒏𝟒𝒙⃗ 

Q26. Using integration, find area of region bounded by the triangle whose vertices are (-1, 2), (1, 5) & (3, 4). 6 marks 

Q.27. Find the equation of plane through the line of intersection of the planes 𝒙⃗ + 𝒚 + 𝒛 = 𝟏𝒂𝒏𝒅𝟐𝒙⃗ + 𝟑𝒚 + 𝟒𝒛 = 𝟓 

which is perpendicular to the plane 𝒙⃗ + 𝒚 + 𝒛 = 𝟎. Also find distance of the plane obtained above from origin. 6 marks 

OR 

Find the distance point (2, 12, 5) from the point of intersection of the line 𝒓  = 𝟐𝒊 ̂ − 𝟒𝒋 ̂ + 𝟐𝒌 ̂ + 𝝀(𝟑𝒊 ̂ + 𝟒𝒋 ̂ + 𝟐𝒌 ̂) & the 

plane 𝒓  . (𝒊 ̂ − 𝟐𝒋 ̂ +𝒌 ̂ = 𝟎. 

Q.28. Manufacturing company makes two types of teaching aids A & B of Mathematics for class XII. Each of A 

requires 9 labour hours of fabricating & 1 labour hr for finishing. Each type of B requires 12 labour hrs for fabricating 

& 3 labour hours finishing for & finishing the maximum labour hours available per week are 180 & 30 respectively. 

The company makes a profit of Rs80 on each piece of type A &Rs120 on each piece of type B. How many pieces of 

type A type B Should be manufactured per week to get a maximum profit? Make it as an LPP & solve graphically. 

What is the maximum profit per week? 6 marks 

Q.29. There are three coins. One is a two – headed coin (having head on both faces ), another is a biased coin that 

comes up heads 75 % of the times & third is also abiased coin that comes up tails 40 % of the times . one of the three 

coin is chosen at random & tossed, & it shows head. What the two – headed coin? 

OR 

Q.29. Two numbers are selected at r&om (without replacement) from the first six positive integers. Let X denote the 

larger of the two numbers obtained. Find the probability distribution of the random variable X, & hence find the 

mean of the distribution 
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12th CBSE- MATHEMATICS | PAPERSET-3 | 
QUESTIONS - 26 

THE MARKS ARE MENTIONED ON EACH QUESTION 
SECTION – A 

Question number 1 to 6 carry 1 mark 
Q.1. Write the value of: 1 mark 

Δ= |𝒙⃗ + 𝒚 𝒚 + 𝒛 𝒛 + 𝒙⃗| 

𝒛 𝒙⃗ 𝒚 

−𝟑 −𝟑 −𝟑 

 

Q.2. write the sum of the order & degree of the following differential equation: 1 marks 

𝒅   {(𝒅𝒚)}3 = 0 

      𝒅𝒙⃗𝒅𝒙⃗  

Q.3. Write the integrating factor of the following differential equation: 1 mark 

(𝟏 + 𝒚𝟐) + (𝟐𝒙⃗𝒚 − 𝒄𝒐𝒕𝒚) 𝒅𝒚= 𝟎 

        𝒅𝒙⃗ 

Q.4. if 𝒂 ̂,𝒃⃗ ̂ &𝒄 ̂ are mutually perpen – dicular unit vectors, then find the value of |𝟐𝒂 ̂ +𝒃⃗ ̂ + 𝒄 ̂ |. 1 Marks 

Q.5. Write a unit vector perpendicular to both the vectors 𝒂   = 𝒊 ̂ + 𝒋 ̂ +𝒌 ̂ &𝒃⃗ = 𝒊 ̂ + 𝒋 ̂. 1 mark 

Q.6. The equation of a line are 𝟓𝒙⃗ − 𝟑 = 𝟏𝟓𝒚 + 𝟕 = 𝟑 − 𝟏𝟎𝒛. Write the direction cosines of the line. 1 mark 

SECTION – B 

Question number 7 to 19 carry 4 marks each. 

Q.7. To promote the making of toilets for women, an organization tried to generate awareness through (𝒊) house 

calls (𝒊𝒊) letters, & (𝒊𝒊𝒊) announcements. The cost for each mode per attempt is given below: 

(𝒊) 𝑹𝒔𝟓𝟎  (𝒊𝒊) 𝑹𝒔𝟐𝟎  (𝒊𝒊𝒊) 𝑹𝒔𝟒𝟎 

The number of attempts made in three villages X, Y, & Z are given below: 

 (𝒊)  (𝒊𝒊)  (𝒊𝒊𝒊) 

X  400  300  100 

Y  300  250  75 

Z  500  400  150 

Find the total cost incurred by the organization for the three villages separately, using matrices. 

Write one value generated by the organization in the society. 4 marks 

Q.8. Solve for 𝒙⃗: 4 marks 

𝒕𝒂𝒏−𝟏(𝒙⃗ + 𝟏) + 𝒕𝒂𝒏−𝟏(𝒙⃗ − 𝟏) = 𝒕𝒂𝒏−𝟏𝟖 

         𝟑𝟏 

OR  

Q.8. Prove the following: 

𝒄𝒐𝒕−𝟏(𝒙⃗𝒚 + 𝟏) + 𝒄𝒐𝒕−𝟏(𝒚𝒛 + 𝟏) + 𝒄𝒐𝒕−𝟏 (𝒛𝒙⃗ + 𝟏) = 𝟎 

     𝒙⃗𝒚–𝟏  𝒚–𝒛  𝒛 − 𝒙⃗ 

(𝟎<𝒙⃗𝒚, 𝒚𝒛, 𝒛𝒙⃗<𝟏) 
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Q.9. Using properties of determinants, prove the following: 4 marks 

     |𝒂𝟐  𝒃⃗𝒄 𝒂𝒄 + 𝒄𝟐| = 𝟒𝒂𝟐𝒃⃗𝟐𝒄𝟐 

     𝒂𝟐 + 𝒂𝒃⃗ 𝒃⃗𝟐 𝒂𝒄 

     𝒂𝒃⃗  𝒃⃗𝟐 𝒄𝟐 

Q.10. Find the adjoint of the matrix 4 marks 

𝐀 = (−𝟏 −𝟐 −𝟐) 

       𝟐𝟏−𝟐 

       𝟐−𝟐𝟏 

𝐀. (𝐚𝐝𝐣𝐀) = |𝐀|𝐈𝟑. 

Q.11. Show function 𝒇(𝒙⃗) = |𝒙⃗ − 𝟏| + |𝒙⃗ + 𝟏|, for all 𝒙⃗∈ℝ, is not differentiable at the points 𝒙⃗ = −𝟏&𝒙⃗ = 𝟏. 4 marks 

Q.12. If 𝒚 = 𝒆𝒎𝒔𝒊𝒏−𝟏𝒙⃗, then show that: 4 marks 

(𝟏 − 𝒙⃗𝟐) 𝒅𝟐𝒚− 𝒙⃗𝒅𝒚− 𝒎𝟐𝒚 = 𝟎. 

 𝒅𝒙⃗𝟐𝒅𝒙⃗ 

Q.13. If 𝒇(𝒙⃗) = √𝒙⃗𝟐 + 𝟏; 𝒈(𝒙⃗) = 𝒙⃗+𝟏&𝒉(𝒙⃗) = 𝟐𝒙⃗ − 𝟑, then find 𝒇′[𝒉′{𝒈′(𝒙⃗)}]. 4 Marks 

   𝒙⃗𝟐+𝟏 

Q.14. Evaluate: 4 marks 

∫(𝟑 − 𝟐𝒙⃗). √𝟐 + 𝒙⃗ − 𝒙⃗𝟐𝒅𝒙⃗ 

OR 

Evaluate: 

∫   𝒙⃗𝟐 + 𝒙⃗ + 𝟏𝒅𝒙⃗ 

(𝒙⃗𝟐 + 𝟏)(𝒙⃗ + 𝟐) 

Q.15. Find: 4 marks 

∫𝝅/𝟒
0𝒅𝒙⃗ 

𝒄𝒐𝒔𝟑𝒙⃗√𝟐𝒔𝒊𝒏𝟐𝒙⃗ 

Q.16. Find: 4 marks 

∫ 𝒍𝒐𝒈𝒙⃗𝒅𝒙⃗ 

(𝒙⃗ + 𝟏)𝟐 

Q.17. If 𝒂   = 𝒊 ̂ + 𝟐𝒋 ̂ +𝒌 ̂ , 𝒃⃗   = 𝟐𝒊 ̂ + 𝒋 ̂ &𝒄  = 𝟑𝒊 ̂ − 𝟒𝒋 ̂ − 𝟓𝒌 ̂ , then find a unit vector perpendicular to both of the 

vectors (𝒂   −𝒃⃗   ) & (𝒄  −𝒃⃗   ). 4 marks 

 

Q.18. Find the equation of a line passing through the point (1, 2, -4) & perpendicular to two lines. 4 marks 

𝒓  = (𝟖𝒊 ̂ − 𝟏𝟗�̂� + 𝟏𝟎𝒌 ̂ ) + 𝝀(𝟑𝒊 ̂ − 𝟏𝟔𝒋 ̂ + 𝟕𝒌 ̂) 𝒂𝒏𝒅𝒓  = (𝟏𝟓𝒊 ̂ + 𝟐𝟗𝒋 ̂ + 𝟓𝒌 ̂) + 𝝁(𝟑𝒊 ̂ + 𝟖𝒋 ̂ − 𝟓𝒌 ̂ ). 

OR 

Find the equation of the plane passing through the points (-1, 2, 0), (2, 2, -1) & parallel to the line 𝒙⃗−𝟏 = 𝟐𝒚+𝟏 = 𝒛+𝟏 

            𝟏 𝟐 −𝟏 

 

Q.19. Three cards are drawn successively with replacement from a well shuffled pack of 53 cards. Find the 

probability distribution of the number of spades. Hence find the mean of the distribution. 4 marks 
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OR 

Q.19. For 6 trials of an experiment, let X be a binomial variate which satisfies the relation 𝟗𝑷(𝑿 = 𝟒) = 𝑷(𝑿 = 𝟐). Find 

the probability of success. 

SECTION – C 

Question number 20 to 26 carry 6 marks each. 

Q.20. Consider 𝒇: ℝ+
→[−𝟗∞] give by 𝒇(𝒙⃗)𝟓𝒙⃗𝟐 + 𝟔𝒙⃗ − 𝟗. Prove that 𝒇 is invertible with: 6 marks 

𝒇−𝟏(𝒚) = (√𝟓𝟒 + 𝟓𝒚–𝟑) 

  𝟓 

OR 

Q.20. A binary operation * is defined on the set 𝑿 = 𝑹 − {−𝟏} 𝒃⃗𝒚𝒙⃗∗𝒚 = 𝒙⃗ + 𝒚 + 𝒙⃗𝒚, ∀𝒙⃗, 𝒚∈𝑿.Check whether * is 

commutative & associative. Find its identity element & also find the inverse of each element of X. 

Q.21. Find value of 𝒑 for which the curves 𝒙⃗𝟐 = 𝟗𝒑(𝟗 − 𝒚) 𝒂𝒏𝒅𝒙⃗𝟐 = 𝒑(𝒚 + 𝟏) cut each other at right angles. 6 marks 

Q.22. Using integration, prove that the curves 𝒚𝟐 = 𝟒𝒙⃗&𝒙⃗𝟐 = 𝟒𝒚 divide the area of the square bounded by 𝒙⃗ = 𝟎, 𝒙⃗ = 

𝟒, 𝒚 = 𝟒, &𝒚 = 𝟎into three equal parts. 6 marks 

Q.23. Show that the differential equation, is homogeneous & also solve it. 6 marks 

𝒅𝒚 =     𝒚𝟐 

𝒅𝒙⃗𝒙⃗𝒚 − 𝒙⃗𝟐 

OR 

Q.23. Find particular solution of differential equation (𝒕𝒂𝒏−𝟏𝒚 − 𝒙⃗)𝒅𝒚 = (𝟏 + 𝒚𝟐)𝒅𝒙⃗, given that 𝒙⃗ = 𝟏 when 𝒚 = 𝟎. 

Q.24. Find the distance of the point P(3, 4, 4) from the point, where the line joining the points A(3, -4, -5) & B(2, -3, 

1) intersects the plane 𝟐𝒙⃗ + 𝒚 + 𝒛 = 𝟕. 6 marks 

Q. 25. A company manufactures three kinds of calculators: A, B & C in its two factories I & II. The company has got an 

order for manufacturing at least 6400 calculators of kind C. The daily output of factory I is of 50 calculators of kind A, 

50 calculators of kind B & 30 calculators of kind C, The daily output of factory II is of 40 calculators of kind A, 20 of 

kind B & 40 of kind C. The cost per day to run factory I is Rs 12,000 & of factory II is Rs 15,000. How many days do the 

two factory have to be in operation to produce the order with the minimum cost ? formulate this problem as an LPP 

& solve it graphically. 6 marks 

Q. 26. In a factory which manufactures bolts, machines A, B & C manufacture respectively 30%, 50% & 20% of the 

bolts. Of their outputs 3, 4 & 1 percent respectively are defective bolts. A bolt is drawn at room from the product & 

is found to be defective. find the probability that this is not manufactured by machine B. 6 marks 
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12th CBSE- MATHEMATICS | PAPERSET-4 | 
QUESTIONS - 26 

THE MARKS ARE MENTIONED ON EACH QUESTION 
SECTION – A 

Question number 1 to 6 carry 1 mark 
Q.1. If 𝒙⃗∈𝑵& |𝒙⃗ + 𝟑−𝟐| = 𝟖, then find the value of 𝒙⃗. 1 mark 

 −𝟑𝒙⃗𝟐𝒙⃗ 

Q.2. Use elementary column operation 𝑪𝟐 → 𝑪𝟐 + 𝟐𝑪𝟏 in the following matrix equation: 

(𝟐𝟏) = (𝟑𝟏) (𝟏𝟎). 1 mark 

𝟐𝟎 𝟐𝟎−𝟏𝟏 

Q.3. Write the number of all possible matrices of order 𝟐×𝟐 with each entry 𝟏, 𝟐or 𝟑. 1 mark 

Q.4. Write the position vector of the point which divides the join of points with positionvectors 𝟑𝒂   − 𝟐𝒃⃗  &𝟐𝒂  + 

𝟑𝒃⃗   in the ratio 𝟐∶𝟏. 1 mark 

Q.5. Write the number of vectors of unit length perpendicular to both the vectors of unitlength perpendicular to 

both the vectors 𝒂   = 𝟐𝒊 ̂ + 𝒋 ̂ + 𝟐𝒌 ̂ &𝒃⃗   = 𝒋 ̂ +𝒌 ̂ . 1 mark 

Q.6. Find the vector equation of the plane with intercepts 𝟑, −𝟒&𝟐 on 𝒙⃗, 𝒚&𝒛–𝐚𝐱𝐢𝐬respectively. 1 mark 

SECTION – B 

Question numbers 7 to 19 carry 4 marks each. 

Q.7. Find the coordinates of the point where the line through the points A (3, 4, 1) & B (5,1, 6) crosses the XZ plane. 

Also find the angle which this line makes with the XZplane. 4 marks 

Q.8. The two adjacent sides of parallelogram are 𝟐𝒊 ̂ − 𝟒𝒋 ̂ − 𝟓𝒌 ̂ &𝟐𝒊 ̂ + 𝟐𝒋 ̂ + 𝟑𝒌 ̂ . Find thetwo unit vectors parallel to 

its diagonals. Using the diagonal vectors, find the area ofthe parallelogram. 4 marks 

Q.9. In a game, a man wins Rs5 for getting a number greater than 4 & loses Rs1otherwise, when a fair die is thrown. 

The man decided to throw a die thrice but to quitas & when he gets a number greater than 4. Find the expected 

value of the amounthe win/lose. 4 marks 

OR 

Q.9. A bag contains 4 balls. Two balls are drawn at room (without replacement) &are found to be white. What is the 

probability that all balls in the bag are white? 

Q.10. Differentiate 𝒙⃗𝐬𝐢𝐧𝒙⃗ + (𝐬𝐢𝐧𝒙⃗)𝐜𝐨𝐬𝒙⃗ with respect to 𝒙⃗. 4 marks 

OR 

Q.10. If 𝒚 = 𝟐𝐜𝐨𝐬(𝐥𝐨𝐠𝟑) + 𝟑𝐬𝐢𝐧(𝐥𝐨𝐠𝒙⃗), prove that 

𝒙⃗𝟐𝒅𝟐𝒚 + 𝒙⃗𝒅𝒚 + 𝒚 = 𝟎. 

      𝒅𝒙⃗𝟐𝒅𝒙⃗ 

Q.11. If 𝒙⃗ = 𝒂𝐬𝐢𝐧𝟐𝒕 (𝟏 + 𝐜𝐨𝐬𝟐𝒕) &𝒚 = 𝒃⃗𝐜𝐨𝐬𝟐𝒕 (𝟏 − 𝐜𝐨𝐬𝟐𝒕), find 𝒅𝒚at 𝒕 = 𝝅. 4 marks 

       𝒅𝒙⃗𝟒 

Q.12. The equation to tangent at (2, 3) on the curve 𝒚𝟐 = 𝒂𝒙⃗𝟑 + 𝒃⃗ is 𝒚 = 𝟒𝒙⃗ − 𝟓. Find the values of 𝒂&𝒃⃗. 4 marks 

Q.13. Find: 4 marks 

∫𝒙⃗𝟐𝒅𝒙⃗ 

𝒙⃗𝟒 + 𝒙⃗𝟐 − 𝟐 
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Q.14. Evaluate: 4 marks 

∫𝝅/𝟐
𝟎𝐬𝐢𝐧𝟐𝒙⃗𝒅𝒙⃗ 

𝐬𝐢𝐧𝒙⃗ + 𝐜𝐨𝐬𝒙⃗ 

OR 

Q.14. Evaluate: 

∫𝟑/𝟐
𝟎|𝒙⃗𝐜𝐨𝐬𝝅𝒙⃗| 𝒅𝒙⃗ 

 

Q.15. Find: 4 marks 

∫(𝟑𝒙⃗ + 𝟏) √𝟒 − 𝟑𝒙⃗ − 𝟐𝒙⃗𝟐𝒅𝒙⃗ 

Q.16. Solve the differential equation: 4 marks 

𝒚 + 𝒙⃗𝒅𝒚= 𝒙⃗–𝒚𝒅𝒚 

𝒅𝒙⃗𝒅𝒙⃗ 

Q.17. From the differential equation, the family of circle in second quadrate &touching the coordinate axes. 4 marks 

Q.18. Solve the equation for 𝒙⃗: 4 marks 

𝐬𝐢𝐧−𝟏𝒙⃗ + 𝐬𝐢𝐧−𝟏(𝟏 − 𝒙⃗) = 𝐜𝐨𝐬−𝟏𝒙⃗. 

OR 

If 𝐜𝐨𝐬−𝟏𝒙⃗ + + 𝐜𝐨𝐬−𝟏𝒚= 𝜶, 

𝒂 𝒃⃗ 

Prove that: 

𝒙⃗𝟐− 𝟐𝒙⃗𝒚𝐜𝐨𝐬𝜶 +𝒚𝟐= 𝐬𝐢𝐧𝟐𝜶. 

𝒂𝟐𝒂𝒃⃗ 𝒃⃗𝟐 

Q.19. A trust invested some money in two type of bonds. The first bond pays 10% interest & second bond pays 12% 

interest. The trust received Rs2,800 as interest. However, if trust had interchanged money in bonds, they would have 

got Rs100 as interest. Using matrix method find the amount invested by the trust. Interest received on thisamount 

will be given to Helpage India as donation. Which value is reflected in this questions? 4 marks 

SECTION – C 

Question numbers 20 to 26 carry 6 marks each. 

Q.20. There are two types of fertilizers ‘A’ & ‘B’. ‘A’ consists of 12% nitrogen & 5% phosphoric acid whereas ‘B’ 

consist of 4% nitrogen & 5% phosphoric acid. After testing the soil conditions, farmer finds that he needs at least 12 

kg of nitrogen &12 kg of phosphoric acid for his crops. If ‘A’ costs Rs 10 per kg & ‘B’ cost Rs 8 per kg, then graphically 

determine how much of each type of fertilizer should be used so that nutrient requirements are met at a minimum 

cost. 6 marks 

Q.21. Five bad oranges are accidently mixed with 20 good ones. If four oranges are drawn one by one successively 

with replacement, then find the probability distribution of number of bad oranges drawn. Hence, find the mean & 

variance of the distribution. 6 marks 

Q.22. Find the position vector of the foot of perpendicular & the perpendicular distance from the point P with 

position vector 𝟐𝒊 ̂ + 𝟑𝒋 ̂ + 𝟒𝒌 ̂ to the plane 𝒓  . (𝟐𝒊 ̂ + 𝒋 ̂ + 𝟑𝒌 ̂) − 𝟐𝟔 = 𝟎. Also find image of P in the plane. 6 marks 
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Q.23. Show that the binary operation * on A = R – {-1} defined as a * b = a + b + ab for all a, b, 𝜺 A is commutative & 

associative on A. Also find the identity element of * in A & prove that every element of A is invertible. 6 marks 

Q.24. Prove that least perimeter of isosceles triangle in which a circle of radius 𝒓 can be inscribed is 𝟔√𝟑𝒓. 6 marks 

OR 

Q.24. If the sum of lengths of hypotenuse & a side of right angled triangle is given, show that area of tringle is 

maximum, when the angle between them is 𝝅/3. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Q.25. Prove that the curves 𝒚𝟐 = 𝟒𝒙⃗&𝒙⃗𝟐 = 𝟒𝒚, 𝒚 = 𝟒&𝒚 = 𝟎 into three equal parts. 6 marks 

Q.26. using properties or determinants, show that Δ𝐀𝐁𝐂 is isosceles if: 6 marks 

 𝟏  𝟏  𝟏 

𝟏 + 𝐜𝐨𝐬  𝐀𝟏 + 𝐜𝐨𝐬 𝐁𝟏 + 𝐜𝐨𝐬𝐂 = 𝟎    

𝐜𝐨𝐬𝟐𝐀 + 𝐜𝐨𝐬𝐀 𝐜𝐨𝐬𝟐𝐁 + 𝐜𝐨𝐬𝐁 𝐜𝐨𝐬𝟐𝐂 + 𝐜𝐨𝐬𝐂 

OR 

Q.26. A shopkeeper has 3 varieties of pens ‘A’, ‘B’ & ‘C’. Meenu purchased 1 pen of each variety for a total of Rs 21. 

Jeevan purchased 4 pens of ‘A’ variety, 3 pens of ‘B’ variety & 2 pens of ‘C’ variety for Rs 60. While Shikha purchased 

6 pens of ‘A’ variety, 2 pens of ‘B’ variety & 3 pens of ‘C’ variety for Rs 70. Using matrix method, find cost of each 

variety of pen. 
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12th CBSE- MATHEMATICS | PAPERSET-5 | 
QUESTIONS - 29 

THE MARKS ARE MENTIONED ON EACH QUESTION 
SECTION – A 

Question numbers 1 to 4 carry 7 mark each. 
1. Determine the value of ‘K’ for which the following function is continuous at x = 3 : 

𝒇(𝒙⃗) = { (𝒙⃗ + 𝟑)𝟐. 𝒙⃗ ≠ 𝟑 

 𝒙⃗ − 𝟑 

 𝒌 , 𝒙⃗ = 𝟑 

2. 𝑰𝒇𝒇𝒐𝒓𝒂𝒏𝒚𝟐𝐱𝟐𝒔𝒒𝒖𝒂𝒓𝒆𝒎𝒂𝒕𝒓𝒊𝒙⃗𝑨, 𝑨(𝒂𝒅𝒋𝑨) = [𝟖 𝟎] , 𝒕𝒉𝒆𝒏𝒘𝒓𝒊𝒕𝒆𝒗𝒂𝒍𝒖𝒆𝒐𝒇 |𝑨|. 

      𝟎 𝟖 

3. Find the distance between the planes 2x - y + 2z = 5 & 5x – 2.5y + 5z=20. 

4. Find: 

∫ 𝒔𝒊𝒏𝟐𝒙⃗ − 𝒄𝒐𝒔𝟐𝐱𝒅𝒙⃗ 

𝒔𝒊𝒏𝐱𝐜𝐨𝐬𝐱 

SECTION – B 

Question numbers 5 to 12 carry 2 marks each. 

5. Find: 

{ 𝒅𝐱 

𝟓 − 𝟖𝒙⃗ − 𝒙⃗𝟐 

6. Two tailors, A & B, earn Rs 300 & Rs400 per day respectively. A can stitch 6 shirts & 4 pairs of trousers while B can 

stitch 10 shirts &4 pairs of trousers per day. To find how many days should each of them work & if it is desired to 

produce at least 60 shirts & 32 pairs of trousers at a minimum labour cost, formulate this as an LPP. 

7. A die, whose faces are marked 1, 2,3 in red & 4,5,6 in green, is tossed. Let A be the event "number obtained is 

even" & B be the event "number obtained is red". Find if A & B are independent events. 

8. The x-coordinate of a point on the line joining the points P(2,2, 1) & Q(5, 1, -2) is 4. Find its z-coordinate. 

9. Show that the function f(x) = 𝒙⃗𝟑 − 𝟑𝒙⃗𝟐 + 𝟔𝒙⃗ − 𝟏𝟎𝟎 is increasing on R. 

10. Find the value of c in Rolle’s theorem for the function 𝒇(𝒙⃗) = 𝒙⃗𝟑 − 𝟑𝒙⃗𝒊𝒏[−√𝟑, 𝟎]. 

11. if A is a skew – symmetric matrix of order 3, then prove that det A = 0. 

12. The volume of a sphere is increasing at the rate of 8 cm3/s. Find the rate at which its surface area is increasing 

when the radius of the sphere is 12 cm. 

SECTION – C 

13. There are 4 cards numbered 1, 3, 5 & 7, one number on one card. Two cards are drawn at r&om without 

replacement. Let X denote the sum of the numbers on the two cards. Find the mean & variance of X. 

14. Show that the points A, B, C with position vectors 𝟐𝒊 ̂− 𝒋 ̂+𝒌 ̂ , 𝒊 ̂ − 𝟑𝒋 ̂− 𝟓𝒌 ̂ 𝒂𝒏𝒅𝟑𝒊 ̂− 𝟒𝒋 ̂−𝟒𝒌 ̂ respectively, are the 

vertices of a right – angled triangle. Hence find the area of the triangle. 

15. Of the students in a school, it is known that 30% have l00% attendance & 70% students are irregular' Previous 

year results report that 70% of all students who have 100% attendance attain A grade & 10% irregular students 

attain A grade in their annual examination' At the end' of the year, one student is chosen at random from the school 
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& he was found to have an A grade' What is the probability that the student has 100% attendance? Is regularity 

required' only in school? Justify your answer. 

16. 𝑰𝒇𝒕𝒂𝒏−𝟏𝒙⃗−𝟑+ 𝒕𝒂𝒏−𝟏𝒙⃗+𝟑= 𝝅, 𝒕𝒉𝒆𝒏𝒇𝒊𝒏𝒅𝒕𝒉𝒆𝒗𝒂𝒍𝒖𝒆𝒐𝒇𝒙⃗. 

 𝒙⃗−𝟒  𝒙⃗+𝟒𝟒 

17. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

18. 𝒊𝒇𝒙⃗𝒚 + 𝒚𝒙⃗ = 𝒂𝒃⃗, 𝒕𝒉𝒆𝒏𝒇𝒊𝒏𝒅𝒅𝒚 

   𝒅𝒙⃗ 

OR 

𝒊𝒇𝒆𝒚(𝒙⃗ + 𝟏), 𝒕𝒉𝒆𝒏𝒔𝒉𝒐𝒘𝒕𝒉𝒂𝒕𝒅𝟐𝒚= (𝒅𝒚)𝟐 

   𝒅𝒙⃗𝟐𝒅𝒙⃗ 

19. Evaluate: 

∫𝒙⃗
0𝒙⃗𝒕𝒂𝒏𝒙⃗𝒅𝒙⃗ 

𝒔𝒆𝒄𝒙⃗ + 𝒕𝒂𝒏𝒙⃗ 

OR 

19. Evaluate: 

∫4
1{|𝒙⃗ − 𝟏| + |𝒙⃗ − 𝟐| + |𝒙⃗ − 𝟒|}𝒅𝒙⃗ 

 

20. solve the following linear programming problem graphically:  

Maximise Z = 7x + 10y  

Subject to the constraints 4x + 6y ≤ 240 

6x + 3y ≤ 240 

𝒙⃗ ≥ 𝟏𝟎 

X ≥ 𝟎, 𝒚 ≥ 𝟎 

21. Find: 

∫        𝒆𝒙⃗𝒅𝒙⃗ 

(𝒆𝒙⃗ − 𝟏)𝟐(𝒆𝒙⃗ + 𝟐) 

22. 

 

 

23. Find the general solution of the differential equation. 

𝒅𝒚− 𝒚 = 𝐬𝐢𝐧𝒙⃗. 

      𝒅𝒙⃗ 
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SECTION – D 

Question numbers 24 to 29 carry 6 marks each 

24. Using the method of integration, find the area of the triangle ABC, coordinates of whose vertices are A (4, 1), B 

(6,6) & C (8, 4). 

OR 

24. Find the area enclosed between the parabola 4y = 𝟑𝒙⃗𝟐& the straight line 3 – 2y + 12 =0. 

 

25. find the particular solution of the differential equation (x -y) 𝒅𝒚= (𝒙⃗ + 𝟐𝒚), 𝒕𝒉𝒂𝒕𝒚 =𝟎𝒘𝒉𝒆𝒏𝒙⃗ = 𝟏. 

        𝒅𝒙⃗ 

26. 

 

 

 

 

 

27. 

 

 

 

 

28. 𝒊𝒇𝑨 = 

( 𝟐 −𝟑 𝟓)  

𝟑 𝟐 −𝟒 

𝟏 𝟏 −𝟐 

𝒕𝒉𝒆𝒏𝒇𝒊𝒏𝒅𝑨−𝟏&𝒔𝒐𝒍𝒗𝒆𝒔𝒚𝒔𝒕𝒆𝒎𝒐𝒇 𝒍𝒊nes 𝒂𝒓𝒆𝒒𝒖𝒂𝒕𝒊𝒐𝒏𝒔𝟐𝒙⃗ −𝟑𝒚 + 𝟓𝒛 = 𝟏𝟏, 𝟑𝒙⃗ + 𝟐𝒚 − 𝟒𝒛 = −𝟓&𝒙⃗ + 𝒚 − 𝟐𝒛 = −𝟑. 

29. A window is in the form of a rectangle surmounted by a semi-circular opening. The total perimeter of the 

window is 10 m. Find the dimensions of the window to admit maximum light the whole opening. 
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12th CBSE- ECONOMICS | PAPERSET-1 | 
QUESTIONS - 32 

THE MARKS ARE MENTIONED ON EACH QUESTION 
SECTION-A 

Q. 1. Define microeconomics. 1 marks 
 
Q. 2. Give one reason for a shift in demand curve. 1 marks 
 
Q. 3. what is the behavior of Total variable cos! as output increases? 1 marks 
 
Q. 4. What causes a downward movement along a supply curve? 1 marks 
 
Q. 5. What is a price-maker firm? 1 marks 
 
Q. 6. Define Production Possibility Curve. Explain why it is downward sloping from left to right. 1 marks 
 
Q. 7. A consumer consumes only two goods X & Y & is in equilibrium. price of X falls. Explain the reaction of the 
consumer through the utility Analysis. 3 marks 
 
Q. 8. Draw Total Variable Cost, Total Cost, & Total Fixed cost curves in a single diagram. 3 marks 
 
Q. 9. A producer starts a business by investing his own savings & hiring the labor. Identify implicit & explicit costs 
from this information. Explain. 5 marks 
 
Q.10. Explain the implication of large number of sellers in a perfectly competitive market. 3 marks 

OR 
Q.10. Explain why there are only a few firms in an oligopoly market. 
 
Q. 11. Define an indifference curve. Explain why an indifference curve is downward sloping from left to right. 4 marks 
 
Q.12. A consumer buys 10 units of a commodity at a price of Rs10 per unit. He incurs an expenditure of Rs200 on 
buying 20 units. Calculate price elasticity of dem& by the percentage method. comment upon the shape of dem& 
curve based on this information. 4 marks 
 
Q.13. what does the Law of variable Proportions show? state the behavior marginal product according to this law. 

OR 
Q.13. Explain how changes in prices of inputs influence the supply of a product. 
 
Q. 14. Explain the difference between: 6 marks 
(i) inferior goods & normal goods & 
(ii) cardinal utility & ordinal utility. Give example in each case. 
 
Q.15. Explain the distinction between "change in quantity supplied" &" change in supply" Use diagram. 6 marks 
 
Q.16. Market for a good is in equilibrium. There is simultaneous "decrease" both in dem&& supply but there is no 
change in market price. Explain with the help of a diagram how it is possible. 6 marks 

OR 
Q.16. Market for a good is in equilibrium. Explain the chain of reactions in the market if the price is (i) higher than 
equilibrium price & (ii) lower than equilibrium price. 6 marks 

SECTION-B 
Q. 17. Define flow variable. 1 marks 
 
Q. 18. Define consumption goods. 1 marks 
 
Q. 19. What are time deposits? 1 marks 
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Q. 20. Define a 'direct tax'. 1 marks 
Q. 21. What is a flexible exchange rate? 1 marks 
 
Q. 22. Find Net Value Added at Market Price: 3 marks 
(i) Depreciation (Rs) 700 
(ii) Output sold (units) 900 
(iii) Price per unit of output (Rs) 40 
(iv) Closing stock (Rs) 1000 
(v) Opening stock (Rs) 800 
(vi) Sales tax (Rs) 3,000 
(vii) Intermediate cost (Rs) 20,000 
 
Q. 23. Explain the 'st&ard of deferred payment' function of money. 3 marks 
 
Q.24. Outline the steps taken in deriving Consumption Curve from the Saving Curve. Use diagram. 3 marks 
 
Q. 25. Find Consumption Expenditure from the following: 3 marks 
National Income = Rs5,000 
Autonomous Consumption = Rs1,000 
Marginal Propensity to consume = Rs0.80 
 
Q. 26. Distinguish between Revenue Receipts & Capital Receipts in a Government Budget. Give example in each case. 
3 marks 

OR 
Q.26. Explain the role of government budget in bringing economic stability. 
 
Q. 27. Should the following be treated as final expenditure or intermediate expenditure? Give reasons for your 
answer. 4 marks 
(i) Purchase of furniture by a firm. 
(ii) Expenditure on maintenance by a firm. 
Q. 28. Explain the 'lender of last resort’ function of the central bank. 4 marks 

OR 
Q.28. Explain 'government’s banker’ function of the central bank. 
 
Q. 29. Explain the concept of 'fiscal deficit' in a government budget. What does it indicate? 4 marks 
 
Q.30. Find out (i) Gross National product at Market price & (ii) Net Current Transfers from Abroad: 6 marks 
(Rs crore) 
(i) Private final consumption expenditure 1,000      (ii) Depreciation 100 
(iii) Net national disposable income 1,500      (iv) Closing stock. 20 
(v) Government final consumption expenditure 300     (vi) Net Indirect tax 50 
(viii) Net domestic fixed capital formation 110      (vii) Opening stock 20 
(x) Net factor income to abroad (-) 10       (ix) Net exports 15 
 
Q. 31. How will you treat the following while estimating national income of India? 6 marks 
(a) Dividend received by an Indian from his investment in shares of a foreign company. 
(b) Money received by family in India from relatives working abroad. 
(c) Interest received on loans given to a friend for purchasing a car. 

OR 
Q.31. Explain the concept of 'deflationary gap'. Also explain the role of 'margin requirements' in reducing it. 
 
Q.32. Give the meaning of 'foreign exchange' & 'foreign exchange rate'. Giving reason, explain the relation between 
foreign exchange rate & dem& for foreign exchange. 6 marks 
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12th CBSE- ECONOMICS | PAPERSET-2 |  
QUESTIONS - 31 

THE MARKS ARE MENTIONED ON EACH QUESTION 
SECTION-A 

Q. 1. Define marginal revenue. 1 mark 
 
Q. 2. What does a rightward shift of demand curve indicate? 1 mark 
 
Q. 3. Under which market form is a firm a price taker? 1 mark 
 
Q.4. when is the dem& for a good said to be perfectly inelastic? 1 mark 
 
Q. 5. Give one reason for an “increase” in supply of a commodity. 1 mark 
 
Q. 6. Explain the effect of fall in prices of other goods on the supply of a given good. 3 marks 
 
Q. 7. A firm supplies 10 units of a good at a price of Rs5 per unit. Price elasticity of supply is 1.25. What quantity will 
the firm supply at a price of Rs7 per unit? 3 marks 
 
Q. 8. Explain the significance of the 'store of value' function money. 3 marks 
 
Q. 9. From the following table, find out the level of output at which the producer will be in 
equilibrium. Give reasons for your answer. 3 marks 
Q. 10. Why can a firm not earn abnormal profits under perfect competition in the long run? Explain. 3 marks 

OR 
Q.10. Why is the dem& curve of a firm under monopolistic competition more elastic than under monopoly? Explain. 
 
Q. 11. Equilibrium price of an essential medicine is to high. Explain what possible steps can be taken to bring down 
the equilibrium price but only through the market forces. Also explain the series of changes that will occur in the 
market. 4 marks 
 
Q.12. Explain the meaning of opportunity cost with the help of production possibility schedule. 4 marks 

OR 
Q.12. with the help of suitable example explain the problem of ‘How to produce’. 
 
Q.13. A 5 percent fall in the price of a good raises its dem& from 300 units to 3l8 units. Calculate its price elasticity of 
dem&. 4 marks 
 
Q. 14. Explain three properties of indifference curves. 6 marks 

OR 
Q.14. Explain the conditions of consumer's equilibrium under indifference curve approach. 
 
Q.15. If equilibrium Price of a good is greater than its market price, explain all the changes that will take place in the 
market. use diagram. 6 marks 
 
Q. 16. Giving reasons, state whether the following statements are true or false: (i) Average product will increase only 
when marginal product increases. 6 marks 
(ii) with increase in level of output, average fixed cost goes on falling tilt it reaches zero. (iii) Under diminishing 
returns to a factor, total product continues to increase till marginal product reaches zero. 

 
SECTION – B 

Q. 17. Give two examples of intermediate goods. 1 mark 
 
Q. 18. State the components of supply of money. 1 mark 
 
Q. 19. What ore step can be taken through market to reduce the consumption of product harmful for health? 1 mark 
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Q. 20. How can Reserve Bank of India help in bringing down the foreign exchange rate which is very high? 1 mark 
Q. 21. What is revenue deficit? 1 mark 
 
Q. 22. Explain the 'medium of exchange, function of money. 3 marks 

OR 
Q.22. Explain the 'lender of last resort, function of central bank. 
 
Q.23. Distinguish between revenue receipts & capital receipts. Give an example each. 3 marks 
 
Q.24. How can budgetary policy be used inequalities of income? 3 marks 
 
Q. 25. Explain the effect of depreciation of domestic currency on exports. 3 marks 
 
Q.26. How is exchange rate determined in the foreign exchange market? Explain. 3 marks 
 
Q.27. Calculate 'Sales ‘from the following data: 4 marks 
(Rs in lakhs) 
(i) Subsidies 200   (ii) Opening stock 100   (iii) Closing stock 600 
(iv) Intermediate consumption 3,000 (v) Consumption of fixed capital 700 (vi) Profit 750 
(vii) Net value added at factor cost 2,000 
 
Q. 28. Distinguish between stocks & flows. Give two examples of each. 4 marks 
 
Q.29. Explain the credit creation role of commercial banks with the help ofexample. 4 marks 
 
Q. 30. From the data given below about an economy, calculate (a) investment expenditure & (b) consumption 
expenditure. 6 Marks 
(i) Equilibrium level of income 5,000 
(ii) Autonomous Consumption 500 
(iii) Marginal Propensity to Consume 0.4 
 
Q.31. Explain the meaning of under – employment equilibrium. Explain tow measures by which full-employment 
equilibrium can be reached. 6 Marks 
 
Q.32. Calculate "Gross National Disposable Income" from the following data: 6 Marks 
(Rs in lakh) 
(i) Net domestic product at factor cost 3,000 
(ii) Indirect taxes 300 
(iii) Net current transfers from rest of the world 250 
(iv) Current Transfers from the government 100 
(v) Net factor income to abroad 150 
(vi) Consumption of fixed capital 200 
(vii) Subsidies 100 
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12th CBSE- ECONOMICS | PAPERSET-3 |  
QUESTIONS - 32 

THE MARKS ARE MENTIONED ON EACH QUESTION 
SECTION-A 

Q.1. The government has started promoting foreign capital. What is its economic value in the context of Production 
Possibilities Frontier? 1 mark 
 
Q. 2. Define indifference curve. 1 mark 
 
Q.3. Define marginal product. 1 mark. 
 
Q. 4. What is market supply of a product? 1 mark 
 
Q. 5. What is imperfect oligopoly? 1 mark 
 
Q. 6. Why is Production Possibilities Curve concave? Explain. 3 marks 
 
Q.7. When the price of a good falls from Rs10 to Rs8 per 20 units to 24 units. What can you say about price elasticity 
of dem& of the good through the 'expenditure approach? 3 marks 
 
Q. 8. Explain how technological progress is a determinant of supply of a good by a firm. 3 marks 

OR 
Q.8. Explain how input prices are a determinant of supply of a good by a firm. 
 
Q. 9. Why is Average Revenue always equal to price? 3 marks 
 
Q. 10. Why is the number of firms small in oligopoly? Explain. 3 marks 
 
Q. 11. A consumer consumes only two goods X & Y & is in equilibrium. Show that when the price of good X rises, the 
consumer buys less of good X. Use utility analysis. 4 marks 
 
Q. 12. Give the meaning of “inferior" good & explain the same with the help of an explain. 4 marks 
 
Q. 13. Giving reasons, explain the 'Law of Variable Proportions. 4 marks 
 
Q.14. Explain why is an indifference curve (a) downward sloping & (b) convex. 6 marks 

 
Q. 15. From the following information about a firm, find the firms equilibrium output in 6 marks 

OUTPUT (UNITS) TOTAL REVENUE (RS.) TOTAL COST (RS.) 

1 6 7 

2 12 13 

3 18 17 

4 24 23 

5 30 31 

 
Q.16. Explain the significance of the ‘st&ard of Deferred Payment function of money. 6 marks 

SECTION – B 
Q. 17. What are time deposits? 1 mark 
 
Q.18. Define inflationary gap. 1 mark 
 
Q.19. What is full employment? 1 mark 
 
Q.20. Define fiscal deficit. 1 mark 
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Q.21. Define foreign exchange rate. 1 mark 
 
Q. 22. What are externalities? Give an example of a positive externality, its impact on welfare of the people. 3 marks 
 
Q. 23. Explain the significance of the unit of Account function of money. 3 marks 
 
Q.24. Is the following a revenue receipt or a capital receipt in the context of government budget & why? 3 marks 
(i) Tax receipts          (ii) Disinvestment 
 
Q.25. Explain the concept of 'Marginal Rate of Substitution' with the help of a numerical example. Also, explain its 
behavior along an indifference curve. 3 marks 
 
Q. 26. Foreign exchange rate in India is on the rise recently. What impact it likely to have on exports & how? 3 marks 
 
Q.27. Explain Banker to the Government ‘function of the central bank. 4 marks 

OR 
Q.27. Explain ‘Bankers' Bank' function of the central bank. 
 
Q.28. Calculate Marginal Propensity to Consume from the following data about an economy which is in equilibrium: 
4 marks 
National income = 3,000 
Autonomous consumption expenditure = 200 
Investment expenditure = 100 
 
Q. 29. Tax rates on higher income group have been increased. Which economic value does it reflects? Explain. 4 
marks 
 
Q. 30. Calculate 'Net National Product at Factor Cost' &'Gross National Disposable Inc. from the following: 6 marks 
         (Rs in Arab) 
(i) Social security contributions by enplums     90 
(ii) Wages & salaries        800 
(iii) Net current transfers to abroad (-)      30 
(iv) Rent & royalty        300 
(v) Net factor income to abroad       50 
(vi) Social security contributions by employers     100 
(vii) Profit        500 
(viii) Interest         400 
(ix) Consumption of fixed capital      200 
(x) Net indirect tax        250 
 
Q. 31. How should the following be treated in estimating national income of a country? You must give reason for 
your answer. 6 marks 
(i) Taking care of aged parent     (ii) Payment of corporate tax 
(iii) Expenditure on providing police services by the government 
 
Q. 32. When is an economy in equilibrium? Explain with the help of Saving & investment functions. Also, explain the 
changes that take place in an economy when the economy is not in equilibrium. Use diagram. 6 marks 

OR 
Q.32. Outline the steps required to be taken in deriving the Consumption Curve from the given Saving Curve. use 
diagram. 
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12th CBSE- ECONOMICS | PAPERSET-4 | 
QUESTIONS - 29 

THE MARKS ARE MENTIONED ON EACH QUESTION 
SECTION-A 

Q.1. Define indifference curve. 1 marks 
 
Q.2.lf due to fall in the price of good X. dem& for good Y rises, the two goods are: (Choose correct alternative) 1 
marks 
(a) substitutes   (b) Complements  (c) Not related   (d) Competitive 
 
Q.3.If Marginal Rate of Substitution is increasing throughout, the Indifference Curve will be: (Choose the Correct 
alternative) 1 marks 
(a) Downward sloping convex (b) Downward sloping concave  
(c) Downward sloping straight (d) Upward sloping convex 
 
Q. 4. Give reason comment on the shape of Production Possibilities Curve based on the Following schedule: 3 marks 

Good X (Units)  Good Y (units) 
0 30 

1 27 

2 21 

3 12 

4 0 

Q.5. What is likely to be the impact of "Make in India" appeal to the foreign investors by the Prime Minister of India, 
on the production possibilities frontier of India? Explain. 3 marks 

OR 
Q.7. In a perfectly competitive market the buyers treat products of all the firms as homogeneous. Explain the 
significance of this feature. 3 marks 
 
Q. 8. What are the effects of 'price-floor’ (minimum price ceiling) on the market of a good? Use diagram. 3 marks 
 
Q. 9. A consumer spends Rs1,000 on a good priced at Rs10 per unit. When its price Falls by 20 percent, the consumer 
spends Rs800 on the good. Calculate the price elasticity of dem& by the Percentage method. 4 marks 
 
Q. 10. What is the behavior of (a) Average Fixed Cost & (b) Average Variable Cost as 
more & more units of a good are produced? 4 marks 

OR 
Q.10. Define Average Revenue. Show that Average Revenue & Price are same. 
 
Q. 11. A consumer consumes only two good X & Y, both priced at Rs2 per unit. If the consumer chooses a 
combination of the two goods with Marginal Rate of Substitution equal to 2, is the consumer in equilibrium? Why or 
why not? What will a rational consumer do in this situation? Explain. 6 marks 

OR 
Q.11. A consumer consumes only two good X & Y whose prices are Rs5 & Rs4 respectively. If the consumer chooses a 
combination of the two goods with marginal utility of X equal to 4 & that of Y equal to 5, is the consumer in 
equilibrium? Why or why not? What will a rational consumer do in this situation? Use utility analysis. 
 
Q.12. What are the different phases in the Law of Variable Proportions in terms of marginal product? Give reason 
behind each phase. Use diagram. 6 marks 
 
Q. 13. Explain why will a producer not be in equilibrium if the conditions of equilibrium are not met. 6 marks 
 
Q.14. Market for good is in equilibrium. The supply of good "decreases’’. Explain chain of effects of change. 6 marks 

SECTION-B 
Q.15. What is 'aggregate dem&’ in macroeconomics? 1 marks 
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Q.16. If MPC = 1, the value of multiplier is: (Choose the correct alternative) 1 marks 
(a) 0   (b) 1   (c) Between 0 & 1   (d)Infinity 
 
Q.17. Primary deficit in a government budget is: (Choose the correct alternative) 1 marks 
(a) Revenue expenditure - Revenue receipts (b) Total expenditure – Total receipts 
(c) Revenue deficit- Interest payments  (d) Fiscal deficit - Interest payments 
 
Q.18. Direct tax is called direct because it is collected directly from: (Choose the correct alternative) 1 marks 
(a) The producers on goods produced  (b) The sellers on goods sold 
(c) The buyers of goods    (d) The income earners 
 
Q. l9. Other things remaining the same, when in a country the market price of foreign currency falls, national income 
is likely: (Choose the correct alternative) 1 marks 
(a) to rise  (b) to fall  (c) to rise or to fall   (d) to remain unaffected 
 
Q. 20. If the Real GDP is Rs400 & Nominal GDP is Rs.450, calculate the Price Index (base=100) 3 marks 
 
Q. 21. What are fixed & flexible exchange rates? 3 marks 

OR 
Q.21. Explain the meaning of Managed Floating Exchange Rate. 
 
Q. 22. Where is 'borrowings from abroad' recorded in the Balance of Payments Accounts? Give reasons. 3 marks 
 
Q. 23. Explain the "Bankers' Bank function’’ of the central bank. 4 marks 

OR 
Q.23. Explain the "Bank of issue function" of the central bank. 
 
Q. 24. Currency is issued by the central bank, yet we say that commercial banks create money. Explain. How is this 
money creation by commercial banks likely to affect the national income? Explain. 4 marks 
 
Q.25. An economy is in equilibrium. Calculate the Investment Expenditure from the following: 4 marks 
National Income = 800  Marginal Propensity to Save = 0.3 Autonomous Consumption = 100 
 
Q.26. Giving reason explain how the following should be treated in estimation of national Income: 6 marks 
(i)Payment of interest by a firm to bank   (ii) Payment of interest by a bank to an individual 
(iii) Payment of interest by an individual to a bank 
 
Q.27.Whatis 'deficient demand'? Explain the role of 'Bank Rate' in removing it. 6 marks 

OR 
Q.27. What is 'excess demand'? Explain the role of 'Reverse Repo Rate' in removing it. 
 
Q.28. Explain how the government can be use the budgetary policy in reducing inequalities in incomes. 6 marks 
 
Q. 29. Calculate the 'National Income' & 'Private Income': 6 marks (Rs crores) 
(i) Rent       200 
(ii) Net factor income to abroad    10 
(iii) National debt interest     15 
(iv) Wages & salaries      700 
(v) Current transfers from government    10 
(vi) Undistributed profits     20 
(vii) Corporation tax      30 
(viii) Interest       150 
(ix) Social security contributions by employers   100 
(x) Net domestic product accruing to government  250 
(xi) Net current transfers to rest of the world  5 
(xii) Dividends       50 
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12th CBSE- ECONOMICS | PAPERSET-5 | 
QUESTIONS - 32 

THE MARKS ARE MENTIONED ON EACH QUESTION 
SECTION-A 

Q. 1. What is the relation between Average Variable Cost & Average total Cost, if Total Fixed Cost is zero? 1 marks 
 
Q. 2. A firm is able to sell any quantity of a good at a given price. The firm’s marginal revenue will be: (Choose the 
correct alternative) 1 marks 
(a) Greater than Average Revenue (b) Less than Average Revenue (c) Equal to Average Revenue (d) Zero 
 
Q. 3. When does ‘change in dem&’ take place? 1 marks 
 
Q. 4. Differentiated products is a characteristic of: 1 marks (Choose the correct alternative): 
(a) Monopolistic competition only.    (b) Oligopoly only  
(c) Both monopolistic competition & oligopoly  (d) Monopoly 
 
Q. 5. Demand curve of a firm is perfectly elastic under: 1 marks (choose the correct alternative) 
(a) Perfect competition  (b) Monopoly  (c) Monopolistic competition  (d) Oligopoly 
 
Q. 6. A consumer consumes only two goods X & Y. Marginal utilities of X & y are 3 & 4 respectively. Prices of X & Y 
are Rs 4 per unit each. Is consumer in equilibrium? what will be further reaction of the consumer? Give reasons. 3 
 
Q. 7. What will be the effect of 10 percent rise in price of a good on its dem& if price elasticity of dem& is (a) Zero, 
(b) -1, (C) -2. 3 marks 
Q. 8. What is minimum price ceiling? Explain its implications. 3 marks 

OR 
Q.8. If the prevailing market price is above the equilibrium price, explain its chain of effects. 
 
Q.9. Define dem&. Name the factors affecting market demand. 4 marks 
 
Q.10. Define fixed cost. Give an example. Explain with reason the behavior of Average Fixed Cost as output is 
increased. 4 marks 

OR 
Q.10. State the behavior of marginal product when only one input is increased & other inputs are held constant. 
 
Q.11. When price of a commodity falls from Rs12per unit to Rs9 per unit, the producer supplies 75 percent less 
output. Calculate price elasticity of supply. 4 marks 
 
Q.12. Why do central problems of an economy arise? Explain the central problem of "for whom to produce"? 6  
 
Q. 13. Explain three properties of indifference curves. 6 marks 
 
Q. 14. Examine the effect of (a) fall in the own price of good X & (b) rise in tax rate on good X, on the supply curve. 
Use diagrams. 6 marks 
 
Q. 15. Explain the implications of the following in a perfectly competitive market: 6 marks 
(a) Large number of sellers.    (b) Homogeneous products. 

OR 
Q.15. Explain the implications of the following in an oligopoly market: 
(a) Barriers to entry of new firms   (b) A few or a few big sellers. 

 
SECTION-B 

Q.16. Define flows. 1 marks 
 
Q.17. National income is the sum of factor incomes accruing to: 1 marks (Choose the correct alternative) 
(a) Nationals   (b) Economic territory  (c) Residents  (d) Both residents & non-residents 
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Q. 18. What are revenue receipts in a government budget? 1 marks 
 
Q. 19. Primary deficit equals: 1 marks (Choose the correct alternative) 
(a) Borrowings       (b) Interest payments 
(c) Borrowings less interest payments    (d) Borrowings & interest payments both 
 
Q.20. Foreign exchange transactions which are independent of other transactions in the Balance of Payments 
Account are called: 1 marks (Choose the correct alternative) 
(a) Current transactions     (b) Capital transactions 
(c) Autonomous transactions    (d) Accommodating transactions 
 
Q. 21. Assuming real income to be Rs200 crore & price index to be 135, calculate nominal income. 3 marks 
 
Q.22. What is aggregate demand? State its components. 3 marks 

OR 
Q.22. Explain how controlling money supply is helpful in reducing excess dem&. 
 
Q.23. An economy is in equilibrium. Calculate Marginal Propensity to Consume: 3 marks 
National income= 1000  Autonomous consumption expenditure = 200 Investment expenditure = 100 
 
Q. 24. Sale of petrol & diesel cars is rising particularly in big cities. Analyses its impact on gross domestic product & 
welfare. 4 marks 
 
Q. 25. Explain the 'medium of exchange' function of money. How has it solved the related problem created by 
barter? 4 marks 

OR 
Q.25. Explain the 'standard of deferred payment' function of money. How has it solved the related problem created 
by barter? 
 
Q. 26. Explain how 'Repo Rate' can be helpful in controlling credit creation. 4 marks 
 
Q.27. difference between revenue expenditure & capital expenditure? Explain how taxes & government expenditure 
can be used to influence distribution of income in the society. 6 marks 

OR 
Q.27. What is the difference between direct tax & indirect tax? Explain the role of government budget in influencing 
allocation of resources. 
 
Q. 28. Given saving curve, derive consumption curve & state the steps in doing so. Use diagram. 6 marks 
 
Q.29. Indian investors lend abroad. Answer the following questions: 6 marks 
(a) In which sub-a/c& on which side of the Balance of Payments Account such lending is recorded? Give reasons. 
(b) Explain the impact of this lending on market exchange rate. 
 
Q. 30. Find Cross National Product at Market Price & Private Income: 6 marks 
(i) Private final consumption expenditure     800 
(ii) Net current transfers to abroad      20 
(iii) Net factor income to abroad      (-)10 
(iv) Government final consumption expenditure     300 
(v) Net indirect tax        150 
(vi) Net domestic capital formation      200 
(vii) Current transfers from government      40 
(viii) Depreciation        100 
(ix) Net imports        30 
(x) Income accruing to government      90 
(xi) National debt interest       50 
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12th CBSE- BUSINESS STUDIES | PAPERSET-1 |  
QUESTIONS - 31 

THE MARKS ARE MENTIONED ON EACH QUESTION 
1. List any two organisational objectives of management. 1 

2. Give reason why principles of management do not provide readymade solution to all managerial problems. 1 

3. Volvo Ltd.’s target is to produce 10,000 shirts per month at a Cost of Rs. 100/- per shirt. The Production Manager 

achieved this target at a cost of Rs. 90/- per shirt. Do you think the ‘Production Manager’ is effective? Give one 

reason in support of your answer. 1 

4. State the objective of ‘Method Study’. 1 

5. Give anyone limitation of internal sources of recruitment. 1 

6. Name the method of training in which trainees learn on the equipments they will be using. 1 

7. Name the financial decision which will help a business man in opening a new branch of its business. 1 

8. “Cost of debt” is lower than cost of “Equity share capital”. Give reason why company can’t work with the debt. 1 

9. Which Act of Consumer Protection provides for the formation of ‘Consumer Protection Councils’ in every district & 

the State of the country? 1 

10. Why consumer protection is important for consumers? Give anyone reason. 1 

11. What is meant by ‘Planning’ ? List any two features of planning. 3 

12. Explain by giving any three reasons why delegation is important in an organisation. 3 

13. Explain when & why the need is felt for having a framework, within which managerial & operating tasks are 

performed to accomplish desired goals. Name this ‘framework’ also. 3 

14. Explain the following money market instruments: 3 

(a) Treasury Bill          (b) Commercial Paper 

15. What is meant by ‘Production concept’ of marketing? 3 

16. Explain “Policy” & “Procedure” as types of plans. 4 

17. Ayasha Ltd., assured their employees that inspite of recession no worker will be retrenched from the job. 4 

(i) Explain the type of incentive offered to the employees. (ii) Explain one more incentive of the same category. 

18. Explain the meaning & the objective of Financial Management. 4 

19. State any four advantages of formal organisation. 4 

20. Explain the following ‘Rights’ of Consumers: 4 

(i) Right to Safety         (ii) Right to Choose 

21. Is ‘management’ a full fledged ‘profession’? Give any three reasons in support of your answer. 5 

22. (i) Name & explain principle of management which requires judicious application of penalties by management. 

(ii) Name & explain the technique of scientific management which helps inestablishing interchangeability of 

manufactured parts & products. 2½ + 2½ = 5 

23. Explain any five impacts of Government Policy changes on Business & Industryin India. 5 

24. State any five functions of ‘Stock Exchange’. 5 
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25. ‘An important task in the marketing of goods relates to designing the label as it provides useful & detailed 

information about the product.’ In the light of the above statement draw a label for a ‘liquid soap’ & highlight the 

important information to be provided on it. 5 

26. Explain the process of staffing. 6 

OR 

26. Explain the process of selection of employees. 

27. ‘Motivation plays an important role in the success of management.’ Explain any four points of importance of 

motivation in the light of the statement. 6 

OR 

27. “Managerial functions cannot be carried out without an efficient system of communication.” Do you agree with 

this statement? Give any four reasons in support of your answer. 

28. Explain the process of controlling. 6 

OR 

28. Explain any four points highlighting the importance of controlling. 

29. What is meant by Dividend decision? State any four factors affecting the Dividend decision. 6 

OR 

29. What is meant by Financing decision? State any four factors affecting the financing decision. 

30. Name that element of marketing-mix which affects the revenue & profits of a firm. Explain any five factors which 

help in determining this element. 6   OR 

31. ‘Generally consumers prefer to buy goods directly from the producers but it is not always possible.’ Give 

reasons,why is it so by explaining four different factors responsible’ for this. 
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12th CBSE- BUSINESS STUDIES | PAPERSET-2 |  
QUESTIONS - 30 

THE MARKS ARE MENTIONED ON EACH QUESTION 
1. What is meant by ‘Management of People’? 1 

2. What is the objective of “Method Study” as a technique of Scientific Managemnent? 1 

3. What is included in “Political Environment” of the Business. Explain. 1 

4. Give the meaning of “Policy” as type of Plan. 1 

5. Give the meaning of ‘Authority’ as an element of Delegation. 1 

6. State any one advantage of ‘Formal Organization’. 1 

7. Why employess become lethargic when the organization uses internal sources of recruitment? State. 1 

8. ‘Recruitment’ is one of the specialized activity performed by human resource management. Mention any two 

other specialized activities of human resource management. 1 

9. Give an example of ‘Employee Recognition Programmes’ as a non-financial incentive. 1 

10. What is meant by ‘Encoding’ as an element of commnication. 1 

11. Define ‘Capital Structure’. 1 

12. How does ‘Inflation’ affect the working capital requirements of company? State. 1 

13. Rahim was working in an enterprise on daily wages basis. It was difficult for him to fulfill the basic needs for his 

family.His daughter fell ill. He had no money for his daugter;s treatment. To meet the expenses of her treatment, he 

participated in a cycle race and won the prize money. The cycle company offered hi a permanent pensionable job 

which he happily accepted. 

(i) By quoting the lines from the above para identify the needs of Rahim that are satisfied by the offer of cycle 

company. 3 

(ii) Also, Explain two other needs of rahim Followed by above that are still to be satisfied. 

14. How directing helps in efficient and effective functioning of the organization? Explain by giving any three points. 

15. ‘Financial Market plays an important role in the allocation of scarce resources in an economy by perorming 

various functions’. Explain any three functions of financial market. 3 

16. Crackers ltd. A fire cracker manufacturing company lanuched some new products on eve of Diwali which 

attracted many buyers. To meet the increased demand, The company employed children from nearby villages. 

Athough the product was in great demand, Appropriate safety warnings for use were not mentioned on the packets 

that led to many accidents.  3 

(i) Identify and expalain the important product related decision that was not taken into consideration by the 

company. 

(ii) Also identify any two values which were violated by the company. 

17. State any three points of importance of consumer protection form the point of view of consumers. 3 

18. Explain the following rigths of Consumers. 3 

(i) Right to be informed      (ii) Right to safety 

19. XYZ Power Ltd. Setup a factory for manufacturing solar lanterns in a remote village as there was no relaible 

supply of electricity in rural areas. The revenue earned by the company was sufficient to covet the cost and the risks. 
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The demand of lanterns was increasing day by day, so the company decided to increase the production to generate 

higher sales. For this they decided to employ people from neaeby villages as very few job opportunities were 

available in that area. The company also decided to open schools and creches for the children of its employees. 3 

(i) Identify and explain the objectives of management discussed above. 

(ii) State any two values which the company wanted to commnicate to the society. 

20. Why is the understanding of business-environment important for managers? Explain with the help of any four 

points. 

21. How is training of employees beneficial for the organization? State by giving any four reasons. 

22. Explain any four points that highlight the importance of financial-planning. 

23. Describe any five limitations of planning. 

24. Differentiate between ‘Capital-Market’ and ‘Money-Market’ on the following basis: 

(i) Participants   (ii) Instruments  (iii) Investment outlay  (iv) Duration (v) Liquidity 

25. Explain ‘Price’ as an element of marketing-mix. Also explain any four factors that affect the fixation of price of a 

product. 

26. Principles of Taylor and Fayol are mutually complementary. One believed that management should not close its 

ears to constructive suggestions made by the employees, While the other suggested that a good company should 

have an employee suggestion system, Whereby suggsetions which result in substantial time or cost reduction should 

be rewarded. 

27. ‘Organising involves a series of steps in order to achieve the desired goals’. Exaplain these steps. 

OR 

27. With the help of any four points, Explain the crucial role that organising plays in enterprise. 

28. Explain the various steps in the process of controlling. 

OR 

28. Explain any four points that highlight the importance of control. 

29. Explain the following as factors affecting the requirements of Fixed Capital: 

(i) Scale of operations;     (ii) Choice of techniques; 

(iii) Technology upgradation and    (iv) Financing alternatives. 

OR 

29. Explain the following as factors affecting dividend decision: 

(i) Stability of earnings:     (ii) Growth opportunities; 

(iii) Cash Flow position and     (iv) Taxation policy. 

 

30. Explain the Following functions of marketing:  

(i) Gathering and analysing market information;  (ii) Marketing Planning 

(iii) Customer support services and    (iv) Physical distribution 

OR 

30. ‘Though advertising is one of the most frequently used medium of promotion of goods and services, yet it 

attracts lot of objectives’. Explain any four such objections. 
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12th CBSE- BUSINESS STUDIES | PAPERSET-3 | 
QUESTIONS - 30 

THE MARKS ARE MENTIONED ON EACH QUESTION 
1. Define "Recruitment". 1 

2. Why is motivation called a complex process ? 1 

3. At which level of management directing takes place ? 1 

4. What should be done while 'taking corrective action' in the process of controlling when especially in the important 

areas deviations go beyond the acceptable range ? 1 

5. State how 'Growth Prospects' affect working capital requirements of a company ? 1 

6. What is the primary objective of 'Financial Management' ? 1 

7. Give the meaning of 'Money Market'. 1 

8. State any one consequence of a well performed 'allocative function' of financial market. 1 

9. Why is marketing called a social process? 1 

10. Distinguish between 'Selling Concept' & 'Marketing Concept' of Marketing Management Philosophies on the 

basis of 'main focus'. 1 

11. Under three-tier machinery where can a legal heir or representative of a deceased consumer file a complaint 

when the compensation claimed is Rs. 25 Lakhs. 1 

12. Pragya bought an iron of a reputed br& for Rs.1,500 but it caused an electric shock while it was being used. 

Pragya wants to exercise her 'Right' Identify the 'Right'. under which she can be protected. 1 

13. Name & explain the principle of management according to which a manager should replace 'I' with 'We' in all his 

conversations with workers. 1 

14. Explain 'Harmony Not Discord' as a principle of Scientific Management. 3 

15. Explain 'objectives' as one of the types of plans. 3 

16. Explain the following as features of Planning: 3 

(a) Planning is continuous, &      (b) Planning is futuristic. 

17. Ajay was appointed a marketing head of 'Alfa Enterprise' manufacturers of toothpaste & toothbrushes. His target 

sale was 2000 units a month. Apart from thinking about various channels of distribution to achieve the target he 

himself started visiting schools in backward areas. He found that even after taking various steps & counselling, some 

school children had not started brushing their teeth. He investigated & found that they could not afford to buy 

toothbrush & toothpaste. So with due permission he started donating 200 toothbrushes & toothpastes every month 

to the school. 3 

(i) Identify the channel of distribution 'Ajay' would adopt for distribution of toothpaste & toothbrushes & justify it by 

giving one reason. 

(ii) State any two values which Ajay wants to communicate to the society. 

18. 'Though br&ingadds to the cost, it provides several advantages to the consumers'. In the light of the statement, 

state any three advantages of br&ing to customers. 3 

19. State the steps in the organising process. 4 

20. Distinguish between 'Delegation' & 'Decentralisation' on the basis of the following: 4 
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(a) Purpose;  (b) Scope;  (c) Status; &  (d) Nature. 

21. What is meant by 'Long-term Investment Decision ? State any three factors which affect the long term 

investment decision. 4 

22. Explain any four points of importance of consumer protection from the point of view of business. 4 

23. Describe any five reasons which clarify that management is gaining importance day-by-day. 5 

24. The court passed an order that all schools must have water purifier for school children as: 5 

(i) Society in general is more concerned about quality of life; 

(ii) Innovative techniques are being developed to manufacture water purifier at competitive rates : 

(iii) Incomes are rising & children at home are also drinking purified water. The Government is also showing positive 

attitude towards the water purifier business. Identify the different dimensions of business environment by quoting 

from the above details. 

25. Nishant, the director of a garments company, is planning to manufacture bags for the utilization of waste 

material from one of his garment units. He has decided that this manufacturing unit will be set-up in a rural area of 

Orissa where people have very few job-opportunities & labour is available at very low rates. He has also thought of 

giving equal opportunities to men & women. 

For this he wants four different heads for Sales, Accounts, Purchase& Production. He gives an advertisement & 

shortlists ten candidates per post after conducting different selection-tests. 

(i) Identify & state the next three steps for choosing the best ccandidatesout of the candidates short-listed. 

(ii) Also identify two values which Nishant wants to communicate to the society by setting up this manufacturing 

unit. 5 

26. 'Planning & Controlling are inseparable twins of management.' How? 5 

27. 'The barriers to effective communication exist in all organisations to a greater or lesser degree.' State any six 

measures to overcome these barriers. 6 

OR 

27. 'The Supervisor performs a very important role in an organisation by performing multiple functions.' State any six 

such functions. 

28. What is meant by 'Dividend Decision'? Explain any four factors which affect the dividend decision of a company. 

6 

OR 

28. What is meant by 'Financial Planning'? Explain any five points which highlight its importance. 6 

29. Explain any four functions of stock exchange. 6 

OR 

29. Explain the following money market instrument: 

(a) Call Money   (b) Treasury Bill  

(c) Commercial Paper  (d) Certificate of Deposit 

30. Explain the concept of personal selling & any four qualities of a good salesman. 

OR 

30. Explain any four factors which affect the determination of the price of a product.  
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12th CBSE- BUSINESS STUDIES | PAPERSET-4 | 
QUESTIONS - 25 

THE MARKS ARE MENTIONED ON EACH QUESTION 
1. What is meant by ‘Efficiency’ in management ? 1 

2. How does co-ordination integrates group efforts ? State. 1 

3. Give the meaning of ‘Method’ as a type of plan. 1 

4. To make the annual function of the school successful the principal of the school divided all the activities into task 

groups each dealing with a specific area like rehearsals, decoration, stage management, refreshments etc. Each 

group was placed under the overall supervision of a senior teacher. Identify the function of management performed 

by the Principal in doing so. 1 

5. Besides the investment decision the finance function is concerned with two other broad decisions. Name these 

decisions. 1 

6. A textile company is diversifying & starting a steel manufacturing plant. State with reason the effect of 

diversification on the fixed capital requirements of the company. 1 

7. A TV manufacturing company is spending substantial amount of money to persuade the target customers to buy 

its T.V. sets through advertisements, personal selling & sales promotion techniques. Identify the element of 

marketing mix referred here. 1 

8. On the eve of Diwali Ravi purchased two kilograms of sweets from N&an Sweets. On consumption of sweets his 

wife fell sick & was to be hospitalized. Ravi wanted to file a case in the consumer forum but could not do so because 

he did not have any proof of buying the sweets from N&an sweets. Name the document that Ravi could had 

obtained for filing the complaint in the consumer forum. 1 

9. State any three advantages of formal organization. 3 

10. There are some characteristics that should be kept in mind while choosing a brand name. Explain any two such 

characteristics that a good br& name should have. 3 

11. Name & define the process that helps in finding possible candidates for a job or a function. 3 

12. ‘Efficient functioning of stock exchange creates a conducive climate for active & growing primary market for new 

issues as well as for an active & healthy secondary market.’ In the light of this statement state any three functions of 

a stock exchange. 3 

13. Neha was a regional sales manager in ‘Good Look Garments Ltd’ for ten years. On the retirement of the 

marketing manager Neha applied for the same post as she was extremely ambitious & had dedicated all her energies 

to obtain the post of marketing manager. However, the top management of the company decided to fill this post by 

selecting a better person from outside the company. Because of this Neha was heart-broken & her performance 

declined. When the new marketing manager joined, one of her major problems was how to motivate & inspire Neha 

to her former level of performance ? Suggest any three non-financial incentives that the new marketing manager 

may use to motivate Neha. 3 

14. Explain how the understanding of business environment help the management in the following. 4 

(a) tapping useful resources ; &     (b) coping with rapid changes. 

http://www.lscf.co.in/


www.lscf.co.in  9898187250 Page 80 
 

15. An environmental conscious multinational company “AXN Ltd.” follows certain well defined business principles 

that result to minimize the employee turnover. Following are some of the important environmental factors followed 

by ‘AXN Ltd.’ 

(1) Honour the law of every country in which it operates. 

(2) Respect the culture & customs of all nations. 

(3) Provide clean & safe products to enhance the quality of life throughout the world. 

(4) Develop a culture in the company that enhances individual creativity & team work while honouring mutual trust 

& respect between management & labour. From the above : 

(i) identify& state any one general principle of management & any one dimension of business environment. 

(ii) Also identify any two values which the above guiding principles & environmental factors are conveying to the 

society. 

16. It is deciding in advance what to do & how to do ? It is one of the basic managerial functions. It requires that 

before doing something, the manager must formulate an idea of how to work on a particular task. This function is 

closely connected with creativity & innovation. It seeks to bridge the gap between where we are & where we want 

to go & is performed at all levels of management. Inspite of this the function of management referred above has a 

number of limitations. Explain any two such limitations. 4 

17. Mr. Naresh recently completed his M.B.A. from one of the Indian Institutes of Management in Human Resource 

Management. He has been appointed as Human Resource Manager in a Truck Manufacturing Company. The 

company has 1,500 employees & has an expansion plan in h& that may require additional 500 persons for various 

types of jobs. Mr. Naresh has been given the complete charge of the company’s Human Resource Department. 

List out the specialized activities that Mr. Naresh is supposed to perform as the Human Resource Manager of the 

company. 4 

18. State any four factors which affects the requirements of working capital of a company. 4 

19. Your company has setup a food processing unit in Kashmir with a production capacity of 10,000 litres of apple 

juice per day. The company plans to market the apple juice in tetra pack of 100 mililitres. Design a label for same. 4 

20. A company has been registered under the Companies Act with an authorized share capital of ` 20,000 crores. Its 

registered office is situated in Delhi & manufacturing unit in a backward district of Rajasthan. Its marketing 

department is situated in Bhopal. The company is manufacturing Fast Moving Consumer Goods (FMCG). 5 

(i) Suggest with the help of a diagram a suitable organization structure for the company. 

(ii) State any three advantages of this organization structure. 

21. Explain any five points of importance of directing function of management. 5 

22. ‘i-phone India Ltd.’ is a manufacturer of advanced category of mobile phones. The company trained its engineers 

from Japan. It markets its mobile phones domestically as well as internationally. The company had a substantial 

market share & had a loyal customer following because of quality of its i-phone. From the last financial year the 

company had been unable to achieve its targets because of competition in the market. The company is planning to 

revamp its controlling system. 5 

(i) Identify the concepts of management involved in the above para. 

(ii) State the steps of the revamped controlling process to be followed by the company to solve this problem. 
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(iii) Also, state any one value which the company wants to communicate to the society. 

23. Aman, Ahmad & Ally are partners in a firm engaged in the distribution of dairy products in Maharashtra state. 

Aman is a holder of Senior Secondary School Certificate from Central Board of Secondary Education with Business 

Studies as one of his elective subjects. Ahmad had done his post graduation in History & Ally in dairy farming. One 

day their was a serious discussion between Ahmad & Ally regarding the nature of management, Ahmad argued that 

management was a profession. Where as Ally argued against it saying that the legal & medical profession are the 

only professions because they fulfill all the conditions of profession. 

Aman on the basis of his knowledge of business studies explained the nature of management as a profession to 

Ahmad &Ally.Explain, how Aman would have satisfied both Ahmad &Ally ? 6 

24. There are number of factors which affect the fixation of the price of a product. Explain any four such factors. 6 

25. Distinguish between money market & capital market on the basis of : 6 

(a) Participants       (b) Instruments 

(c) Safety &       (d) Expected return 
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12th CBSE- BUSINESS STUDIES | PAPERSET-5 |  
QUESTIONS - 30 

THE MARKS ARE MENTIONED ON EACH QUESTION 
1. At which level of management the managers are responsible for the welfare & survival of the organization? 1 

2. Identify nature of management, it is said - systematised body of knowledge that explains certain general truths. 1 

3. How “Business Associations” act as a means of consumer protection? State. 1 

4. Give any one relief available to a consumer who suffers due to consumption of an expired date medicine. 1 

5. Name the type of plan which is time bound & linked with measurable outcome. 1 

6. “Planning is done for achieving the organizational goals”. Do you agree? Give reason to support your answer. 1 

7. What is meant by “Estimating man-power requirements” as step in the process of “staffing”? 1 

8. State any one “Protective Function” of Securities & Exchange Board of India. (SEBI) 1 

9. State any one function of Stock-Exchange. 1 

10. What is meant by “Informal Communication”? 1 

11. Explain any three qualities of a “Good Leader”. 3 

12. Nisha a school bag manufacturer decided to improve the product for profit maximization & thus added a 

waterbottle holder to the existing design: 3 

(a) Identify the marketing management philosophy adpoted by Nisha  

(b) Explain the philosophy on the basis of: 

(i)  Main Focus        (ii) Means & ends 

13. Explain the Principles of Management:  3  

(i) provide useful insight into reality &    (ii) help In thoughtful decision making. 

14. Define “Training” & “Development”. 3 

15. What is meant by “Financial Planning”? State any two points of importance of Financial Planning. 3 

16. Explain the Following: 4  

(i) Right to Safety       (ii) Right to Consumer education. 

17.  Explain the following factor affecting financing decision: 4 

(i) Cost        (ii) Cash flow position of business   

(iii) Level of Fixed operating cost     (iv) Control Considerations. 

18. Explain techique of scientifc management that is extension of “Principle of Division of Work & Specilisation”. 4 

19. Manu, a Chief Manager in a company using highly sophisticated machines & equipments, wants that every 

employee should be fully trained before using the machines & equipments. Suggest & describe the best method  of 

training that Manu can use for training of the employees. 4 

20. Describe briefly the steps in the process of organising. 4 

21. Neelabh is engaged in “Transport Business” & Transports fruits & vegetables to different states. Stating the 

reason in support of your answer, identify the working Capital requirements of Neelabh. Neelabh also wants  to 

exp&& diversify his transport business, explain any two factors that will affect his fixed capital requirements. 5 

22. Give meaning of Management, explain “creation of dynamic organisation & “helps in development of Society”. 5 

23. State any five Features of “Business Environment”. 
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24. State any three advantages & any two limitations of “Planning”. 

25. Explain “Market Planning” & “Product Designing & Development” as functions of Marketing. 

26. Explain any four functions of “Financial-Market”. 

OR 

26. Explain any four functions of “Stock-Exchange”. 

27.Describe the relationship between “Planning & Controlling. 

OR 

27. Briefly explain the importance of “Controlling”. 

28. Consumer products are classified on different basis.”Shopping Efforts Involved” is one of them. Explain any three 

types of products in this category. 

OR 

28. Choice of Channels of distribution depends on various factors. Explain any Four factors which effect the choice of 

channels of distribution. 

29. Give the meanng of ‘Supervision’ as an element of  ‘Directing’& any four points that explain its role. 

OR 

29. What is meant by ‘Motivation’? Explain the Maslow’s need of hierarchy theory of motivation. 

30. What is meant by ‘Informal Organization’? State the features of Informal organization. 

OR 

30. What is meant  by ‘Decentralisation’? State any four points of importance of decentralisation. 
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12th CBSE- ENGLISH | PAPERSET-1 | 

QUESTIONS - 13 
THE MARKS ARE MENTIONED ON EACH QUESTION 

SECTION-A (READING) 20 marks 
Q. 1. Read the passage given below & answer the questions that follow:  

1. Air pollution is an issue which concerns us all alike. One can willingly choose or reject a food, a drink or a life 

comfort, but unfortunately there is little choice for the air we breathe. All, what is there in the air is inhaled by one & 

all living in those surroundings.  

2. Air pollutant is defined as a substance which is present while normally it is not there or present in an amount 

exceeding the normal concentrations. It could either be gaseous or a particulate matter. The important & harmful 

polluting gases are carbon monoxide., carbon dioxide, ozone & oxides of sulphur & nitrogen. The common 

particulate pollutants are the dusts of various inorganic or organic origins. Although we often talk of the outdoor air 

pollution caused by industrial & vehicular exhausts, the indoor pollution may prove to be as or a more important 

cause of health problems.  

3. Recognition of air pollution is relatively recent. It is not uncommon to experience a feeling of 'suffocation' in a 

closed environment. It is often ascribed of the lack of oxygen, Fortunately however, the composition of air is 

remarkably constant all over the world. There is about 7.9 per cent nitrogen & 2l per cent oxygen in the air-the other 

gases forming a very small fraction. It is true that carbon 'over-crowded dioxide exhaled out of lungs may 

accumulate ii a closed & place. But such an increase is usually small &temporary unless the room is air-tight. 

Exposure to poisonous gases such as carbon monoxide may occur in a closed room, heated by burning coal inside. 

This may also prove to be fatal.  

4. What is more common in a poorly ventilated home is a vague constellation of symptoms described as the sick-

building syndrome. It is characterized by a general feeling of malaise, head-ache, dizziness & irritation of mucous 

membranes. It-may also be accompanied by nausea, itching, aches, pains & depression. Sick building syndrome is 

getting commoner in big cities with the small houses, which are generally over-furnished. Some of the important 

pollutants whose indoor concentrations exceed those of the outdoors include gases such as carbon monoxide, 

carbon dioxide, oxides of nitrogen & organic substances like spores, formaldehydes, hydrocarbon aerosols & 

allergens. The sources are attributed to a variety of construction materials, insulations, furnishings, adhesives, 

cosmetics, house-dusts, fungi & other indoor products.   

5. By-products of fuel combustion are important in houses with indoor kitchens. It is not only the burning of dried 

dung & fuelwood which is responsible, but also kerosene & liquid petroleum gas. Oxides of both nitrogen & sulphur 

are released from them combustion.  

6. Smoking of tobacco in the closed environment is an important source of indoor pollution. It may not be high 

quantitatively, but significantly hazardous for health. It is because of the fact that there are over 3000 chemical 

constituents in tobacco smoke, which have been identified. These are harmful for human health.  

7. Micro-organisms & allergens are of special significance in the causation & spread of diseases. Most of the infective 

illnesses may involve more persons of a family living in common indoor environment. These include viral & bacterial 

diseases like tuberculosis.  
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8. Besides infections, allergic & hypersensitivity disorders are spreading fast. Although asthma is the most common 

form of respiratory allergic disorders, pneumonias are not uncommon, but more persistent & serious. These are 

attributed to exposures to allergens from various fungi, molds, hay & other organic materials. Indoor air ventilation 

systems; coolers, air-conditioners, dampness, decay, pet animals, production or h&ling of the     causative items are 

responsible for these hypersensitivity-diseases.  

9. Obviously, the spectrum of pollution is very wide & our options are limited. Indoor pollution may be h&led 

relatively easily by an individual. Moreover, the good work must start from one's own house.  

(a) (i) what is an air pollutant? 1 mark  

(ii) In what forms are the air pollutants present? 2 marks 

(iii) Why do we feel suffocated in a closed environment? 1 mark  

(iv) What is sick building syndrome? How is it increasing? 2 marks  

(v) How is indoor smoking very hazardous? 1 marks.  

(vi) How can one overcome the dangers of indoor air pollution? 2 marks    

(b) Find the words form the above passage which mean the same as the following: 3  

(i) giddiness (para 4)  

(ii) constant (para 8)  

(iii) humidity(para,8)  

Q. 2. Read the passage given below & answer the questions that follow: 8 marks  

The term dietary fibres refers collectively to indigestible carbohydrates present in plant foods. The importance of 

these dietary fibres came into the picture when it was observed that the people having diet rich in these fibres, had 

low incidence of coronary heart disease, irritable bowel syndrome, dental caries & gall stones.  The foodstuffs rich in 

these dietary fibres are cereals & grains, legumes, fruits with seeds, citrus fruits, carrots, cabbage, green leafy 

vegetables, apples, melons, peaches, pears etc.  

These dietary fibres are not digested by the enzymes of the stomach & the small intestine whereas most of other 

carbohydrates like starch & sugar are digested & absorbed. The dietary fibres have the property of holding water & 

because of it, these get swollen & behave like a sponge as these passes through the gastrointestinal tract. The fibres 

add bulk to the diet & increase transit time in the gut. Some of these fibres may undergo fermentation in the colon. 

In recent years, it has been considered essential to have some amount of fibres in the diet. Their beneficial effects lie 

in preventing coronary heart disease, & decreasing cholesterol level. The fibres like gums & pectin are reported to 

decrease post-pr&ial (after meals) glucose level in blood. These types of dietary fibres are recommended for the 

management of certain types of diabetes. Recent studies have shown that the fenugreek (Methi) seeds, which 

contain 40 per cent Burn, are effective in decreasing blood glucose & cholesterol levels as compared to other gum 

containing vegetables. Some dietary fibres increase transit time & decrease the time or release of ingested food in 

colon. The diet having less fibres is associated with colon cancer & the dietary fibres may play a role in decreasing 

the risk of it. The dietary fibres hold water so that stools are soft, bulky & readily eliminated. Therefore, high fibre 

intake prevents or relieves constipation. The fibres increase motility of the small intestine & the colon & by 

decreasing the transit time there ‘is less time for exposure of the mucosa to harmful toxic substances. Therefore, 

there is a less desire to eat & the energy intake can be maintained within the range of requirement.  
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This phenomenon helps in keeping a check on obesity. Another reason in helping to decrease obesity is that the 

high-fibre diets have somewhat lower coefficients of digestibility.  The dietary fibres may have some adverse effects 

on nutrition by binding some trace metals like calcium, magnesium, phosphorus, zinc & others & therefore 

preventing their proper absorption. This may pose a possibility of nutritional deficiency especially when diets contain 

marginal levels of mineral elements. This may become important constraints on increasing dietary fibres. It is 

suggested that an intake of 40 grams dietary fibres per day is desirable.             (Extracted from' The Tribune') 

 (a) On the basis of your reading of the above passage make notes on it in recognizable abbreviations wherever 

necessary. Also, suggest a suitable title.   (b) Write a summary of the above in about 80 words. 3 marks                                                  

 

SECTION – B (ADVANCED WRITING SKILLS) 35 marks 

Q. 3. You are Vineeta/Vikram, School pupil Leader of Rani Laxmi Bai Senior Secondary School, Gwalior. Draft a notice 

for your school notice board in not more than 50 words inviting the names of the students who want to participate 

in the cultural programme organised in aid of the victims of the recent Assam floods. 5 marks                                                                    

OR 

Q.3. You have a three bedroom flat in Dwarka, which you want to let out on rent. Draft an advertisement in not 

more than 50 words to be published in "The Times of India', under classified columns. Contact 2758902.                                                                   

 

Q.4. Maxim Gorky School, Kodaikanal celebrated 'Nutrition Week' from 1st September to 7th September by 

arranging inter-school cookery contests, oratorical, painting & poster competitions, besides talks by eminent 

nutritionists & medicalprofessionals. There was an overwhelming response from students & parents. Prepare a 

report in 100-125 words to be published in your school magazine. You are Arjun/Anita, School Pupil Leader. 10 marks                                                                                                              

OR 

Q.4. You are Roshan/Rohini, School Pupil Leader of Meerut Public School, Meerut. Your school joined a campaign 

organised by various agencies of your city to create awareness among people to conserve water. Write a report in 

100-125 words highlighting the activities such as rain water harvesting etc.  

Q. 5. Write a letter to your cousin, Raj Prakash who is currently staying at Dubai explaining the process of CCE being 

used by the CBSE for the Secondary School Examination in its affiliated schools. Also, mention how you & your 

classmates have reacted to this scheme. You are Narain/ Nisha,20 Fort Road, Mumbai. 10 marks  

OR 

Q.5. Recently you travelled from Bangalore city to Vasco in Vasco Express. To your dismay, you found that the coach 

was infested with cockroaches. Write a letter to the Editor, ‘The Hindu' drawing the attention of the General 

Manager, Southern Railways, to the prevailing unhygienic conditions & asking for remedial action. You are 

Saroj/saran, 5i3l Bangalore Cantt., Bangalore.  

Q. 6. Write an article in 150-200 words for your school magazine on the topic, 'Obesity among School Children'. You 

are Mohini/Mohit. 10 marks                                              

OR 

Q.6. You are Raman/Ruchika. Write an article in 150-200 words for your school magazine on the topic, ‘Life without 

Modern Gadgets'.  
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SECTION – C (TEXT BOOKS) 30 marks (Based on New Textbooks) 

Q.7. Read the extract given below & answer the questions that follow: 3 marks  

……. The stunted, unlucky heir 

Of twisted bones, reciting a father's gnarled disease, 

His lesson, from his desk. At the back of the dim class 

One unnoted, sweet & young. 

(i) Who is the unlucky heir?   

(ii) What will he inherit?    

(iii) Who is sitting at the back of the dim class?  

OR 

Driving from my parent's 

home to Cochin last Friday 

morning, I saw my mother, beside me, 

doze, open mouthed, her face ashen like that 

of a corpse & realised with pain 

that she was as old as she looked... 

 (i) Where was, the poet driving to?  

(ii) Why was her mother's face looking like that of a corpse?  

(iii) What did the poet notice about her mother?   

Q. 8. Answer any four of the following in 30-40 words each: 4 marks  

(a) What does Keats consider an endless fountain of immortal drink & why does he call its drink immortal?  

(b) What are the different kinds of wars mentioned in the poem? What is Neruda's attitude towards these wars?  

(c) What lies heavily on Aunt Jennifer's h&? How is it associated with her husb&?  

Q. 9. Answers any six of the following in 30-40 words each: 12 marks  

(a) What was the order from Berlin & what changes did it cause in the school?  

(b) How did Douglas make sure that he conquered the old terror?  

OR 

Q.9. Douglas went to Lake Went worth & dived off a dock at Trigs Isl&. He swam for two hours across the lake. Only 

once the terror returned but it fled & he swam on. At last he had conquered his fear of water.  

(c) Why was Sophie jealous of Geoff's silence?  

(d) What forced Dr. Sadao to be impatient & irritable with his patient?  

(e) Why does Jo insist that her father should tell her the story with a different ending?  

(f) If you were to give a different ending to the story "On the Face of It" how would you end it?  

(g) What were the articles in the stalls & shops that fascinated Bama on her way back from school?  

Q. 10. Answer the following question in 125-150 words: 5 marks  

Why did Gandhiji agree to a settlement of 25 per cent refund to the farmers? How did it influence the peasant-

landlord relationship in Champaran?  
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OR 

Q.10. There is a saying, ‘Kindness pays, rudeness never'. In the story, ‘The Rattrap'Edla's attitude towards men & 

matters is different from her father's attitude. How are the values of concern & compassion brought out in the story 

‘The Rattrap'?  

Q. 11. Answer the following question in 100-125 words: 5 marks  

Give a character-sketch of Governor of Oxford Prison based on your underst&ing of the story 'Evans Tries an O-level'.  

OR 

Q.11. Zitkala Sa's experience in 'Memories of childhood is that of a victim of the caste system. What kind of 

discrimination does Bama's experience depict? What are their responses to their respective situations?  

SECTION – D (NOVELS) 15 marks (Long Reading Text) 

Attempt any question either Q. No. 12 or Q. No. 1.3.  

Q. 12. Answer the following questions in 125-150 words: 5 marks  

(i) Write the character sketch of William Dane.  

(ii) Themes are the fundamental & often universal ideas explored in a literary work.  

OR 

Q. 13. Answer the following question in 125-150 words:  

(i) Enumerate the different traits of the character of Mr. Heelas.  

(ii) What impressions do you form about Colonel Adye after reading the novel "The Invisible Man"?  
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12th CBSE- ENGLISH | PAPERSET-2 | 
QUESTIONS - 13 

THE MARKS ARE MENTIONED ON EACH QUESTION 
SECTION-A (READING) 20 marks 

Q. 1. Read the following passage & answer the questions that follow: 12 marks  

1. Too many parents these days can't say no. As a result, they find themselves raising, children, who respond greedily 

to the advertisements aimed right at them. Even getting what they want doesn't satisfy some kids; they only want 

more. Now, a growing number of psychologists, educators & parents think it's time to stop the madness & start 

teaching kids about what's really important: values like hard work, contentment, honesty &compassion. The struggle 

to set limits has never been tougher & the stakes have never been higher. One recent study of adults who were over 

indulged as children, paints a discouraging picture of their future: when given too much too soon they grow up to be 

adults who have difficulty coping with life's disappointments. They also have distorted sense of entitlement that gets 

in the way of success in the work place & in relationships.  

 2. Psychologists say that parents who overindulge their kids, set them up to be more vulnerable to future anxiety & 

depression. Today's parents themselves raised on values of thrift & self-sacrifice, grew up in a culture where no was 

a household word. Today’s kids want much more, partly because there is so much more to want. The oldest 

members of this generation were born in the late 1980s, just as pcs &video games were making them assault on the 

family room. They think of MP3 players & flat screen TV as essential utilities, & they have developed strategies to get 

them. One survey of teenagers found that when they crave for something new most expect to ask nine times before 

their parents give in. By every measure, parents are shelling out record amounts. ln the heat of this buying blitz, 

even parents who desperately need to say no find themselves reaching for their credit cards.  

 3. Today's parents aren't equipped to deal with the problem. Many of them, raised in the 1960s &'70s, swore they’d 

act differently from their parents & have closer relationships with their own children. Many even wear the same 

designer clothes as their kids & listen to the same music. & they work more hours; at the end of a long week, it’s 

tempting to buy peace with 'yes' & not mar precious family time with conflict. Anxiety about future is another factor. 

How do well intentioned parents say no to all the sports gear & arts & language lessons they believe will help their 

kids thrive in an increasingly competitive world? Experts agree: too much love won't spoil a child. Too few limits will.  

4. What parents need to find, is a balance between the advantages of an affluent society &The critical life lessons 

that come from waiting, saving & working hard to achieve goals. That search for balance must start early. Children 

need limits on their behaviour because they feel better & more secure when they live within a secured structure. 

Older children learn self-control by watching how others, especially parents act. Learning how to overcome  

challenges is essential to becoming a successful adult. Few parents ask kids to do chores. They think their kids are 

already overburdened by social & academic pressures. Every individual can be of service to others, & life has 

meaning beyond one's own immediate happiness. That means parents are eager to teach values have to take a long, 

hard look at their own.  

(a) Answer the following:  

(1) What values do parents & teachers want children to learn? 2 marks Ans. Teachers & parents want children to 

learn values like hard work, contentment, honesty & compassion.  
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(2) What are the results of giving the children too much too soon? 2 marks Ans. When children are given too much 

too soon, they grow up to be adults who have difficulty coping with life's disappointments. Such children may 

develop a distorted sense of entitlement that hampers their success in the work place & in relationships.  

(3) Why do today's children want more? 1 mark Ans. Today's children want more because nowadays there is so 

much more to want. Moreover, they consider luxurious items as essential utilities.  

(4) What is the balance which the parents need to have in today's world? 2 marks Ans. In today's world, parents 

need to strike a balance between the advantages of an affluent society & the critical life lessons that come from 

waiting, saving & working hard to achieve goals.  

(5) What is the necessity to set limits for children? 2 marks Ans. There is a need to set limits for children because 

they feel better & more secure where they live within a secured structure.  

(b) Pick out words from the passage that mean the same as the following: 3 marks (1) a feeling of satisfaction (para 

1) (2) valuable (para 3) (3) important (para 4) Ans. (1) Contentment (2) Precious (3) Essential  

Q. 2. Read the passage carefully.  

1. I remember my childhood as being generally happy & can recall experiencing some of the most carefree times of 

my life. But I can also remember, even more vividly, moments of being deeply frightened. As a child, I was truly 

terrified of the dark & getting lost. These fears were real & caused me some extremely uncomfortable moments.  

2. Maybe it was the strange way things looked & sounded in my familiar room at night that scared me so much. 

There was never total darkness, but a street light or passing car lights made clothes hung over a chair take on the 

shape of an unknown beast. Out of the corner of my eye, I saw curtains move when there was no breeze.  

A tiny creak in the floor would sound a hundred times louder than in the daylight & my imagination would takeover, 

creating burglars & monsters. Darkness always made me feel helpless. My heart would pound & I would lie very still 

so that ‘the enemy’, wouldn’t discover me.  

3. Another childhood fear of mine was that I would get lost, especially on the way home from school. Every morning, 

I got on the school bus right near my home that was no problem.   After school, though, when all the buses were 

lined up along the curve, I was terrified that I would get on the wrong one & be taken to some unfamiliar 

neighbourhood. I would scan the bus for the faces of my friends, make sure that the bus driver was the same one    

that had been there in the morning, & even then, ask the others repeatedly to be    sure, I was in the right bus. On 

school or family trips to an amusement park or a museum, I wouldn't let the leaders out of my sight. & of course, I 

was never very adventurous when it came to taking walks or hikes because I would go only where I was sure I would    

never get lost.  

4. Perhaps one of the worst fears I had as a child was that of not being liked or accepted by others. First, I was quite 

shy. Secondly, I worried constantly about my looks, thinking people wouldn't like me because I was too fat or wore 

braces. I tried to wear, the right clothes' & had intense arguments with my mother over the importance of we airing 

flats instead of saddled shoes to school. Being popular was very important to me. 

5 One of the processes of evolving from a child to an adult is being able to recognise &overcome our fears. I have 

learnt that darkness does not have to take on a life of its own, that others can help me when I am lost & that 

friendliness & sincerity will encourage people to like me. Underst&ing the things that scared us as children helps to 

cope with our lives as adults.  
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(a) Based on your reading of the above passage, make notes using headings &subheadings. Use recognizable 

abbreviations wherever necessary.  (b) Make a summary of the passage in not more than 80 words using the notes 

made & suggest a suitable title.  

SECTION - B (Advanced Writing Skills) 20 marks 

Q. 3. You were very upset about the reports on communal riots in various parts of the country As a concerned social 

worker, design a poster in not more than 50 words, highlighting the importance of communal harmony. You are 

Vinay/Vinita.                                                                      

OR 

Q.3 . The literary club of your school is putting up the play 'Waiting for Godot'. As secretary of the club, draft an 

invitation inviting the famous writer Sudesh Gupta to be the guest of honour at the function. Write the invitation in 

not more than 50 words. You are Govind/ Gauri.  

Q. 4. Last week the newly built auditorium of your school was inaugurated. As Deepak/Deepti Saha, the head 

boy/girl of the school, write a factual description of the auditorium in 125-150 words.                            

OR 

Q.4. You had attended a workshop on personality development for students. Many eminent personalities had been 

present. Write a report in 125-150 words on how the workshop proved to be beneficial. You are Rajesh/Rajshree.  

Q.5.You are An&/Arti of 14, Model Town, Delhi. You have seen an advertisement in The Hindu for the post of chief 

Chef in a 5-Star Hotel. Apply for the job with complete bio-data. Write in 125-150 words.  

OR 

Q.5. You are Prem/Parul of 16, TT Nagar, Bhopal. You would like to apply for the post of Marketing Manager in a 

reputed firm in Mumbai. Write a letter to the public Relations officer, Chantao Enterprises, Mumbai, applying for the 

job. Write the letter in 125-l50 words giving your bio-data.  

Q. 6. Last week, as you were coming back from school you happened to see a huge plastic bag full of leftovers of 

food being flung into the middle of the road from a speeding car. You wondered how people can be so devoid of 

civic sense. Write an article in 125-150 words on why we lack civic sense &how civic sense can be inculcated in 

children at a very young age" You are Shiva/ shamini. 

OR 

Q.6.You saw a stray dog beaten to death by a group of boys. Their act infuriated you & you scolded them for their 

cruel act. You decided to write an article on cruelty to animals. Write the article in 125-150 words. You are 

Nikhil/Naina.  

SECTION – C - 45 marks (Text Books & Long Reading Text) 

Q. 7. Read the following extract & answer the questions that follow:  

Spite of despondence, of the inhuman dearth 

Of noble natures, of the gloomy days 

Of all the unhealthy & o'er -darkened ways 

Made for our searching: yes, in spite of all, 

Some shape of beauty moves away the pall 

From our dark spirits. 
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(a) Name the poem & the Poet. (b) Why are we ‘despondent'? (c)What removes 'the pall from our dark spirits'?  

OR 

.......& yet, far these 

Children, these windows, not this map, their world 

Where all their future’s painted with a fog, 

A narrow street sealed in with a lead sky 

Far far from rivers, capes, & stars of words. 

(a) Who are the ‘children' referred to here?  

(b) Which is their world?  

(e) How is their life different from that of other children?  

Q. 8. Answer any two of the following in about 30-40 words each:  

(a) What was the poet's childhood fear?  

(b) What is the sadness the poet refers to in the poem, Keeping Quiet?  

(c) How are Aunt Jennifer's tigers different from her?  

Q. 9. Answer any six of the following in about 30-40 words each:  

(a) Why did Sophie long for her brother’s affection?  

(b) Why did Edla plead with her father not to send the vagabond away?  

(c) What job did Saheb take up? Was he happy?  

(d) Why were the elders of the village sitting in the classroom?  

(e) Why did the Maharaja order the dewan to double the l& tax?  

(f) Why did Roger Skunk go to see the old owl?  

(g) Why was Zitkala-Sa in tears on the first day in the l& of apples?  

Q.10. Answer any one of the following in 100-125 words: Why is the Champaran episode considered to be the 

beginning of the Indian struggle for Independence?  

OR 

Q.10. What was the General's plan to get rid of the American prisoner? Was it executed? What traits of the General's 

character are highlighted in the lesson ''the Enemy'?  

Q.11 Both Derry & Lamb are physically impaired & lonely. It is the responsibility of society to underst&, & support 

people with infirmities so that they do not suffer from a sense of alienation. As a responsible citizen, write in about 

100 words. what you would do to bring about a change in the lives of such people.  

Q.12 (i) In Silas Marner, why do people regard weavers with suspicion?  

(ii) How is Silas Marner of Raveloe different from the Silas Marner of Lantemyard in Eliot’s Silas Marner?  

Q. 13. (i) Once Griffin saw no drawbacks in the invisibility but when he became invisible, there came to his view 

thousands of disadvantages. Explain the statement in the general way when we have certain fantastic plans & the               

ensuing disappointment when we have realized them.  

(ii) Sometimes the plan or the intention behind some ambitious innovation is so wicked that the accomplishment of 

it is either prevented from or if it is done, itis done with some irreparable faults. Justify the statement with Griffin’s 

plans & intentions. 
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12th CBSE- ENGLISH | PAPERSET-3 | 
QUESTIONS - 13 

THE MARKS ARE MENTIONED ON EACH QUESTION 
SECTION-A (READING) 20 marks 

Q. 1. Read the passage carefully: 12 marks  

1. For four days, I walked through the narrow lanes of the old city, enjoying the romance of being in a city where 

history still lives - in its cobblestone streets & in its people riding asses carrying vine leaves & palm as they once did 

during the time of Christ.  

2. This, is Jerusalem, home to the sacred sites of Christianity, Islam & Judaism. This is the place that houses the 

church of the Holy Sepulchre, the place where Jesus was finally laid to rest. This is also the site of Christ’s crucifixion 

burial & resurrection.  

3. Built by the Roman Emperor Constantine at the site of an earlier temple to Aphrodite it is the most venerated 

Christian shrine in the world. & justifiably so. Here, within the church are the last five stations of the cross, the 

l0thstation where Jesus was stripped of his clothes the 11th where he was nailed to the Cross, the 12th where he 

died on the cross the 13th where the body was removed from the cross, & the 14th, his tomb  

4. For all this weighty tradition, the approach & entrance to the church is non-descript. You have to ask for 

directions. Even to the devout Christian pilgrims walking along the Via Dolorosa - the Way of Sorrows - first nine 

stations look clueless. Then a courtyard appears, hemmed in by other buildings & a doorway to one side. This leads 

to a vast area of huge stone architecture.  

5. Immediately inside the entrance is your first stop. It’s the stone of anointing: this is the place, according to Greek 

tradition where Christ was removed from the cross. The Roman Catholics, however, believe it to be the spot where 

Jesus, body was prepared for burial by Joseph.  

6. What happened next? Jesus was buried. He was taken to a place outside the city of Jerusalem where other graves 

existed & there, he was buried in a cave. However, all that is long gone, destroyed by continued attacks & rebuilding 

what remains is the massive –& impressive - Rotunda (a round building with a dome) that Emperor Constantine built.      

Under this, & right in the centre of the Rotund4 is the structure that contains the Holy Sepulchre.   

7. "How do you know that this is Jesus, tomb?” I asked one of the pilgrims st&ing next to me. He was clueless more 

interested, like the rest of them, in the novelty of it all & in photographing it, then in its history or tradition.  

8. At the start of the first century, the place was a disused quarry outside the city walls. According to the gospels, 

Jesus’ crucifixion occurred ‘at a place outside die city walls with graves nearby......'. Archaeologists have discovered 

tombs from that era, so the site is compatible with the biblical period.  

9. The structure at the site is a marble tomb built over the original burial chamber. It has two rooms, & you enter 

four at a time into tile first of these, the Chapel of the Angel. Here the angel is supposed to have sat on a stone to 

recount Christ’s resurrection. A low door made of white marble, partly worm away by pilgrims, h&s, leads to a 

smaller chamber inside. This is the 'room of the tomb', the place where Jesus was buried.  

10. We entered in single- file. On my right was a large marble slab that covered the original rock bench on which the 

body of Jesus was laid. A woman knelt & prayed. Her eyes were wet with tears. She pressed her face against the slab 

to hide them, but it only made it worse.  
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On basis of your understanding of passage answer the following questions with the help of given options: 4 marks  

(a) How does Jerusalem still retain the charm of ancient era?  

(i) There are narrow lanes      (ii) Roads are paved with cobblestones  

(iii) People can be seen riding asses     (iv) All of the above  

(b) Holy Sepulchre is sacred to  

(i) Christianity    (ii) Islam    (iii) Judaism    (iv) Both(i) & (iii)  

(c) Why does one have to constantly ask for directions to the church?  

(i) Its lanes are narrow       (ii) Entrance to the church is non-descript  

(iii) People are not tourist- friendly    (iv)Everyone is lost in enjoying romance of place.  

(d) Where was, Jesus buried? (i) In a cave (iil at a place outside the city (iii) In the Holy Sepulchre (iv) Both (i) & (ii)  

Answer the following questions briefly: 6 marks  

(e) What is the Greek belief about the 'stone of anointing'?  

(f) Why did Emperor Constantine build the Rotunda?  

(g) What is the general attitude of the pilgrims?  

(h) How is the site compatible with the biblical period?  

(i) Why did the pilgrims enter the room of the tomb in a single file?'  

(j) Why did a woman' try to hide her tears?  

(k) Find words from the passage which mean the same as : 2 marks  

(i) A large grave (para 3)      (ii) Having no interesting features/dull (para 4)  

Q.2. Read the passage carefully:  

1. We often make all things around us the way we want them. Even during our pilgrimages     we have begun to look 

for whatever makes our heart happy, gives comfort to our body & peace to the mind. It is as if external solutions will 

fulfil our needs, & we do not want to make any special efforts even in our spiritual search. Our mind is resourceful-it 

works to    find shortcuts in simple & easy ways.  

2. Even pilgrimages have been converted into tourism opportunities. Instead, we must awaken our conscience & 

souls & underst& the truth. Let us not tamper with either our own nature or that of the Supreme.  

3. All our cleverness is rendered ineffective when nature does a dance of destruction. Its fury can & will wash away 

all imperfections. Indian culture, based on Vedic treatises, assists in human evolution, but we are now using our 

entire energy in distorting these traditions according to our convenience instead of making efforts to make ourselves 

worthy of them.  

4. The irony is that humans are not even aware of the complacent attitude they have allowed  themselves to sink to. 

Nature is everyone's Amma & her fierce blows will sooner or late comer us & force us to underst& this truth. Earlier, 

pilgrimages to places of spiritual significance were rituals that were undertaken when people became free from their 

worldly duties. Even now some seekers take up this pious religious journey as a path to peace &knowledge. Anyone 

travelling with this attitude feels & travels with only a few essential items that his body can carry. Pilgrims 

traditionally travelled light, on foot, eating light, dried chickpeas & fruits, or whatever was available. Pilgrims of older 

days did not feel the need to stay in special AC bedrooms, or travel by luxury cars or indulge themselves with 

delicious food & savouries.  
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5. Pilgrims traditionally moved ahead, creating a feeling of belonging towards all, conveying a message of 

brotherhood among all they came across whether in small caves, ashrams or local settlements. They received the 

blessings & congregations of yogis & mahatma’s in return while conducting the dharma of their pilgrimage. A 

pilgrimage is like Penance or sadhana to stay near nature & to experience a feeling of oneness with it, to keep the 

body healthy & fulfilled with the amount of food, while seeking freedom from attachments &yet remaining happy 

while staying away from relatives & associates.  

6. This is how a pilgrimage should be rather than making it like a picnic by taking a large group along & living in 

comfort, packing in entertainment, & tampering with environment. What is worse is giving a boost to the ego of 

having had a special darshan. Now alms are distributed, charity done while they brag about their spiritual 

experiences!  

7. We must embark on our spiritual journey by first underst&ing the grace & significance of a pilgrimage & following 

it up with the prescribed rules & rituals - this is what translates into the ultimate & beautiful medium of spiritual 

evolution. There is no justification for tampering with nature.  

8. A pilgrimage is symbolic of contemplation & meditation & acceptance & is a metaphor for the constant growth or 

movement & love for nature that we should hold in our hearts.  

9. This is the truth!  

On the basis of your underst&ing of the above passage answer the questions that follow with the help of given 

options: 2 marks  

(a) How can a pilgrim keep his body healthy?  

(i) By travelling light      (ii) By eating small amount of food  

(iii) By keeping free from attachments    (iv) Both (i) & (ii)  

(b) How do we satisfy our ego?  

(i) By having a special darshan     (ii) by distributing alms  

(iii) By treating it like a Picnic     (iv) Both (i) & (ii)  

Answer the following as briefly as possible: 6 marks  

(c) What change has taken place in our attitude towards pilgrimages?  

(d) W-what happens when pilgrimages are turned into picnics?  

(e) Why are we complacent in our spiritual efforts?  

(f) How does nature respond when we try to be clever with it?  

(g) In olden days with what attitude did people go on a pilgrimage?  

(h) What message does the Passage convey to the pilgrims?  

(i) Find words from the passage which mean the same as the following: 2 marks      

(i) made/turned (para 3)         (ii) very satisfied (Para 4)  

Q.3. Read the passage given below:  

It is surprising that sometimes we don’t listen to what people say to us. We hear them, but we don't listen to them. I 

was curious to know how hearing is different from listening. I had thought both were synonyms, but gradually, I 

realised there is a big difference between the two words.   
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Hearing is a physical phenomenon. Whenever somebody speaks, the sound waves generated reach you, & you 

definitely hear whatever is said to you. However, even if you hear something, it doesn't always mean that you 

actually underst& whatever is being said. Paying attention to whatever you hear means you are really listening. 

Consciously using your mind to understand whatever is being said is listening.  

Diving deeper, I found that listening is not only hearing with attention but is much more than that. Listening is 

hearing with full attention & applying our mind. Most of the time, we listen to someone, but our minds are full of 

needless chatter & there doesn’t seem to be enough space to accommodate what is being spoken.  

We come with a lot of prejudices & preconceived notions about the speaker or the subject on which he is talking. 

We pretend to listen to the speaker, but deep inside, we sit in judgement & are dying to pronounce right or wrong 

true or false, yes or no. Sometimes, we even come prepared with a negative mindset of proving the speaker wrong. 

Even if the speaker says nothing harmful, we are ready to pounce on him with our own version of things.  

What we should ideally do is listen first with full awareness. Once, we have, we have done that we can decide 

whether we want to make a judgement or not. Once we do that communication will be perfect & our interpersonal 

relationship will become so much better. Listening well mean doesn’t mean has to say the right thing at the right 

moment. In fact, sometimes if words are left unspoken there is a feeling of tension & negativity. Therefore, it is 

better to speak out your mind, but do so with awareness after listening to the speaker with full concentration.   

Let's look at this in another way. When you really listen, you imbibe not only what is being spoken but you also 

underst& what is not spoken as well. Most of the time we don’t listen even to people who really matter to us. That’s 

how misunderst&ings grow among families, husb&s & wives, brothers & sisters.  

(A) On the basis of your reading of the above passage make notes on it, using headings & sub-headings. Use 

recognizable abbreviations (wherever necessary – minimum four) & a format you consider suitable. Also, supply an 

appropriate title to it. 5 marks   

(B) Write a summary of the passage in about 80 words. 3 marks  

SECTION – B (WRITING SKILLS) 30 Marks 

 Q. 4. Your school, Akash Public School, Agra needs a canteen manager. On behalf of the Principal, write an 

advertisement in about 50 words to be published in the classified columns of a local daily. Mention the educational 

& professional qualifications, other qualities required in the management who to apply to & the last date for the 

receipt of applications. 4 marks                                                                                                         

OR 

Q.4. Your club is going to organise an interclass singing competition' Write a notice in about 50 words inviting names 

of the students who want to participate in it. Give all the necessary details. You are Navtej/Navita, Secretary, Music 

Club, Akash Public School, Agra.  

Q. 5. You are Navtei/Navita, Secretary, Environment Club, Akash Public School, Agra. You, along with a group of 

students, went on a 3-day tour through Corbett National Park. You found how the tourists abuse the available 

facilities & thus endanger the environment. Write a letter in 120 - 150 words to the editor of a national daily 

highlighting the situation. Suggest ways through which the environment of the Park can be saved. 6 marks                                                                                                                                  

OR 
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Q.5. On Teacher 's Day, you read in a newspaper that, privately owned & managed schools in small towns or even in 

the suburbs of metropolitan cities exploit their teachers by paying them just a fraction of their authorised salaries. 

This affects their performance in the classroom & thus the lives of their students. Write a letter in 120 - 150 words to 

the editor of a national daily raising your voice against such exploitation. Suggest ways to solve this problem. You are 

Navtej/Navita,1l2 Taj Road, Agra.  

Q. 6. The government has banned the use of animals in the laboratories for the purpose of dissection. Write a 

debate in 150 - 200 words either for or against this decision. 10 marks   

OR 

Q.6. Some people feel that electronic media (TV news) will bring about the end of print media (newspapers). What 

are your views on the issue? Write a debate in 150 - 200 words either for or against this view.  

* use of visuals on TV    * authentic & fast   * not enough news for 24-hour telecast  

* may fabricate news    * become repetitive & dull  * even sc&als become news  

* print media - time tested   * analysed, verified news  * editorial comments   

* cater to all interest 

Q. 7. Ragging has raised its ugly head again. A recent incident at a prestigious school has shown that this evil has not 

yet come to an end. Write an article in 150 – 200 words on, Ragging, an Evil'. You are Navtej/Navita. 10 marks                                                          

* a practice from the British era   * original aim, respect for hierarchy  * enforcing traditions, discipline  

* Prefect - a teacher substitute   * misuse of authority    * vulgar aspect   

* fatalities     * solution  

OR 

Q.7. India is a tourist's dream destination. Give your views on the tourism potential of India in an article in 150 - 200 

words. You are Navtei/Navita.  

* places of worship    * religious tourism   * foreign - historical interest   

* the rich- hill stations during summers  * the sun-kissed beaches in winters  * leisure tourism  

* medical tourism                          * world class hospitals  

 

SECTION – C  (LITERATURE, TEXT BOOKS & LONG READING TEXT) 

Q. 8. Read the extract given below & answer the questions that follow: 4 marks  

& looked out at young trees sprinting, the merry children spilling out of their homes, but after the airport’s security 

check, st&ing a few yards away, I looked again at her, wan, pale as a late winter's moon & felt that old familiar 

ache.... ....  

(a) How can the trees sprint?                                                           

(b) Why did the poet look at her mother again?                            

(c) What did she observe?                                                                

(d) Identify the figure of speech used in these lines.    

OR 

On their slag heap, these children Wear skins peeped through by bones & spectacles of steel With mended glass, like 

bottle bits on stones.  
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(a) Who are these children?                                                              

(b) What is their slag heap?                                                              

(c) Why are their bones peeping through their skins?                  

(d) What does ‘with mended glass ‘mean?       

 

Q. 9. Answer any four of the following in 30 - 40 words each: 12 marks  

(a) What did garbage mean to the children of Seemapuri & to their parents? (b) How did Rajkumar Shukla establish 

that he was resolute? (c) 'Life is what it is all about;.'How is keeping quite related to life? (d) Mention any four things 

of beauty that add joy to our life. (e) The manner of his (the Tiger King's) death is a matter of extraordinary          

interest. Comment. (f) In what condition, did Dr. Sadao find the American soldier at the seashore?  

Q. 10. Answer the following question in 120 - 150 words: 6 marks  

Even today so many among us believe in superstitions. An astrologer predicted about, the ‘Tiger King' that he would 

be killed by a tiger. He, killed, one hundred tigers yet were himself 'killed ‘by a tiger. How did the superstitious belief, 

prevail?                                                                           

OR 

Dr. Sadao faced a dilemma. Should he use his surgical skills to save the life of a wounded person or h& an escaped 

American P.O.W over to the Japanese police? How did he resolve this clash of values?                                             

Q. 11. Answer the following question in 120 - 150 words: 6 marks  

Everybody during the last lesson is filled with regret. Comment. (The Last Lesson)  

OR 

Sophie lives in a world fall of dreams which she does not know she cannot realise. Comment.  

Q. 12. Answer the following question in 120 - 150 words: 6 marks  

Describe how Silas Marner is betrayed by his friend, William Dane. 

OR 

Q.12. Why & how did Griffin rob the Vicar's house?  

Q. 13. Answer the following question in 120 - 150 words: 6 marks  

'Evil begets evil.' In the light of this remark, describe the character of Dunstan Cass.  

OR 

Q.13. Attempt a character sketch of Mrs. Hall. 
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12th CBSE- ENGLISH | PAPERSET-4 |  
QUESTIONS - 13 

THE MARKS ARE MENTIONED ON EACH QUESTION 
SECTION-A (READING) 20 marks 

Q. 1. Read the passage given below: 12 marks  

(1) Maharana Pratap ruled over Mewar only for 25 years. However, he accomplished so much gr&eur during his 

reign that his glory surpassed the boundaries of countries & time turning him into an immortal personality. He along 

with his kingdom became a synonym for valor, sacrifice & patriotism. Mewar had been a leading Rajput kingdom 

even before Maharana Pratap occupied the throne' Kings of Mewar, with the cooperation of their nobles & subjects, 

had established such traditions in the kingdom, as augmented them magnificence despite the hurdles of having a 

smaller area under their common& less population. There did come a few thorny occasions where the flag of the 

kingdom seemed sliding down. Their flag once again heaved high in the sky thanks to the gallantry &brilliance of the 

People of Mewar.  

(2) The destiny of Mewar was good in the sense that barring a few kings, most of the rulers were competent & 

patriotic. This glorious tradition of the kingdom almost continued for 1500 years since its establishment, right from 

the- reign of Bappa Rawal. In fact, only 60 Years before Maharana Pratap, Rana Sagna drove the kingdom to the 

pinnacle of fame. His reputation went beyond Rajasthan & reached Delhi. Two generations before him, Rana       

Kumbha had given a new status to the kingdom through victories & development work. During his reign, literature & 

art also progressed extraordinary. Ratna himself was inclined towards writing & his works are read with reverence 

even today. The ambience of his kingdom was conductive to the creation of high quality work of art & literature. 

These accomplishments were the outcome of a longst&ing tradition sustained by several generations.  

(3) The life of the people of Mewar must have been peaceful & prosperous during the Long span of time; otherwise 

such extraordinary accomplishment in these filed would not have been possible. This is reflected in their art & 

literature as well as their loving nature. They compensate for lack of admirable physique their firm but pleasant 

nature. The ambienceof Mewar remains lovely thanks to the cheerful & libera character of its people'  

(4) Once may observe astonishing pieces of workmanship not only in the forts & palaces of Mewar but also in public 

utility buildings. Ruins of many structures which are still staring tall in their gr&eur are testimony to the fact that 

Mewar was not only the l& of the brave but also art flourished & creative pursuits of literature & artists did not 

suffer. Imagine, glorious the period must have been when the Vijaya Stambha which is the sample of our great 

ancient architecture even today, was constructed. In the same fort, Kirti Stambha is st&ing high, reflecting how 

liberal the then administration was which allowed people from other communities & kingdoms to come & carry out 

construction work. It is useless to indulge in the debate whether the Vijaya Stambha was constructed first or the Kirti 

Stambha. The fact is that both the capitals are st&ing side by side & reveal the proximity between the king & the 

subjects of Mewar.  

(5) The cycle of time does not remain the same. Whereas, the reign of Rana Sanga was crucial in raising the kingdom 

to the acme of glory, it also proved to be his nemesis. History took a tum. The fortune of Mewar the l& of the brave, 

started waning. Rana tried to save the day with his acumen, which was running against the stream & the glorious 

traditions for sometimes.  
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1.1. On the basis of your underst&ing of the above passage answer each of the questions given below with the help 

of the options that follows: 4 marks     

(a) Maharana Pratap become immortal because:  

(i) he ruled Mewar for 25 years.     (ii) he added a lot gr&eur to Mewar.  

(iii) of his valor, sacrifice & patriotism.    (iv) both (ii) & (iii).  

(b) Difficulties in the way of Mewar were:  

(i) lack of cooperation of the nobility.    (ii) ancient traditions of the kingdom.  

(iii) its small area & small population.    (iv) the poverty of the subjects  

(c) During thorny occasions: . 

(i) the flag of Mewar seemed to be lowered.   (ii) the flag of Mewar was hoisted high.  

(iii) the people of Mewar showed gallantry.   (iv) most of the rulers heaved a sigh of relief.  

(d) Mewar was lucky because:  

(i) all of its rulers were competent.    (ii)most of its people were competent.  

(iii) most of its rulers were competent.    (iv)only a few of its people were incompetent.  

1.2. Answer the following question briefly: 6 marks  

(e)Who is the earliest king of Mewar mentioned in the passage?  

(f) What was Rana Kumbha’s contribution to the glory of Mewar?  

(g) What does the writer find worth admiration in the people of Mewar?  

(h) How could art & literature flourish in Mewar ?  

(i) How did the rulers show that they cared for their subjects?  

(i) What does the erection of Vijaya Stambha & Kirti Stambha in the same fort signify?  

(k) Find words from the passage which mean the same as each of the following:    

(i) surprising (para 4)          (ii) evidence (para 4)  

Q. 2. Read the passage given below: 10 marks  

(1) To ensure its perpetuity, the ground is well held by the panther both in space & time. It enjoys a much wider 

distribution over the globe than its bigger cousins, & procreates sufficiently profusely to ensure its continuity for all 

time to come.  

(2) There seems to be no breeding season of the panther, although its sawing & caterwauling is more frequently 

beard during winter & summer. The gestation period is about ninety to hundred days (Whipsnade, ninety-two days). 

The litter normally consists of four cubs, rarely five. Of these, generally two survive & not more than one reaches 

maturity I have never come across more than two cubs at the heels of the mother. Likewise, graziers in the forest 

have generally found only two cubs hidden away among rocks, hollows of trees, & other impossible places.  

(3) Panther cubs are generally in evidence in March. They are born blind. This is a provision of Nature against their 

drifting away from the place of safety in which they are lodged by their mother, & exposing themselves to the 

danger of there being devoured by hyenas, jackals, & other predators. They generally open their eyes in about three 

to four weeks.  

(4) The mother alone rears its cubs in seclusion. It keeps them out of the reach of the impulsive & impatient male. As 

a matter of fact, the mother separates from the male soon after mating & forgets all about their tumultuous union. 
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The story that the male often looks in to find out how the mother is progressing with her cubs has no foundation 

except in what we wish it should do at least.  

(5) The mother carries its cubs about by holding them by the scruff of their neck in its mouth' It  trains them to stalk, 

& teaches them how to deliver the bite of death to the prey. The cubs learn to treat all & sundry with suspicion at 

their mother's heels. Instinctively the cubs seek seclusion, keep to cover & protect their flanks by walking along the 

edge of the forest.  

(6) I have never had an opportunity to watch mother panther train its cubs. But in Pilibhit forests, I once saw a 

tigress giving some lessons to its little ones. I was sitting over its kill of Mala. As the sun set, the tigress materialized 

in the twilight behind my machan. For about an - hour, it scanned & surveyed the entire area looking & listening with 

the gravest concern. It even went to the road where my elephant was awaiting my signal. The mahout spotted it 

from a distance & drove the elephant away.  

(7) When darkness descended upon the scene & all was well & safe, the tigress called its cubs by emitting a low haa-

oon. The cubs, two in number & bigger than a full-grown cat, soon responded. They came trotting up to their mother 

& hurrried straight to the kill in indecent haste. The mother spitted at them-so furiously that they doubled back to its 

heels immediately. Thereafter, the mother & its cubs sat under cover about 50 feet (15m) away from the kill to 

watch, wait look, & listen. After about half an hour’s patient & fidgetless vigil the mother seemed to say 'paid for'. At 

this signal, the cubs cautiously advanced covering their flanks, towards the kill. No longer did not they make a 

decline for it, as they had done before.  

(8) The mother sat watching its cubs eat, & mounted guard on them. She did not partake of the meals.  

2.1. On the basis of your underst&ing of the passage complete the statements given below with the help of options 

that follow: 2 marks  

(a) To protect its cubs the mother panther hides them:  

(i) among rocks.      (ii) in the branches of the trees.  

(iii) behind the tree trunks.     (iv) at its heels.  

(b) The male panther:  

(i) is protective of its cubs.     (ii) trains its cubs.  

(iii) watches the progress of the mother.   (iv) is impulsive & impatient.  

2.2. Answer the following questions briefly: 6 marks  

(c) How many cubs does the mother panther rarely deliver?  

(d) What may happen if the panther cubs are not born blind?  

(e) Why did the mahouts dive his elephant away?  

(f) why did the tigress spit at its cubs?  

(g) From the narrator's observation, what do we learn about the nature of the tigers?  

(h) Why does the panther not face the risk of extinction?  

(i) Find words from the passage which mean the same as each of the following: 2 marks     

(a) moving aimlessly (para 3)             (b) came down/fell (para7)  
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Q. 3. Read the passage given below: 8 marks         

People tend to amass possessions, sometimes without being aware of doing so. They can have a delightful surprise 

when they find something useful which they did not know they owned. Those who never must change house 

become indiscriminate collectors of what can only be described as clutter. They leave unwanted objects in drawers, 

cupboards & attics for years to believe that they may one day need them. Old people also accumulate belongings for 

two other reasons, lack of physical & mental energy, & sentiment. Things owned or a long time are full of 

associations with the past, perhaps with the relatives who are dead, & so they gradually acquire a sentimental value.  

Something are collected deliberately in an attempt to avoid wastage. Among these are string & brown Paper kept bv 

thrifty people when a parcel has been opened. Collecting small items can be a mania. A lady cuts out from 

newspaper sketches of model clothes that she would like to buy if she had money. As she is not rich the chances are 

that she will never be able to afford such purchases. It is a harmless habit, but it litters up her desk.  

Collecting as a serious hobby is quite different & has many advantages. It provides relaxation for leisure hours, as 

just looking at one's treasure is always a joy. Once doesn't have to go out for amusement as the collection is housed 

at home. Whatever it consists of - stamps, records, first editions of books, China-there is always something to do in 

connection with it, from finding the right place for the latest addition to verifying facts in reference books. This 

hobby educates one not only in the chosen subject, but also in general matters which have some bearing on it.  

There are other benefits also. One gets to meet like-minded collectors to get advice/ compare notes, exchanges 

articles, to show off one's latest find etc. so, one's circle of friends grows. Soon the hobby leads to travelling, perhaps 

a meeting in another town, possibly a trip abroad in search of a rare specimen, for collectors are not confined to one 

country. Over the years one may well become an authority on one's hobby & will probably be asked to give informal 

talks to little gatherings & then, if successful, to larger audiences.  

(a) On the basis of your understanding of the above passage make notes on it, using headings & subheadings. Use 

recognisable abbreviations (Wherever necessary - minimum four) & a format you consider suitable. Also, supply an 

appropriate title to it. 5 marks (b) Write a summary of the passage in about 80 words. 3 marks  

SECTION – B - Writing Skills 

Q.4. You are Karan Kumar/Karuna Bajaj a leading lawyer practising in Surat. You want to buy an independent house 

at City Light Road to be used as office-cum-residence. Draft an advertisement in about 50 words for the classified 

columns of a local newspaper. You can be contacted at 45645678. 4 marks  

OR 

On 30th November your school is going to hold its annual sports day. You want Mr. Dhanraj Pillai, a noted hockey 

player to give away the prizes to the budding sportspersons of the school. Write a formal invitation in about 50 

wards requesting him to grace the occasion. You are Karuna/Karan, Sports Secretary, Sunrise Global School, Agra.  

Q.5.Along with air & water pollution, our cities are also under an attack of noise pollution. Marriage processions, DJ’s 

during wedding receptions, loud music from neighbourhood flats etc. are all source of noise which is not good for 

the old, the ailing & students. Write a letter in 120-150 words to editor of a local newspaper describing the problem 

& making a request to the concerned authorities to solve it. You are Karan/Karuna, M 114, Mall Road, Delhi. 6 marks. 

OR 
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Q.5. In all big cities road rage, has become a serious problem. A minor scratch, a little push, or a small brushing past 

can lead to a scuffle sometimes resulting even in murder. Write a letter in 120-150 words to the Police 

Commissioner giving your views on the problem & its solutions. You are Karuna/Karan, M-L14, Mall Road, Delhi.  

Q.6.Brain drain is not a bade for a developing country like India'. Write a debate in 150-200 words either for or 

against the motion. 10 marks  

OR 

Q.6. Write a speech in 150-120 words on the topic, 'Discipline shapes the future of a student. It is to be delivered in 

the morning assembly. You are Karun/Karan.  

Q. 7. Education has always been a noble profession. Our ancestors received their leaming at gurukuls & ashrams. 

Even in the near past pathshalas  (schools) were associated with places of worship. Today, education is fast 

becoming commercialised. Parents have to shed out a lot of money on coaching classes, tuition fees etc. Write an 

article in 150-200 words on the State of Education, Today'. You are Karan/Karuna. 10 marks 

OR 

Q.7. According to 2011 census, literacy rate of hundred percent or around has been achieved by only a couple of 

states in India. Illiteracy, is found mostly among the old & the deprived sections of society. What can the youth do to 

spread literacy in society? Write an article in 150-200 words on 'Role of students in eradicating illiteracy.’ you are 

Karuna/Karan.                                                                               

SECTION – C - LITERATURE: TEXT-BOOKS & LONG READING TEXT 

Q. 8. Read the extract given below & answer the questions that follow: 4 marks  

Now we will count to twelve 

and we will all keep still. 

For once on the Face of the Earth 

let's not speak in any language, 

let's stop for one second, 

and not move our arms so much. 

(a) What is the significance of the number, twelve?  

(b) Which faro activities does the poet want us to stop?  

(c) What does the poet mean by let's not speak in any language?                                      

(d) Describe the pun on the word 'arms'. 

OR 

.........I saw my mother 

beside me, 

doze, open mouthed, her face 

ashen like that 

of a corpse & realised with 

pain........... 

(a) What is 'I'?                                           
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(b) What did 'I' realise with pain?           

(c) Why was the realisation painful?      

(d) Identify & name the figure of speech used in these lines.  

Q. 9. Answer any four of the following questions in 30 - 40 words each: 12 marks  

(a) What does the reference to chappals in 'Lost Spring' tell us about the economic condition of the rag pickers?  

(b) What do we learn about the crofter's nature from the story, 'The Rattrap'?  

(c) How is 'Shakespeare wicked & the map a bad example' for the children of the school in a slum?  

(d) What picture of male chauvinism (tyranny) do we find in the poem, Aunt Jennifer's Tigers'?  

(e) How did the Governor, Oxford Prison describe Evans to the Secretary Examination Board?  

(f) At the dining table why did Zitkala-Sa begin to cry when others started eating?  

Q. 10. Answer the following in 120-150 words:  

Every teenager has a hero/heroine to admire. So many times, they become role models for them. What is wrong if 

Sophie fantasises about Danny Casey & is ambitious in life?      

OR 

Our native language is part of our culture & we are proud of it. How does the presence of village elders in the 

classroom & M.Hamel’s last lessons show their love French ?  

Q. 11. Answer the following in 120-150 words:  

Both Derry & Lamb are victims of physical impairment, but much more painful for them is the feeling of loneliness. 

Comment. 6 marks  

OR 

How did jo want the Roger Skunk story to end? Why?  

Q.12. Answer the following in 120-150 words:  

How did Mrs. Hall show her excitement when Griffin came to stay at Coach & Horses? 5 marks                                                                                                       

OR 

How do William Dane's deceit & Sarah’s desertion affect Silas?  

Q. 13. Answer the following in 120-150 words: 6 marks  

Marvel is the only character in ‘The Invisible Man’ who interacts with Griffin & gains somethings. Comment 
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12th CBSE- ENGLISH | PAPERSET-5 |  
QUESTIONS - 13 

THE MARKS ARE MENTIONED ON EACH QUESTION 
SECTION-A (READING) 20 marks 

1 Read the passage given below & answer the questions that follow:  

1. We sit in the last row, bumped about but free of stares. The bus rolls out of the dull crossroads of the city, & we 

are soon in open countryside, with fields of sunflowers as far as the eye can see, their heads all facing us. Where 

there is no water, the l& reverts to desert. While still on level ground, we see in the distance the tall range of the 

mount bogda, abrupt like a shining prism laid horizontally on the desert surface. It is over 5,000 meteres high, & the 

peaks are under permanent snow, in powerful contrast to the flat desert all round. Heaven lake lies part of the way 

up this range, about 2,000 meters above sea-level, at the foot of one of the higher snow-peaks. 2 As the bus climbs, 

the sky, brilliant before, grows overcast. I have brought nothing warm to wear: it is all down at the hotel in Urumqi. 

Rain begins to fall. The man behind me is eating overpoweringly smelly goats’ cheese. The bus window leaks 

inhospitably but reveals a beautiful view. We have passed quickly from desert through arable l& to pasture, & the 

ground is now green with grass, the slopes dark with pine. A few cattle drinks at a clear stream flowing past moss-

covered stones; it is a constable l&scape. The stream changes into a white torrent, & as we climb higher I wish more 

& more that I had brought with me something warmer than the pair of shorts that have served me so well in the 

desert. The stream (which, we are told, rises in heaven lake) disappears, & we continue our slow ascent. About noon, 

we arrive at heaven lake, & look for a place to stay at the foot, which is the resort area. We get a room in a small 

cottage, & I am happy to note that there are quilts on the beds. 3 St&ing outside the cottage we survey our 

surroundings. Heaven lake is long, sardine-shaped & fed by snowmelt from a stream at its head. The lake is an 

intense blue, surrounded on all sides by green mountain walls, dotted with distant sheep. At the head of the lake, 

beyond the delta of the inflowing stream, is a massive snow-capped peak which dominates the vista; it is part of a 

series of peaks that culminate, a little out of view, in mount bogda itself.  

4 For those who live in resort, there is a small mess-hall by the shore. We eat here sometimes, & sometimes buy 

food from the vendors outside, who sell kabab & naan until the last buses leave. The kababs, cooked on skewers 

over charcoal braziers, are particularly good; highly spiced & well-done. Horse’s milk is available too from the local 

Kazakh herdsmen, but I decline this. I am so affected by the cold that Mr. Cao, the relaxed young man who runs the 

mess, lends me a spare pair of trousers, several sizes too large but more than comfortable. Once I am warm again, I 

feel a pre-dinner spurt of energy-dinner will be long in coming- & I ask him whether the lake is good for swimming in.  

5 “Swimming?” Mr. Cao says. “you aren’t thinking of swimming, are you?” 6 “I thought I might,” I confess. “What’s 

the water like?” 7 He doesn’t answer me immediately, turning instead to examine some receipts with exaggerated 

interest. Mr. Cao, with great off-h&edness, address the air. “people are often drowned here,” he says. After a pause, 

he continues. “When was the last one?” This question is directed at the cook, who is preparing a tray of mantou 

(squat, white steamed bread rolls), & who now appears, wiping his doughy h& across his forehead. “Was it the 

Beijing athlete?” asks Mr. Cao.  

On the basis of your understanding of the above passage complete the statements given below with the help of the 

options that follow :   
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(a) One benefit of sitting in the last row of the bus was that  

(i) The narrator enjoyed the bumps.   (ii) No one stared at him.  (iii) He could see the sunflowers.  

(iv) He avoided the dullness of the city.  

(b) The narrator was travelling to  

(i) Monut Bogda.     (ii) Heaven lake.   (iii) a 2,000-meter high snow-Peak. 

(iv) Urumqi.  

(c) On reaching the destination the narrator felt relived because.  

(i) he had got away from the desert.    (ii)  a difficult journey had come to an end.   

(iii) he could watch the snow-peak.   (iv) There were thick on the beds.      

(d) Monut Bogda is compared to   

(i) A horizontal desert surface.    (ii) A shining prism.  

(iii) A constable landscape.    (iv) The overcast sky.  

Answer the questions given below briefly:  

(d) Which two things in the bus made the narrator feel uncomfortable?  

(e) What made the scene look like a constable l&scape?  

(f) What did he regret as the bus climbed higher?  

(g) Why did the narrator like to buy food from outside?  

(h) What is ironic about the pair of trousers lent by Mr. Cao? 

(i) Why did Mr. Cao not like the narrator to swim in the lake?  

(K) Find words from the passage which mean the same as the following:  

(i)   sellers (Para 4)          (ii) increased (para 7)  

2. Read the passive given below & answer the questions that follow: 1  

Thackeray reached kittur along with a small british army force & a few of his officers. He thought that the very 

presence of the british on the outskirts of kittur would terrorise the rules & people of kittur, & that they would lay 

down their arms. He was quite confident that he would be able to crush the revolt in no time. He ordered that tents 

be erected on the eastern side for the fighting forces, & a little away on the western slopes tents be put up for the 

family members of the officers who had accompanied them. During the afternoon & evening of 20th October, the 

british soldiers were busy making arrangements for these camps. 2 On the 21st morning, Thackery sent his political 

assistants to kittur fort to obtain a written assurance from all the important officers of kittur rendering them 

answerable for the security of the treasury of kittur. They, accordingly, met Sardar gurusiddappa & other officers of 

kittur & asked them to comply with the orders of Thackeray. They did not know that the people were in a defiant 

mood. The comm&ers of kittur dismissed the agent’s orders as no documents could be signed without sanction from 

rani chennamma. 3 Thackeray was enraged & sent for the comm&er of the horse Artillery, Which was about 100 

strong, & ordered him to rush his artillery into the fort & capture the comm&ers of the Desai’s army. When the 

horse artillery stormed into the fort, Sardar gurusiddappa, who had kept his men on full alert, promptly Comm&ed 

his men to repel & chase them away. The kittur forces made a bold front & overpowered the British soldiers. 4 In the 

meanwhile, the Desai’s guards has shut the gates of the fort & the British horse artillery men, being completely 
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overrun & routed, had to get out through the escape window. Rani’s soldiers chased out of the fort, killing a few of 

them until they retreated to their camps on the outskirts.  

5 A few of the British has found refuge in some residences, while some were hiding in their tents. The kittur soldiers 

captured about forty persons & brought them to the palace. These included twelve children & a few women from 

the british officers’ camp when they were brought in the presence of the Rani, she ordered the soldiers to be 

imprisoned. For the women & children she had only gentleness, & admonished her soldiers for taking them into 

custody. At her orders, these women & children were taken inside the palace & given food & shelter. Rani come 

down from her throne, Patted the children lovingly & told them that no harm would come to them. 6 She, then, sent 

word through a messenger to Thackeray that the British women & children were safe & could be taken back any 

time. Seeing this noble gesture of the Rani, he was moved. He wanted to meet this gracious lady & talk to her. He 

even thoughtof trying to persuade her to enter into an agreement with the British to stop all hostilities in lieu of an 

inam (prize) of eleven villages. His offer was dismissed with a gesture of contempt. She had no wish to meet 

Thackeray. That night she called sardar  gurusiddappa & other leading sardars, & after discussing all the issues came 

to the conclusion that there was no point in meeting Thackeray who had come with an army to threaten kittur into 

submission to british sovereignty.   

On the basis of your underst&ing of the above passage, complete the statements given below with the help of the 

options that follow:  

(a)  Thackeray was a/an  

(i)British tourist  (ii) Army officer  (iii) Advisor to the Rani of kittur   (iv) Treasury officer.  

(b)  British women & children came to kittur to   

(i) Visit kittur.   (ii) Enjoy like in tents  (iii) Stay in the palace    (iv) Company to army force. 

Answer the following questions briefly :  

(c) Why did Thackeray come to kittur? (d) Why did kittur officials refuse to give the desired assurance to Thackeray? 

(e) What happened to the horse artillery? (f) How, do we know that the rani was a noble soul? (g) How, in your 

opinion, would the British women have felt after meeting the rani? (h) Why did the rani refuse to meet Thackeray?  

(i) Find words from the passage which mean the same as the following:  

(i) Aggressive/refusing to obey (Para 2)        (ii) Entered forcibly (Para 3)  

3. Read the passage given below & answer the questions that follow:  

The most alarming of man’s assaults upon the environment is the contamination of air, earth, rivers & sea with lethal 

materials. This pollution is for the most part irrevocable; the chain of evil it initiates is for the most part irreversible. 

In this contamination of the environment, chemicals are the sinister partners of radiation in changing the very nature 

of the world; radiation released through nuclear explosions into the air, comes to the earth in rain, lodges into the 

soil, enters the grass or corn, or wheat grown there & reaches the bones of a human being, there to remain until his 

death. Similarly, chemicals sprayed on crops lie long in soil, entering living organisms, passing from one to another in 

a chain of poisoning & death. Or they pass by underground streams until they emerge & combine into new forms 

that kill vegetation, sicken cattle, & harm those who drink from once pure wells.  

It took hundreds of millions of years to produce the life that now inhabits the earth & reach a state of adjustment & 

balance with its surroundings. The environment contains elements that are hostile as well as supporting.  
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Even within the light of the sun, there are short-wave radiations with power to injure. Given time, life has adjusted & 

a balance reached. For time is the essential ingredient, but in the modern world there is no time.  

The rapidity of chance & the speed with which new situations are created follow the heedless pace of man rather 

than the deliberate pace of nature. Radiation is no longer the bombardment of cosmic rays; it is now the unnatural 

creation of man’s tampering with the atom. The chemicals to which life is asked to make adjustments are no longer 

merely calcium, silica, copper & all the rest of the minerals washed out of the rocks & carried in the rivers to the sea; 

they are the symthetic creations of man’s inventive mind, brewed in his laboratories, & having no counterparts in 

nature.  

(a) On the basis of your underst&ing of the above passage, make notes on it using heading & sub-headings. Use 

recognizable abbreviations (wherever necessary – minimum four) & a format you consider suitable.  

(b) Write a summary of the passage in about 80 words.   

SECTION B – (Writing Skills) 

4. Your friend, P.V. Satish, has invited you to attend the wedding of his sister, Jaya. You find that you have & 

important paper of pre-board examination on the day of the wedding. Thus you cannot attend the event write in 

about 50 words a formal reply to the invitation expressing your regret. You are Puneet/puneeta vij, M-114, Fort 

Road, Chennai.  

OR 

4. You are Vikram/Sonia, some electronics engineer who has recently returned from the U.S & looking for a job in 

the IT industry. Draft an advertisement in about 50 words for the situations wanted coloum of a national newspaper. 

Your contact number is 9193010203.  

 

5. Mountview public school, kalka is run by an NGO to give quality education to the children of the deprived sections 

of society. The principal of the school feels that blackboards in the need to be replaced. She decides to ask the 

chairperson of the NGO named ‘education for all’ for funds. Write her letter in 120-150 words. Her name is Shweta. 

OR 

5. National book trust organized a week-long book fair at anna grounds, Chennai. You visited the fair & bought a few 

books. You were pleased with the arrangements, enthusiasm of the visitors & the fact that books have not yet lost 

their relevance in the world of the Internet. Write a letter in 120 -125 words to the editor, the Hindu, Chennai to 

express your feelings. You are Lalit/latha, 112, mount Road, Chennai.   

6. To have a fair complexion is an obsession in our society. Dem& for fair brides in matrimonial columns & sale of 

fairness creams are evidence enough. Write an article in 150-200 words giving your views on ‘beautiful mind, better 

than a fair complexion. ‘you are Natwar/nimmi.  Use the following clues:  

1 the west, people like to be tanned   2 fair complexion, only skin deep  

3 beautiful mind      4 attitude to life     5 behavior in society, etc.  

OR 

6. Your school is situated near a road intersection. Last week, in the morning, a bus coming at a great speed 

overturned when it braked suddenly. Senior students of your school rushed out & did everything to save 
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thepassengers. You were part of the rescue efforts. Write a report in 150-200 words on the accident & your friends’ 

role, for your school newsletter. You are George/mary.  

 

7. Holi is a festival of colors. It expresses pure & simple joy. Sometimes we start throwing colored water & that too 

on strangers. As the head boy / girl of your school write a speech in 150 – 200 words that you will deliver in the 

morning assembly of your school, describing why Holi is played & how it should be played.   

OR 

7. “It is cruel to put stray dogs to sleep. “Write a debate in 150-200 words either for or against the motion.   

 

SECTION C – (Literature:textbooks & long Reading text) 

8. Read the extract given below & answer the questions that follow:  

At back of the dim class 

One unnoted, sweet & young. His eyes live in a dream, 

Of squirrel’s game, in tree room, other than this. 

(a) Why is the class dim ?  

(b) How is the young child different from others?  

(c) What is he doing ?  

(d) What is a tree room?  

OR 

Aunt Jennifer’s fingers fluttering through her wool 

Find even the ivory needle hard to pull. 

The massive weight of uncle’s wedding b& 

Sits heavily upon aunt Jennifer’s h&. 

(a) What is Aunt Jennifer doing with her wool?  

(b) Why does she find it difficult to pull her ivory needle? 

(c) What does ‘wedding b&’ st& for?  

(d) Describe the irony in the third line.  

9. Answer any four of the following questions in 30-40 words each:  

(a) How were the parents & M. Hamel responsible for the children’s neglect of the French language?  

(b) How did douglas’ introduction to YMCA pool revive his childhood fear of water?  

(c) In the last line of the poem, ‘My Mother at Sixty-six’, why does the poet use the word ‘smile’ repeatedly?  

(d) How is total inactivity on the earth in the winter months full of life?(Keeping quiet)  

(e) When did the Maharaja decide to double the l& tax for a village?  

(f) What kind of garden does Mr. lamb have? Why does he like it?  

10.  Answer the following questions in 120-150 words :  

“For the children it is wrapped in wonder, for the elders it is a means of survival.” What kind of life do the rag-pickers 

of seemapuri lead?   

OR 
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Q.10. The peddler believed that the whole world is a rattrap. How did he himself get caught in the same ?  

11.  Answer the following question in 120-150 words :  

In India, the so-called lower castes have been treated cruelly for a long time. Who advised Bama to fight against this 

prejudics, when & how?  

OR 

Q.11. To choose between professional loyalty & patriotism was a dilemma for Dr. Sadao. How did he succeed in 

betraying neither ?  

12. Answer the following questing in 120-150 words :  

Attempt a character sketch of Dr. kemp as a law-abiding citizen.  

OR 

Q.12. Lammeter sisters have money but not class or education. What do you think about them?  

13.  Attempt the following question in 120-150 words :   

Describe the circumstances that led to the unveiling of griffin’s invisibility.  

OR 

Q.13. How did Dunstan cass meet his end?  
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12th CBSE- COMPUTER SCIENCE | PAPERSET-1 
THE MARKS ARE MENTIONED ON EACH QUESTION 

ALL QUESTIONS ARE COMPULSORY 
1. (a) What is the difference between Local Variable and Global Variable ? Also,give suitable C++ code to 

illustrate both.             2 

(b) Write the names of the header files, which is/are essentially required torun/execute the following C++ 

code:               1 

void main () 

{ 

char C, String [] = “Excellence Overload”; 

for (int I=0; String [I] ! = „\0‟;I++} 

if (String [I] == „ ‟) 

cout<<endl; 

else 

{ 

C=toupper(String [I]); 

cout<<C; 

} 

} 

(c) Rewrite the following program after removingsyntactical errors (if any).Underline each correction. 2 

#include [iostream.h] 

typedef char Text (80); 

void main () 

{ 

Text T=“Indian”; 

int Count=strlen(T); 

cout<<T<<„has‟<<Count<<„characters‟<<endl; 

} 

(d) Find the output of the following program:         3 

# include <iostream.h> 

voidChangeArray (int Number, int ARR[], int Size) 

{ 

for (int L=0; L<Size; L++) 

If (L<Number) 

ARR[L] + = L; 

else 

ARR[L] * = L; 

} 

void Show(int ARR [], int Size) 

{ 

for (int L=0; L<size; L++) 

(L%2!=0) ? cout<<ARR[L] <<“#” : cout<<ARR[L] <<endl; 

} 

void main ( ) 

{ 

int Array [] = {30,20,40,10,60,50}; 

ChangeArray (3, Array, 6); 

Show (Arry,6); 

} 

(e) Find the output of the following program:         2 

# include <iostream.h> 

void main ( ) 

{ 

int Track [] = {10,20,30,40,}, *Striker ; 
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Striker=Track ; 

Track [1] + = 30 ; 

cout<<“Striker>”<<*Striker<<endl ; 

* Striker - =10 ; 

Striker++; 

cout<<“Next @”<<*Striker <<endl ; 

Striker+=2 ; 

cout<<“last @”<<*Striker<<endl ; 

cout<<“Reset To” <<Track [0] <<endl ; 

} 

 

(f) Go through the C++ code shown below, and find out the possible output oroutput from the suggested 

output options (i) to(iv). Also, write the leastvalue and highest value, which can be assigned to the variable 

guess. 2 

# include <iostream.h> 

#include <stdlib.h> 

void main ( ) 

{ 

randomize (); 

int Guess, High=4 ; 

Guess=random (High) +50; 

for (int C=guess ; C<=55 ; C++) 

cout<<C<<“#”; 

} 

(i) 50 # 51 # 52 # 53 # 54 # 55 # 

(ii) 52 # 53 # 54 # 55 # 

(iii) 53 # 54 # 

(iv) 51 # 52 # 53 # 54 # 55 

2. (a) Differentiate between members, which are present within the private visibilitymode with those which 

are present within the public visibility modes. 2 

(b) Write the output of the following C++ code. Also, write the name of feature ofObject Oriented 

Programming used in the following program jointly illustrated bythe functions [I] to [IV]. 2 

#include<iostream.h> 

void Print ( ) // Function [I] 

{ 

for (int K=1;K<=60; K++) cout<< “-”; 

cout<<endl; 

} 

void Print (int N) //Function[II] 

{ 

for (int K=1;K<=N; L++) cout<<“*”; 

cout<<endl; 

} 

void Print(int A, int B) //Function[III] 

{ 

for(int K=1;K<=B;K++) cout<<A*k; 

cout<<endl; 

} 

void Print(char T, int N) // Function[IV] 

{ 

for (int K=1;k<=N;K++) cout<<T; 

cout<<endl; 

} 

void main( ) 

{ 
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int U=9,V=4,W=3; 

char C =‟@‟; 

Print(C,V); 

Print(U,W); 

} 

(c) Define a class candidate in C++ with following Description:Private Members 4 

A data member RNo (Registration Number) of type long 

A data member Name of type string 

A data member Score of type float 

A data member Remark of type string 

A member function AssignRem( ) to assign Remarks as per the Scoreobtained by a candidate. Score 

range and the respective Remarks areshown as follows: 

Score       Remarks 

>=50       Selected 

less than 50      Not selected 

Public members 

A function ENTER( ) to allow user to enter values for RNo, Name, Score& call function AssignRem() to 

assign the remarks. 

A function DISPLAY( ) to allow user to view the content of all the datamembers. 

(d) Answer the question (i) to (iv) based on the following: 4 

class Student 

{ 

intRno; 

char Name[20]; 

float Marks; 

protected: 

void result( ); 

public: 

Student ( ); 

void Register ( ); void Display( ); 

}; 

class Faculty 

{ 

longFCode; 

charFName [20]; 

protected: 

float Pay; 

public: 

Faculty ( ); 

void Enter( ); 

void Show( ); 

}; 

class Course: public Student, private Faculty 

{ 

longCCode [10]; char CourseName [50]; 

charStartDate [8], EndDate [8]; 

public: 

Course( ); 

void Commence ( ); 

voidCDetail ( ); 

}; 

(i) Which type of inheritance is illustrated in the above C++ code? 

(ii) Write the names of all the data members, which is /are accessible frommember function Commence of 

class Course. 

(iii) Write the names of member functions, which are accessible from objects ofclass Course. 
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(iv) Write the names of all the members, which are accessible from objects ofclass faculty. 

3. (a) Write a Get1From2( ) function in C++ to transfer the content from two arraysFIRST[ ] and SECOND[ 

] to array ALL[ ]. The even places (0, 2, 4,…) of arrayALL[] should get the content from the array FIRST[ ] 

and odd places (1,3,5,…)of the array ALL [ ]should get the content from the array SECOND[ ] . 3 

Example: 

If the FIRST[ ] array contains 

30, 60, 90 

And the SECOND[ ] array contains 

10, 50, 80 

The ALL[ ] array should contain 

30, 10, 60, 50, 90, 80 

(b) An array P[20] [50] is stored in the memory along the column with each of itsElement occupying 4 

bytes, find out the location of P[15] [10], if P[0][0] is storedat 5200. 3 

(c) Write a function in C++ to Perform insert operation on a dynamicallyallocated Queue containing 

Passenger details as given in the followingdefinition of NODE. 4 

struct NODE 

{ 

longPno; //passenger number 

charPname[20]; //passenger name 

NODE *Link; 

}; 

(d) Write a COLSUM ( ) function in C++ to find sum of each column of eachcolumn of aNxM matrix. 2 

(e) Evaluate the following postfix notation of expression : 

50, 60, +,20, 10, -, * 2 

4. (a) Observe the program segment given below carefully and fill the blanksmarked as Statement 1 and 

Statement 2 using seekg( ), seekp( ), tellp( ) and tellg()functions for performing the required task. 1 

# include <fstream.h> 

class PRODUCT 

{ 

intPno; char pname [20]; intqty; 

public : 

: 

voidModifyQty ( ); // The function is to modify quantity of a 

PRODUCT 

}; 

void PRODUCT :: ModifyQty ( ) 

{ 

fstreamFil; 

Fil.open (“PRODUCT.DAT” , ios : : binary | ios : : in | ios : : out); 

intMPno; 

cout<<“Product No to modify quantity :”; cin>>MPno; 

while(Fil.read ((char*) this, sizeof (PRODUCT))) 

{ 

if (MPno ==Pno) 

{ 

cout<<“present quantity:” <<Qty<<endl; 

cout<<“changed quantity:”; cin>>Qty; 

int position = ________; //Statement 1 

___________________; //Statement 2 

Fil.write ((char*) this, sizeof (PRODUCT)); // Re-writing 

the Record 

} 

} 

Fil.close( ); 

} 
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(b) Write a function in C++ to count the no. of “Me” or “My” words present in atext file “DIARY.TXT”. 2 

If the file “DIARY.TXT” content is as follows : 

My first book was Me and My 

family. It gave me chance to be 

known to the world. 

The output of the function should be 

Count of Me/ My in file : 4 

(c) Write a function in C++ to search for a laptop from a binary file “LAPTOP.DAT” containing the objects 

of class LAPTOP (as defined below).The user should enter the Model No and the function should search 

anddisplay the details of the laptop. 3 

class LAPTOP 

{ 

longModelNo; 

float RAM, HDD; 

char Details[120]; 

public: 

voidStockEnter ( ) {cin>>Model No>>RAM>>HDD; gets(Details);} 

voidStockDisplay( ){cout<<ModelNo<<RAM<<HDD<<Details<<endl;} 

longReturnModelNo ( ) { return ModelNo ;} 

}; 

5. (a) What do you understand by Union & Cartesian Product operations inrelational algebra? 2 

Consider the following tables WORKER and PAYLEVEL and answer (b) and (c)parts of this question: 

Table: WORKER 

ECODE  NAME  DESIGN  PLEVEL  DOJ    DOB 

11   RadheShyam Supervisor  P001   13-Sep-2004   23-Aug-1981 

12   ChanderNath Operator  P003   22-Feb-2010   12-Jul-1987 

13   Fizza  Operator  P003   14-Jun-2009   14-Oct-1983 

15   Ameen   Mechanic  P002   21-Aug-2006   13-Mar-1984 

18   Sanya  Clerk   P002   19-Dec-2005   09-Jun-1983 

Table: PAYLEVEL 

PLEVEL    PAY   ALLOWANCE 

P001     26000   12000 

P002     22000   10000 

P003     12000   6000 

(b) Write SQL commands for the following statements: 4 

(i) To display the details of all WORKERs, descending order of DOB. 

(ii) To display NAME and DESIG of those WORKERs whose PLEVEL iseither P001 or P002. 

(iii)To display the content of all the WORKERs table, whose DOB is inbetween „19-JAN-1984‟ and 18-

JAN-1987‟. 

(iv) To add a new row with the following : 

19, „Days Kishore‟, „Operator‟, „P003‟. „19-Jun-2008‟, „11-Jul-1984‟ 

(c) Give the output of the following SQL queries :2 

(i) SELECT COUNT (PLEVEL), PLEVEL FROM WORKER GROUPBY PLEVEL; 

(ii) SELECT MAX(DOB), MIN(DOJ) FROM WORKER; 

(iii) SELECT Name, Pay FROM WORKER W, PAYLEVEL P WHEREW.PLEVEL = S.PLEVEL AND 

P.ECODE<13; 

(iv) SELECT PLEVEL, PAY+ALLOWANCE FROM PAYLEVELWHERE PLEVEL = „P003‟; 

6. (a) Verify the following using Truth Table 2 

U.(U‟ + V) = (U+V) 

(b) Write the equivalent Boolean Expression for the following Logic Circuit.2 
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(c) Write the POS form of a Boolean function F, which is represented in a truthtable as follows: 1 

A   B   C   D 

0   0   0   0 

0   0   1   1 

0   1   0   1 

  0    1    1    0 

  1    0    0    1 

  1    0    1    0 

  1    1    0    0 

  1    1    1    1 

(d) Reduce the following Boolean Expression using K-Map : 

F(P, Q, R, S) = Σ (0, 1, 2, 4, 5, 6, 8, 12) 3 

7. (a) Difference between packet switching and message switching technique innetwork communication. 1 

(b) Differentiate between BUS and STAR topology of networks. 1 

(c) What is VoIP ?1 

(d) Out of the following, identify client side script(s) and server side script(s). 

(a) ASP   (b) Javascript1   (c) VBscript     (d) JSP 

(e) Quick Learn University is setting up its Academic blocks at Prayag Nagar andplanning to set up a 

network. The university has 3 academic blocks and oneHuman Resource Center as shown in the diagram 

below :4 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Center to center distances between various 

block/center is as follows : 

Law Block to Business Block   40 m 

Law Block to Technology Block   80 m 

Law Block to HR Center    105 m 

Business Block to Technology Block  30 m 

Business Block to HR Center   35 m 

Technology Block to HR Center   15 m 

Number of Computers in each of the Blocks / Center is follows : 

Law Block      15 

Technology Block     40 

HR Center      115 

Business Block     25 

(e1) Suggest the most suitable place (i.e. Block / Center) to install the server ofthis university with a suitable 

reason. 

(e2) Suggest an ideal layout for connecting these blocks/center for a wiredconnectivity. 

(e3) Which device you will suggest to be placed/ installed in each of theseblocks/center to efficiently 

connect all the computers with in these blocks / center. 

(e4) The university is planning to connect its admission office in the closest bigcity, which type of network 

out of LAN, MAN or WAN will be formed? Justifyyour answer. 

(f) Which of the following will come under Cyber Crime? 

i. Theft of a brand new sealed pack laptop 

ii. Access to a bank account for getting unauthorized Money Transaction 

iii. Modification in a company data with unauthorized access 

iv. Photocopying a printed report 

(g) Compare open source software and proprietary software. 
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12th CBSE- COMPUTER SCIENCE | PAPERSET-2 
THE MARKS ARE MENTIONED ON EACH QUESTION 

ALL QUESTIONS ARE COMPULSORY 
Section – A 

(Only for C++ Candidates) 
1. (a) Find the correct identifiers out of the following, which can be used for namingvariable, constants or functions 
in a C++ program : 2  
(While, for, Float, new, 2ndName, A%B, Amount2, _Counter ) 
(b) Observe the following program very carefully and write the names of those header file(s), which are essentially 
needed to compile and execute the following program successfully : 1     
typedef char TEXT[80];    
void main()    
{     
TEXT Str[] = “Peace is supreme”;     
int Index=0;     
while (Str[Index]!=’\0’)      
if (isupper(Str[Index]))       
Str[Index++]=’#’;      
else       
Str[Index++]=’*’;     
puts(Str);    
}   
(c) Observe the following C++ code very carefully and rewrite it after removing any/all syntactical errors with each 
correction underlined. 2    
Note : Assume all required header files are already being included in the program.    
#Define float Max=70.0;    
Void main()    
{     
int Speed     
char Stop=’N’;     
cin>>Speed;     
if Speed>Max      
Stop=’Y’;     
cout<<Stop<<end;    
}   
(d) Write the output of the following C++ program code : 2   Note : Assume all required header files are already being 
included in the program.    
void Position(int &C1,int C2=3)    
{     
C1+=2;     
C2+=Y;    
}    
void main()    
{     
int P1=20, P2=4;     
Position(P1);     
cout<<P1<<”,”<<P2<<end1;     
Position(P2,P1);     
cout<<P1<<”,”<<P2<<end1;    
}  
(e) Write the output of the following C++ program code : 3  
Note : Assume all required header files are already being included in the program.  
class Calc  
{  
char Grade;  
int Bonus;  
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public:  
   Calc() {Grade=’E’;Bonus=0;}  
   void Down(int G)  
   {  
    Grade–=G;  
   }  
   Void Up(int G)  
   {  
    Grade+=G;  
    Bonus++;  
   }  
   void Show()  
   {  
    cout<<Grade<<”#”<<Bonus<<end1;  
   }  
  };  
  void main()  
  {  
   Calc c;  
   C.Down(2);  
   C.Show();  
   C.Up(7);  
   C.Show();  
   C.Down(2);  
   C.Show();  
  }  
(f) Study the following program and select the possible output(s) from the options (i) to (iv) following it. Also, write 
the maximum and the minimum values that can be assigned to the variable NUM. 2    
Note :    
– Assume all required header files are already being included in the program.    
– random(n) function generates an integer between 0 and n – 1.    
void main()    
{     
randomize();     
int NUM;     
NUM=random(3)+2;     
char TEXT[]=”ABCDEFGHIJK”;     
for (int I=1;I<=NUM; I++)     
{      
for(int J=NUM; J<=7;J++)      
 cout<<TEXT[J];      
cout<<end1;     
}    
}  
(i) FGHI (ii) BCDEFGH (iii) EFGH (iv) CDEFGH   
     FGHI      BCDEFGH        EFGH       CDEFGH  
FGHI      EFGH  
     FGHI   EFGH  
 
2. (a) What is a copy constructor ? Give a suitable example in C++ to illustrate with its definition within a class and a 
declaration of an object with the help of it. 2   
(b) Observe the following C++ code and answer the questions (i) and (ii) :    
class Traveller    
{     
long PNR;     
char TName[20];    
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public :     
Traveller()     //Function 1    
{cout<<”Ready”<<end1;}  
 
void Book(long P,char N[])   //Function 2     
{PNR = P; strcpy(TName, N);}  
 
void Print()     //Function 3     
{cout<<PNR << TName <<end1;}  
 
~Traveller()     //Function 4     
{cout<<”Booking cancelled!”<<end1;}   };   
 
(i) Fill in the blank statements in Line 1 &2 to execute Function 2 & 3 respectively in the following code : 1  
   void main()  
   {  
    Traveller T;  
    _________     //Line 1  
    _________     //Line 2  
   }//Stops here  
  (ii) Which function will be executed at }//Stops here ? What is this function referred as ?  1  
 (c) Write the definition of a class PIC in C++ with following description : 4  
  Private Members   
  – Pno    //Data member for Picture Number (an integer)  
  – Category  //Data member for Picture Category (a string)  
  – Location  //Data member for Exhibition Location (a string)  
  – FixLocation   //A member function to assign  
   //Exhibition Location as per category  
   //as shown in the following table  
Category  Location  
Classic   Amina  
Modern  Jim Plaq  
Antique  Ustad Khan  
  Public Members  
  – Enter()  //A function to allow user to enter values  
   //Pno, category and call FixLocation() function  
  – SeeAll()  //A function to display all the data members  
 (d) Answer the questions (i) to (iv) based on the following : 4  
  class Exterior  
  {  
   int OrderId;  
   char Address[20];  
  protected:  
   float Advance;  
  public:  
   Exterior();  
   void Book(); void View();  
  };  
  class Paint:public Exterior  
  {  
   int WallArea,ColorCode;  
  protected:  
   char Type;  
  public:  
   Paint();  
   void PBook();  
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   void PView();  
  };  
  class Bill : public Paint  
  {  
   float Charges;  
   void Calculate();  
  public :  
   Bill();  
   void Billing();  
   void Print();  
  };  
  (i) Which type of Inheritance out of the following is illustrated in the above example ?  
   – Single Level Inheritance  
   – Multi Level Inheritance  
   – Multiple Inheritance  
  (ii) Write the names of all data members, which are directly accessible from the member functions of class Paint.  
  (iii) Write the names of all the member functions, which are directly accessible from an object of class Bill.  
  (iv) What will be the order of execution of the constructors, when an object of class Bill is declared ?  
3. (a) Write the definition of a function Alter(int A[], int N) in C++, which should change all the multiples of 5 in the 
array to 5 and rest of the elements as 0. For example, if an array of 10 integers is as follows : 2  
A[0]  A[1]  A[2]  A[3]  A[4]  A[5]  A[6]  A[7]  A[8]  A[9]  
55  43  20  16  39  90  83  40  48  25  
  After executing the function, the array content should be changed as follows :  
A[0]  A[1]  A[2]  A[3]  A[4]  A[5]  A[6]  A[7]  A[8]  A[9]  
5  0  5  0  0  5  0  5  0  5  
 (b) A two dimensional array P[20] [50] is stored in the memory along the row with each of its element occupying 4 
bytes, find the address of the element P[10] [30], if the element P[5] [5] is stored at the memory location 15000. 3  
 (c) Write the definition of a member function Pop( ) in C++, to delete a book from a dynamic stack of TEXTBOOKS 
considering the following code is already included in the program.  4    
struct TEXTBOOKS    
{     
char ISBN[20]; char TITLE[80];     
TEXTBOOKS *Link;    
};    
class STACK    
{     
TEXTBOOKS *Top;    
public:     
STACK(){Top=NULL;}     
void Push();     
void Pop();     
~STACK();   };  
(d) Write a function REVCOL (int P[] [5], int N, int M) in C++ to display the content of a two dimensional array, with 
each column content in reverse order. 3   Note : Array may contain any number of rows.    
For example, if the content of array is as follows :  
15  12  56  45  51  
13  91  92  87  63  
11  23  61  46  81  
The function should display output as :  
11  23  61  46  81  
13  91  92  87  63  
15  12  56  45  51  
(e) Convert the following infix expression to its equivalent Postfix expression, showing the stack contents for each 
step of conversion. 2  
  X / Y + U* (V–W)  
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 4. (a) Write function definition for SUCCESS( ) in C++ to read the content of a text file STORY.TXT, count the presence 
of word STORY and display the number of occurrence of this word.  2  
Note :  
  – The word STORY should be an independent word  
  – Ignore type cases (i.e. lower/upper case)  
  Example :  
If the content of the file STORY.TXT is as follows :  
Success shows others that we can do it. It is possible to achieve success with hard work. Lot of money does not mean 
SUCCESS.  
The function SUCCESS( ) should display the following :  
3  
(b) Write a definition for function Economic ( ) in C++ to read each record of a binary file ITEMS.DAT, find and display 
those items, which costs less than 2500. Assume that the file ITEMS.DAT is created with the help of objects of class 
ITEMS, which is defined below : 3   class ITEMS  
  {  
   int ID;char GIFT[20]; float Cost;  
  public :  
   void Get()  
   {  
    cin>>CODE;gets(GIFT);cin>>Cost;  
   }  
   void See()  
   {  
    cout<<ID<<”:”<<GIFT<<”:”<<Cost<<end1;  
   }  
   float GetCost(){return Cost;}.  
  };  
(c) Find the output of the following C++ code considering that the binary file CLIENTS.DAT exists on the hard disk 
with records of 100 members. 1    
class CLIENTS  
  {  
   int Cno;char Name[20];  
  public :  
   void In(); void Out();  
  };  
  void main()  
  {  
   fstream CF;  
   CF.open(“CLIENTS.DAT”,ios::binary|ios::in);  
   CLIENTS C;  
   CF.read((char*) &C, sizeof(C));  
   CF.read((char*) &C, sizeof(C));  
   CF.read((char*) &C, sizeof(C));  
   int POS=CF.tellg()/sizeof(C);  
   cout<<”PRESENT RECORD:”<<POS<<end1;  
   CF.close();  
  }  

Section – B 
(Only for Python Candidates) 

1. (a) How is _init( ) _different from _del ( ) __ ? 2  
 (b) Name the function/method required to 1  
  (i) check if a string contains only uppercase letters  
  (ii) gives the total length of the list.  
 (c) Rewrite the following code in python after removing all syntax error(s). Underline each correction done in the 
code. 2    
def Tot(Number)  #Method to find Total  
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   Sum=0  
   for C in Range (1, Number+1):  
    Sum+=C  
   RETURN Sum  
  print Tot[3] #Function Calls  
  print Tot[6]  
(d) Find and write the output of the following python code : 2  
  for Name in [‘Jayes’, ‘Ramya’, ‘Taruna’, ‘Suraj’]:  
   print Name  
   if Name[0]== ‘T’:  
    break  
  else :  
   print ‘Finished!’  
  print ‘Got it!’  
 (e) Find and write the output of the following python code : 3  
  class Worker :  
   def_init_(self,id,name) :    #constructor  
    self.ID=id  
    self.NAME=name  
   def Change(self):  
    self.ID=self.ID+10  
    self.NAME=‘Harish’  
   def Display(self,ROW):  
    print self.ID,self.NAME,ROW  
  w=Worker(55,‘Fardeen’)  
  w.Display(1)  
  w.Change()  
  w.Display(2)  
  print w.ID+len(w.NAME)  
 (f) What are the possible outcome(s) executed from the following code ? Also specify the maximum and minimum 
values that can be assigned to variable NUMBER. 2  
  STRING=”CBSEONLINE”  
  NUMBER=random.randint(0,3)  
  N=9  
  while STRING[N]!=‘L’:  
   print STRING[N]+STRING[NUMBER]+‘#’,  
   NUMBER=NUMBER+1  
   N=N–1  
(i) ES#NE#IO#   (ii) LE#NO#ON#   (iii) NS#IE#LO#  (iv) EC#NB#IS#  
2. (a) Illustrate the concept inheritance with the help of a python code. 2  
 (b) What will be the output of the following python code ? Explain the try and except used in the code.  2  
  U=0  
  V=6  
  print ‘First’  
  try:  
   print ‘Second’  
   M=V/U  
   print ‘Third’,M  
   except ZeroDivisionError :  
    print V*3  
    print ‘Fourth’  
   except:  
    print V*4  
    print ‘Fifth’  
 (c) Write a class PICTURE in Python with following specifications : 4  
  Instance Attributes  
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  – Pno  # Numeric value  
  – Category # String value  
  – Location # Exhibition Location with String value  
  Methods :  
  – FixLocation() # A method to assign  
      # Exhibition Location as per Category  
      # as shown in the following table  
Category  Location  
Classic   Amina  
Modern  Jim Plaq  
Antique  Ustad Khan  
  – Enter() # A function to allow user to enter values  
  # Pno, Category and call FixLocation() method  
  – SeeAll()  # A function to display all the data members  
 (d) What is operator overloading with methods ? Illustrate with the help of an example using a python code.   2  
(e) Write a method in python to display the elements of list thrice if it is a number and display the element 
terminated with ‘#’ if it is not a number. 2  
  For example, if the content of list is as follows :  
  ThisList=[‘41’,‘DROND’,‘GIRIRAJ’, ‘13’,‘ZARA’]  
  The output should be  
  414141  
  DROND#  
  GIRIRAJ#  
  131313  
  ZARA#  
 
3. (a) What will be the status of the following list after fourth pass of bubble sort and fourth pass of selection sort 
used for arranging the following elements in descending order ?   3  
  14, 10, –12, 9, 15, 35  
 (b) Write a method in python to search for a value in a given list (assuming that the elements in list are in ascending 
order) with the help of Binary Search method. The method should return –1 if the value not present else it should 
return position of the value present in the list. 2  
 (c) Write PUSH (Books) and POP (Books) methods in python to add Books and remove Books considering them to act 
as Push and Pop operations of Stack. 4  
 (d) Write a method in python to find and display the prime numbers between 2 to N. Pass N as argument to the 
method. 3  
 (e) Evaluate the following postfix notation of expression. Show status of stack after every operation.    2  
  84, 62, –, 14, 3, *, +  
 4. (a) Differentiate between the following : 1  
  (i) f = open(‘diary.txt’, ‘r’)  
  (ii) f = open(‘diary.txt’, ‘w’)  
 (b) Write a method in python to read the content from a text file diary.txt line by line and display the same on 
screen. 2  
91/1 13 [P.T.O.  
 (c) Consider the following definition of class Member, write a method in python to write the content in a pickled file 
member.dat. 3  
  class Member:  
   def_init_(self,Mno,N):  
    self.Memno=Mno  
    self.Name=N  
     def Show(self):  
    Display(self.Memno,“#”,self.Name)  
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Section – C 
(For all Candidates) 

5. (a) Observe the following table carefully and write the names of the most appropriate columns, which can be 
considered as (i) candidate keys and (ii) primary key. 2  
Id  Product   Qty  Price  Transaction Date  
101  Plastic Folder 12"  100  3400  2014-12-14  
104  Pen Stand Standard  200  4500  2015-01-31  
105  Stapler Medium  250  1200  2015-02-28  
109  Punching Machine Big  200  1400  2015-03-12  
103  Stapler Mini   100  1500  2015-02-02  
 (b) Consider the following DEPT and WORKER tables. Write SQL queries for (i) to (iv) and find outputs for SQL 
queries (v) to (viii) : 6  
Table : DEPT 
DCODE   DEPARTMENT   CITY 
D01   MEDIA    DELHI 
D02   MARKETING   DELHI 
D03   INFRASTRUCTURE  MUMBAI 
D05   FINANCE   KOLKATA 
D04   HUMAN RESOURCE  MUMBAI 
Table : WORKER  
WNO  NAME   DOJ   DOB   GENDER  DCODE  
1001  George K  2013-09-02  1991-09-01  MALE   D01  
1002  Ryma Sen  2012-12-11  1990-12-15  FEMALE  D03  
1003  Mohitesh  2013-02-03  1987-09-04  MALE   D05  
1007  Anil Jha  2014-01-17  1984-10-19  MALE   D04  
1004  Manila Sahai  2012-12-09  1986-11-14  FEMALE  D01  
1005  R SAHAY  2013-11-18  1987-03-31 MALE   D02  
1006  Jaya Priya  2014-06-09  1985-06-23  FEMALE  D05  
  Note : DOJ refers to date of joining and DOB refers to date of Birth of workers.  
  (i) To display Wno, Name, Gender from the table WORKER in descending order of Wno.   (ii) To display the Name of 
all the FEMALE workers from the table WORKER.   (iii) To display the Wno and Name of those workers from the table 
WORKER who are born between ‘1987-01-01’ and ‘1991-12-01’.   (iv) To count and display MALE workers who have 
joined after ‘1986-01-01’.   (v) SELECT COUNT(*), DCODE FROM WORKER    GROUP BY DCODE HAVING COUNT(*)>1;  
  (vi) SELECT DISTINCT DEPARTMENT FROM DEPT;  
  (vii) SELECT NAME, DEPARTMENT, CITY FROM WORKER W,DEPT D WHERE W.DCODE=D.DCODE AND WNO<1003;  
  (viii) SELECT MAX(DOJ), MIN(DOB) FROM WORKER;  
 
6. (a) Verify the following using Boolean Laws. 2    
X + Y' = X.Y+X.Y'+X'.Y'   
(b) Draw the Logic Circuit for the following Boolean Expression : 2    
(U + V').W' + Z   
(c) Derive a Canonical SOP expression for a Boolean function F, represented by the following truth table : 1  
A  B  C  F(A,B,C)  
0  0  0  1  
0  0  1  0  
0  1  0  0  
0  1  1  1  
1  0  0  1  
1  0  1  0  
1  1  0  0  
1  1  1  1  
(d) Reduce the following Boolean Expression to its simplest form using K-Map : 3  
  F(X,Y,Z,W) = Σ ΣΣ Σ(0,1,6,8,9,10,11,12,15)  
 7. (a) Illustrate the layout for connecting 5 computers in a Bus and a Star topology of Networks.  1  
 (b) What is a spam mail ? 1  
 (c) Differentiate between ftp and http. 1  
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 (d) Out of the following, which is the fastest (i) wired and (ii) wireless medium of communication ? Infrared, Coaxial 
Cable, Ethernet Cable, Microwave, Optical Fiber 1  
 (e) What is Worm ? How is it removed ? 1  
 (f) Out of the following, which all comes under cyber crime ? 1  
  (i) Stealing away a brand new computer from a showroom.  
  (ii) Getting in someone’s social networking a/c without his consent and posting pictures on his behalf to harass him.  
  (iii) Secretly copying files from server of a call center and selling it to the other organization.  
  (iv) Viewing sites on a internet browser.  
 (g) Perfect Edu Services Ltd. is an educational organization. It is planning to setup its India campus at Chennai with 
its head office at Delhi. The Chennai campus has 4 main buildings – ADMIN, ENGINEERING, BUSINESS and MEDIA.  
You as a network expert have to suggest the best network related solutions for their problems raised in (i) to (iv), 
keeping in mind the distances between the buildings and other given parameters.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
Shortest distances between various buildings :  
ADMIN to ENGINEERING   55 m  
ADMIN to BUSINESS    90 m  
ADMIN to MEDIA    50 m  
ENGINEERING to BUSINESS   55 m  
ENGINEERING to MEDIA   50 m  
BUSINESS to MEDIA    45 m  
DELHI Head Office to CHENNAI Campus  2175 km  
Number of Computers installed at various buildings are as follows :  
ADMIN    110  
ENGINEERING   75  
BUSINESS   40  
MEDIA    12  
DELHI Head Office  20  
(i) Suggest the most appropriate location of the server inside the CHENNAI campus (out of the 4 buildings), to get the 
best connectivity for maximum no. of computers. Justify your answer. 1  
(ii) Suggest and draw the cable layout to efficiently connect various buildings within the CHENNAI campus for 
connecting the computers. 1  
(iii) Which hardware device will you suggest to be procured by the company to be installed to protect and control 
the internet uses within the campus ? 1  
(iv) Which of the following will you suggest to establish the online face-to-face communication between the people 
in the Admin Office of CHENNAI campus and DELHI Head Office ? 1  
   (a) Cable TV  
   (b) Email  
   (c) Video Conferencing  
   (d) Text Chat 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

http://www.lscf.co.in/


www.lscf.co.in  9898187250 Page 136 
 

A commerce College With a Difference 

Degree + Knowledge + Skill + Job + Values 

A commerce College With a Difference 

Degree + Knowledge + Skill + Job + Values 

 
  

http://www.lscf.co.in/


www.lscf.co.in  9898187250 Page 137 
 

12th CBSE- COMPUTER SCIENCE | PAPERSET-3 
THE MARKS ARE MENTIONED ON EACH QUESTION 

ALL QUESTIONS ARE COMPULSORY 
1. (a) What is the difference between actual and formal parameter ? Give a suitable example to illustrate using a C++ 
code.  
(b) Observe the following C++ code and write the name(s) of the header fiIe(s)' which will be essentially required to 
run it in a C++ compiler :  
void main ( ) 
{ 
char Text, [20] , C; 
cin>>Text;  
C=tolower (Text [0] ) ;  
Cout<<C<<" ie the first char of " <<Text<<end1; 
} 
(c) Rewrite the following C++ code after removing all the syntax error(s;, if present in the code. Make sure that you 
underline eaih conection done by'you in the code. 
Important Note :  
- Assume that all the required header files are already included, which are essential to run this code.  
- The corrections made by you do not change the logic ofthe program.  
typedef char [50] STRTNG;  
void main ( ) 
{ 
City STRING;  
gets (City) ;  
cout<<City [0] <<, \ t<<Cit.y [2] ;  
cout<<Citsy<<endl ine ; 
} 
(d) obtain the output from the following c++ program as expected to appear on the screen after its execution. 
knponant Note :  
- All the desired header files are already included in the code, which are required to run the code.  
void main ( ) 
{ 
Char *Stri.n9=,,SARGAM,, ;  
int. *ptr, A[]={1,5,7,9} ;  
Ptr=A;  
cout << * ptrs<<String<<end1 ;  
String++;  
Ptr+=3;  
cout<< * Ptr<< String<<end1 , 
} 
(e) Obtain the output of the following C++ program, which will appear on the screen after its execution.  
Important Note : 
- All the desired header files are already included in the code, which are required to run the code.  
Class Player 
{ 
int Score, Level ;  
char Game; 
public : Player (char GGame='A' )  
{score=o; Level=1; Game=GGame; }  
void Start (int SC) ;  
void Next O ;  
void Disp () 
} 
cout<<Game<< " @" <<Leve1<<end1,'  
cout<<Score<<endI ;  
};  
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void main ( )  
} 
Player P,Q ('B') ;  
P.Disp ();  
Q. Start (75) ;  
Q. Next () ;  
P. StarL (120) ,  
Q.Disp();  
P.Disp ();  
} 
void Player: Next () 
{ 
Game: (Game== ‘A’ ) ? ‘B’ : ‘A’ ; 
} 
void Player: Start (int SC)  
{ Score+=SC;  
If (score >= 100 )  
Level=3;  
else if (Score>=50 )  
Level=2; el se Level=1; 
} 
(f) Read the following C++ code carefully and find out, which out of the given options (i) to (iv) are the expected 
correct output(s) of it. Also, write the madmum and minimum value that can be assigned to the variable Start used 
in the code: 
void main () 
 int Guess [4]={200,150,20 ,250;  
int Start=random (2 ) +2;  
for ( int C=Start ;C<4 ;C++ )  
cout<<Guess [C] <<" #'; 
} 
(i) 200#150#   (ii) 150#20#  (iii) 150#20#250#  (iv) 20#250# 
(a) Write 4 characteristics of a constructor function used in a class.  
(b) Answer the questions (i) and (ii) after going through the following class :  
class Health  
{i  
int PId, DId;  
public:  
HeaIth (int PPId) ;    // Function 1 
Health () ;     // Function 2 
Health (Health &H);    // Function 3 
void Entry ( ) ;     // Function 4 
void Display () ;    // Function 5 
}; 
void main ( )  
{ 
Health H (20) ;     //statement 1 
(i) Which of the function out of Function 1,2,3, 4 or 5 will get executed when the Statement I is executed in the 
above code ?  
(ii) Write a stat€ment to declare a new object G with reference to akeady existing object H using Function 3.  
(c) Define a class CABS in C++ with the following specification: 4  
Data Members .  
CNo - to store Cab No  
Type - to store a character 'A', 'B' or'C' as City Type 
PKM - to store per Kilo Meter charges .  
Dist - to store Distance travelled (in KM)  
Member Functions . 
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A constructor function to initialize Type as 'A' and CNo as '1 I 1 I '  
A function to assign PKM as per the following table: 

 
A function RegisterQ to allow administrator to enter the values for CNo and Type. Also, this function should call 
Charges () to assign PKM Charges.  
A function ShowCab to allow user to enter the value of Distance and display CNo, Type, PKM, PKM*Distance (as 
Amount) on screen  
(d) Consider the following C++ code and answer the questions from (i) to (iv):  
Class Campus 
{  
long Id;  
char City[20];  
protected:  
char Country [2O] ; 
puplic :  
Campus () ;  
void Register () ;  
void Display () ;  
};  
class Dept : private campus  
{  
Iong DCode [10] ;  
char HOD [20] ;  
protectsed :  
double Budgets ;  
public:  
Dept () ;  
void Enter () ;  
void Show () ;  
};  
class Applicant: public Dept  
{  
long RegNo;  
char Name [20] ;  
public: Applicant () ; void Enroll () ; void View () ; 
(i) Which type of Inheritance is shown in the above example ?  
(ii) Write the ruunes of those member functions, which are directly accessed from the objects of class Applicant. 
(iii)Write the names of those data manbers, which can be directly accessible from the member functions of class 
Applicant. 
(iv) Is it possible to dircctly call function Display( ) of class University from an object of class Dept ? (Answer as Yes or 
No).  
(a) Write code for a function oddEven (int s [] , int. N) in C++, to add 5 in all the odd values and 10 in all the even 
values of the array S. 
Example: If the original content of the array S is  
50 11 19 24 28 
The modified content will be : 
60  16  24  34  38  
(b) An array T[25][20] is stored along the row in the memory with each element requiring 2 bytes of storage. If the 
base address of array T is 42000, find out the location of T[10][15]. Also, find the total number of elements prcsent in 
this anay. 3 
(c) Write a user-defined function sumLast3 (int A [] [4] , int N, int M) in C++ to find and display the sum of all the 
values, which are ending with 3 (i.e., units place is 3). For example if the content of aray is : 

 33 13 92 

99 3 12 
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The output should be49. 
 
(d) Evaluate the following postfix expression. Show the status of stack after execution of each operation separately : 
F, T, NOT, AND, F, OR, T, AND  
(e) Write a function POPBOOK( ) in C++ to perform delete operation from a Dynamic Stack, which contains Bno and 
Title. Consider the following definition of NODE, while writing your C++ code.  
StructNODE 
{ 
int Bno,  
char Title [20] ;  
NODE *Link; 
}; 
4. (a) Fill in the blanks marked as Statement I and Statement 2, in the program segment given below with 
appropriate functions for the required task.       1 
class Medical 
{ 
int RNo,.    //Representat ive Code  
char Name [20] ,   // Representat ive Name  
char Mobile [12];   //Aepresentat ive Mobile  
public:  
void Input. ( ) ;    //Function to enter all details  
void Show () ;    //Function to display all details  
int RRno () {return Rfo; }  
void ChangeMobile ()   //Function to change Mobile  
{ 
cout<< “Changed Mobile: “ ;  
gets (Mobile ) ; 
} 
};  
void RepUpdate () 
{ 
fstream F;  
F . open ( "REP . DAT" , ios : : binary I ios : : in I ios : : out ); 
int Change=0;  
int URno;  
cout<<"Rno (Rep No-to update Mobile) : " ;  
cr-n>>uRno;  
Medical M;  
while (lChange && F.read( (char*)&M, sizeof (M) ) )  
{ 
if (M. Rrno ( ) ==URno)  
} 
//Statement 1:To call tshe function to change Mobile No. 
  ____________________________ ; 
//statement 2:To reposition file pointer to re-write 
//the updated object back in the file 
  ____________________________ ; 
F.write ( (char*)&M, sizeof (M) ) ;  
Change++; 
} 
} 
if (Change)  
cout<<"Mobile Changed for Rep "<<URno<<endl;  
else  
cout.<<"Rep not in t,he Medical"<<endI ;  
F. close O ; 
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} 
(b) Write a function EUCount ( ) in C++, which should read each character of a text file IMP.TXT, should count and 
display the occurrence of alphabets E and U (including small cases e and u too). 2  
Example :  
If the file content is as follows:  
Updated information is simplified by official websites. 
The EUCount( ) function should display the output as  
E:4  
U:1 7  
(c) Assuming the class GAMES as declared below, write a functions in C++ to read the objects of GAMES from binary  
file GAMES.DAT and display those details of those GAMES, which are meant for children of AgeRange ,.8 ro 13". 3 
Class GAMES 
{ 
int GameCode;  
char cameName [10] ;  
char AgeRange;  
public :  
void Enter ( ) 
{ 
cin>>GameCode;  
gets (GameName ) ;  
gets (AgeRange ) , 
} 
 void Display () 
cout <<Gamecode<<,, : ,, <<GameName<<end1 ;  
cout<<AgeRange<<endI ; 
} 
char* AgeR () {return AgeRange } ; 
} ; 
5. (a) Explain the concept of Union between two tables, with the help of appropriate example. 

NOTE: 
Answer the questions (b) and (c) on the basis of the following tables STORE and ITEM 

Table: STORE 
SNo   SName     Area 
S01  ABC Computronics   GKII 
S02   All lnfotech Media   CP 
S03   Tech Shoppe    Nehru Place 
S04   Geeks Tecno Soft   Nehru Place 
S05   Hitech Tech Store   CP 

6. 
Table:ITEM 

INo   IName   Price   SNo 
T01   Mother Board  12000   S01  
T02   Hard Disk  5000   S01 
T03   Kevboard  500   S02  
T04  Mouse   300   S01 
T05   Mother Board  13000  S02 
T06   Key Board  400   S03 
T07   LCD   6000   S04 
T08   LCD   5500   S05 
T09   Mouse   350   S05 
T10   Hard Disk  4500   S03  

(b) Write the SQL queries (1 to 4)  
(1) To display IName and Price of all the Items in ascending order of their Price.  
(2) To display SNo and SName of all Stores located in CP  
(3) To display Minimum and Maximum Price of each IName from the tabie Item.  
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(4) To display lName, Price of all items and their respective SName where they are available. (c) Write the ouput of 
the following SQL commands (1 to 4) :  
(1) SELECT DISTINCT INAME FROM ITEM WHERE PRICE >= 5000;  
(2) SELECT AREA, COUNT(*) FROM STORE GROUP BY AREA;  
(3) SELECT COUNT(DISTINCT AREA) FROM STORE;  
(4) SELECT INAME, PRICE *O.O5 DISCOUNT FROM ITEM WHERE sNo IN ('S02" ,S03'); 
(a) Name the law shown below and verify it using a truthtable.  
A+B. C= (A+B) . (A+c)  
(b) Obtain the Boolean Expression for the logic circuit shown below : 2 

 
(c) write the sum of Product form of the function F(P, Q, R) for the following truth table representation of F : 

 
(d) obtain the minimal form for the following Boolean expression using Kamaugh's Map.  
F (A, B, C, D) = ∑ (1, 4, 5, 9, 11, 12, 13, 15) 
7. (a) Write one characteristics each for 2G and 3G Mobile Technologies.  
(b) What is the difference between Video Conferencing and Chat ?  
(c) Expand the following :   
GPRS 
CDMA  
(d) Which type of nerwork (out of LAN,PAN and MAN) is formed, when you connect two mobiles using Bluetooth to 
transfer a picture file.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(e)Trine Tech Corporation (TTC) is a professional consultancy company. The company is planning to set up their new 
offices in India with its -hub at Hyderabad. As a network adviser, you have to understand their requirement and 
suggest them the best available solutions. Their queries are menti;ned as (i) to (iv) below. 
Physical Locations of the blocks of TTC 
(i) what will the mosr appropriate block, where TTC should plan to instafl their server ?  

(ii) Draw a block to block cabre layout to connect ar the buildings in the most appropriate manner for efficient 
communication.  
(iii) what will be the best possibre connectiviry out of the forowing, you will suggest to connect the new setup of 
offices in Bangal0re with its London based office.  
Satellite Link  
Infrared  
Ethemet Cable  
(iv) which of the fo owing device w r be suggested by you to connect each computer in each of the buildings ? o 
Switch    Modem      Gateway  

(f) Write names of any two popular Open Source Software, which are used as operating system.  
(g) Write any two important characteristics of Cloud Computing.  
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12th CBSE- COMPUTER SCIENCE | PAPERSET-4 
THE MARKS ARE MENTIONED ON EACH QUESTION 

ALL QUESTIONS ARE COMPULSORY 

1. (a) Give the difference between the type casting and automatic type conversion. Also, give a suitable C++ code to 
illustrate both. 2 
(b) Which C++ header file are essentially required to be included to run/execute the following C++ source code 
(Note: Do notinclude any header file, which are not required: 1 
void main () 
{ 
char TEXT [] = “SomeThing”; 
cout<<”Remaining SMS Chars : “<<]60 – strlen (TEXT) <<end]; 
} 
(c) Rewrite the following program for removing the syntacticalerrors (if any. Underline each correction. 2 
# include <iostream.h> 
Class Item 
{ 
longIId, Qty; 
public: 
void Purchase(cin>>IId>Qty;) 
void Sale () 
{ 
Cout<<setw (5) <<IId<<” Old: “<<Oty<<endl; 
Cout<<”New:” <<--Qty<<endl; 
} 
}; 
void main () 
{ 
Item I; 
Purchase () ; 
I. Sale (); 
I. Sale (); 
} 
(d)Find the output of the following program: 3 
#include <iostream.h> 
Class METRO 
{ 
intMno, TripNo, PassengerCount; 
public: 
METRO(intTmno=1){Mno= Tmno;TripNo=0; PassengerCount= 0;} 
void Trip (int  PC= 20) {TripNo++; PassengerCount+=PC;} 
voidStatusShow () {cout<<Mno<<”:”<<TripNo<<”:”<<PassengerCout<<endl;} 
}; 
Void main () 
{ 
METRO M (5), T; 
M.Trip () ; 
T.Trip (50) ; 
M.StatusShow () ; 
M. Trip (30); 
T.StatusShow () ; 
M. StatusShow (); 
} 
(e) Find the output of the following program: 2 
#include <iostream.h> 
#include <ctype.h> 
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Typedef char Str80 [80] ; 
void main () 
{ 
Char *Notes; 
Str80 Str = “vR2GooD”; 
Int L= 6; 
Notes= Str; 
While (L> =3) 
{ 
Str [L] = (isupper (Str [L] ?tolower (Str [L]): toupper (Str [L] ) ); 
cout<<Notes<<endl; 
L--; 
Notes++; 
} 
} 
(f) Observe the following program & find out, which output out of (i) to (iv) will not be expected from the program ? 
What will bethe minimum and the minimum value signed to the variableChance? 2 
# include <iostream.h> 
# include <stblib.h> 
void main () 
{ 
Randomize (); 
IntArr [] = {9, 6}, N; 
Int chance = random (2) + 10; 
For (int C=0 ; C<2; C++) 
{ 
N= random (2); 
cout<<Arr [N] + Chance<< “#” 
} 
} 
(i) 9 # 6 #   (ii) 19 # 17 #   (iii) 19 # 16 #   (iv) 20 # 16 # 
2. (a) What is the difference between the member in private Viability mode and the members in protected visibility 
mode inside class? Also give a suitable C++ code to illustrate health. 2 
(b)Answer the questions (i) and (ii) after going through the following class: 2 
class Travel 
{ 
intPlaceCode; char Place [20]; float Charges; 
Public: 
Travel ()   //Function 1 
{ 
PlaceCode= 1; Strcpy (Place, “DELHI”); Charges= 1000; 
}  
Void TravelPlan (Float C) //Function 2 
{ 
cout<<PlaceCode<<”:”<<Place<<”:”<<Charges<<endl; 
} 
Travel ()   //Function 3  
{ 
Cout<<”Travel Plan Cancelled”<<endl; 
} 
Travel (int PC, char P [], float C) //Function 4 
{ 
PlaceCode=PC; strcpy (Place, P); Charges= C; 
} 
}; 
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(i) To Object Oriented Programming, what are Function 1 and Function 4 combined together referred as? 
(ii) In Object Oriented programming which concept is illustrated by Function 3? When is this function called/ 
invoked? 
 
(c) Define a class RESTRA In C++ with allowing description. 4 
Private Member 

 Food Code of type int 

 Food of type string 

 FType of type string 

 Sticker of type string 

 A member function Get Stickers() to assign the followingvalues for Sticker as per the given FType: 

FType Sticker 

Vegetarian GREEN 

Contains Egg YELLOW 

Non-Vegetarian RED 

Private Member 

 A Function GetFood() to allow user to enter values for FoodCode, Food, FType and call function GetSticker() to 
assign Sticker. 

 A Function ShowFood() to allow user to view the content of all the data members. 
 
(d) Answer the questions (i) to (iv) based on the following: 4 
Class COMPANY 
{ 
char Location [20] ; 
doubleBugdet, Income; 
protected: 
void Accounts (); 
public: 
COMPANY (); 
void Register (); 
void Show (); 
}; 
Class FACTORY: public COMPANY 
{ 
char Location [20]; 
int Workers; 
protected: 
double Salary; 
void Computer (); 
public: 
FACTORY (); 
void Enter (); 
void Show (); 
}; 
class SHOP : private COMPANY 
{ 
char Location [20]; 
float Area; 
double Sale; 
public: 
SHOP (); 
void Input (); 
void Output (); 
}; 
(i) Name the type of inheritance illustrated in the above C++ code. 
(ii) Write the name of data members, which are accessible from member function of class SHOP. 
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(iii) Write the names of all the member functions, which are accessible from objects belonging to class FACTORY. 
(iv)Write the names of all the members, which are accessible from objects of class SHOP. 
3. (a) Write a function SWAP2BEST (int ARR[], int Size) in C++ to modify the content of the array in such a way that 
the elements, which are multiples of 10 swap with the value present in the very next position in the array. 3 
For example: 
If the content of array ARR is 
90, 56, 45, 20, 34, 54 
The content of array ARR should become 
56, 90, 45, 34, 20, 54 
 
(b) An array T[20][10] is stored in the memory along the column with each of the elements occupying 2 bytes. Find 
out the memory location of T[10][5], if the element T[2][9] in stone at the location 7600. 
 
(c) Write a function in C++ perform Insert operation in a static circular Queue containing Book's information 
(represented with the help of an array of structure BOOK). 
Struct BOOK  
{ 
longAccno;  //Book Accession Number 
char Title [20];  // Book Title 
}; 
 
(d) Write a function ALTERNATE (int A [] [3], int N, int M) in C++ to display all alternate elements from two-
dimensional array A (starting from A [0] [0]). 
For example: 
If the array is containing 
23 54 76 
37 19 28 
62 13 19 
The output will  
23 76 19 62 19 
(e) Evaluate the following POSTFIX notation. Show status of Stack after every step of evaluation file (i.e. after each 
operator). 4 
True, False, NOT, And, False, True, OR, AND 
4. (a) observe the program segment given below carefully and the questions that follow: 
class Stock 
{ 
intIno, Qty; char Item [20]; 
public 
void Enter () {cin>>Ino; gets (Item); cin>>Qty;} 
void Issue(int Q) {Qty+=Q;} 
void Purchase (int Q) {Qty -=Q;} 
intGetIno () {return Ino;} 
}; 
voidPurchaseItem (intPino, intPOty) 
{ 
Fstream File; 
File.open (“STOCK. DAT”, ios: : binary │ios : : in│ios : :out); 
Stock S; 
Int Success= 0; 
While (Success==0 &&File.read( (char*)&S, sizeof (S))) 
{ 
 if (Pino==S.GetIno()) 
 { 
 S.Purchase (PQty); 
 ___________________  //Statement 1 
 ___________________  //Statement 2 
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 Success ++; 
 } 
} 
if (Success==1) 
cout<<”Purchase Updated”<<endl; 
else 
cout<<”Wrong Item No”<<endl: 
File.close(); 
} 
(i) Write statement to position the file pointer to the appropriate place, that the data updation is done for the 
Required item. 
(ii) Write statement 2 to perform the write operation so that the updation is done in the binary file. 
 
(b) Write a function in C++ to read the content of a text file "DELHI.TXT”and display all the lines on screen, which aru 
either starting with a ‘D’ or starting with ‘M’. 
(c) Write a function in C++ to search for the details Phone No and  Calls) of those Phones, which have more than 800 
calls from binary file “phones.dat". Assuming that this binary file contains records/objects of class Phone, which is 
defined below. 
classPhone 
{ 
Char phoneno [10]; int Calls; 
public; 
 void Get () {gets (Phoneno); cin>>Calls;} 
 void Billing () {cout<<Phoneno<<”#”<<Calls<<endl;} 
 intGetcalls () {return Calls;} 
}; 
 
Q5. (a) Give a suitable example of table with sample data and illustrate Primary at Alternate Keys in it. 
Consider the following table CARDEN and CUSTOMER and answer () and () parts of this questions: 
 

Table: CARDEN 

Code Car Name Make Color Capacity Charges 

501 A-Star Suzuki RED 3 14 

503 Indigo Tata SILVER 3 12 

502 Innova Toyota WHITE 7 15 

509 SX4 Suzuki SILVER 4 14 

510 C Class Mercedes RED 4 35 

 
Table: CUSTOMER 

Code C. Name CCode 

1001 HemantSahu 501 

1002 Raj Lal 509 

1003 Feroza Shah 503 

1004 Ketan Dhal 502 

(b) Write SQL commands for the following statements: 
i. To display the name of all the silver coloured Cars. 

ii. To display name of car, make and capacity of cars indescending order of their seating capacity 
iii. To display the highest charges at which a vehicle can behired from CAREEM. 
iv. To display the customer and the corresponding nameof the cars hired by tm. 

 
(c) Give the output of the following SQL queries: 

i. SELECT COUNT (DISTINCT Make) FROM CARDEN; 
ii. SELECT MAX (Charges), MIN(Charges) FROM CARDEN; 

iii. SELECT COUNT(*), Make FROM CARDEN; 
iv. SELECT Car Name FROM CARDEN WHERE Capacity=4; 
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6. (a) Verily the following using truth table 
(i) X+1=1  (ii) X+1=1 

(b) Write the equivalent Boolean expression for the following Logic Circuit: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(c) Write the SOP form of a Boolean function F, which represented in a truth table as follows : 

X Y Z F 

0 0 0 1 

0 0 1 0 

0 1 0 1 

0 1 1 0 

1 0 0 1 

1 0 1 0 

1 1 0 0 

1 1 1 1 

(d) Reduce the following Boolean Expression using K-Map: 
F (A, B, C, D) = ∑ (2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 10, 11) 
7. (a) What out of the following, will you to have an audio-visual chat with un expert sitting in faraway place to fix-up 
a technical issue? 
(i) VoIP   (ii) email  (iii) FTP  
(b) Name one server side scripting Language and one client side scripting language 
Which out of the following comes under Cyber Crime? 
(i) Operating someone’s Internet banking account, without his knowledge. 
(ii) Stealing a keyboard from someone’s computer. 
(iii) Working on someone’s computer with his/her permission. 
(c) Write an advantages Bus Topology of network. Also, illustrate how 4 computers can be connected with each 
other using star topology of network. 
(e) Workalot Consultants are setting up a secured network for their office campus at Gurgaon for their day-to-day 
office and web-based activities. They are planning to have connectivity between 3 buildings and the head office is 
situated in Mumbai. Answer the questions (i) to (iv) after going through the building positions in the campus and 
other details, which are given below: 
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(i) Suggest the most suitable place in the building to house the server of this organisation. Also give a reason to  
justifyyour suggested location. 
(ii) Suggest the placement of the following device with justification: 
(1) Switch     (2) Repeater 
(iii) Suggest a cable layout of connections between the buildings inside the campus. 
(iv) The organization is planning to provide a high speed link with the head office situated in MUMBAL using a weird  
Connection. Which of the following cable will be most suitable for this job? 
(1) Optical Fibre     (2) Co-axial Cable    (3) Ethernet Cable 
Given one suitable example of each URL and Domain Name. 
Name two Proprietary soft wares along with their application. 
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12th CBSE- COMPUTER SCIENCE | PAPERSET-5 
THE MARKS ARE MENTIONED ON EACH QUESTION 

ALL QUESTIONS ARE COMPULSORY 

 
1. (a) What is the benefit of using fucntion prototype for a function? Give a suitable example to illustrate it using a 
C++ code. 
(b) Observe the following C++ code and write the name(S) of the header file(S), which will be essentially required to 
run it in a C++ compiler: 
void main ()  
{ 
Int Number; 
Cin>>Number; 
If (abs (Number) == Number); 
Cout<<”Positive”<<end1; 
} 
(c) Observe the following C++ code carefully and rewrite the same after removing all the syntax eror(s) present in the 
code. Ensure that you underline each correction in the code: 
Imporatant Note: 
 All the desired header files are already included, which are required to run the code. 
 Correction should not change the logic of the program. 
#define Convert (P, Q) P + 2*Q; 
void main () 
{ 
Float A, B Result; 
cin>>A>>B; 
Result=Convert[A,B]; 
cout<<”Output:”<<Result<<endline; 
} 
(d) Observe the following C++ code carefully and obtain the output, which will appear on the screen aftter execution 
of it. 
Imporatant Note: 
 All the desired header files are already included, which are required to run the code. 
void main () 
{ 
Char *String=”SHAKTI”; 
Int *Point, Value[] = {10, 15, 70, 19}; 
cout<<*Point<<String<<end1; 
String++; 
Point++; 
cout<<*Point<<String<<end1; 
} 
(e) Observe the following C++ code carefully and obtain the output, which will appear on the screen after execution 
of it. 
#include<iostream.h> 
class Aroundus 
{ 
int Place, Humidity, Temp; 
public: 
Aroundus (int P=2) {Place=P; Humidity=60; Temp=20} 
void Hot (int T) {Temp+=T;} 
void Humid (int H) {Humidity+=H;} 
void JustSee () 
{ 
Cout<<Place<<”:”<<”%”<<end1; 
} 
}; 
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void  main ( ) 
{ 
Aroundus A, B {5}; 
A. Hot (10); 
A. JustSee (); 
B. Humid (15); 
B. Hot (2); 
B. JustSee (); 
A. Humid (5); 
A. JustSee (); 
} 
(f) Based on the following C++ code, find out the expected correct output nfrom the options (i) to (iv). Also, find out 
the minimum and the maximum value that can be assigned to the variable Trick used in the code at the time when 
value of Count is 3: 
{ 
char Status [] [10] = {“EXCEL”, “GOOD”, “OK”}; 
int Turn= 10, Trick; 
for (int Count=1; Count< 4; Count ++) 
{ 
Trick = random {Count} 
Cout<<Turn<<Trick<<Status [Trick]<<”#”; 
} 
} 
(i) 10EXCEL#10EXCEL#80K# 
(ii) 10EXCEL#80K#9GOOD# 
(iii) 10EXCEL#9GOOD#10EXCEL# 
(iv) 10EXCEL#10GOOD#80K# 
 
2. (a) Write any two differences between constructor and destructor. Write the function headers for constructor and 
destructor of a class member. 
(b) Answer the questions (i) and (ii) after going through the following class: 
class Motor 
{ 
 intMotorNo, Track; 
 public: 
 Motor ();  //Function 1 
 Motor (int MN);  //Function 2 
 Motor (Motor  &M) //Function 3 
 void Allocate ();  // Function 4 
 void Move ();  //Function 5 
}; 
void main () 
{ 
 Motor M; 
 : 
 : 
} 
(i) Out of the following which of the option is correct for calling function 2? 
 Option 1 - Motor N (M); 
 Option 2 – Motor P (10);   
(ii) Name the faeture of Object Oriented Programming, which is illustrated by function 1, Fucntion 2 and Fcuntion 3 
combined together. 
(c) Define a class Tourist in C++ with the following specification: 
Data Members: 

 Carno- to store Bus no 

 Origin- to store Place name 
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 Destination- to store Place name 

 Type- to store Car Type such as “E” for Economy 

 Distance- to store the Distance in Kilometres 

 Charge- to store the Car fare 
Member Functions: 

 A Constructor function to intialize Type as “E” and Freight as 250 

 A Function CalcCharge () to calculate Fare as per the following criteria: 
 Type  Charge 
   “E”  16*Distance 
   “A”  22*Distance 
   “L”  30*Distance 

 A fucntion Enter() to allow user to enter values for Carno, Origin, Destination, Type and Distance. Also, this function 
should call CalcCharge() to calculate Fare. 

 A function Show() to display the content of all the data members on screen. 
(d) Consider the following C++ code and answer the questions from (i) to (iv): 
class Student 
{ 
 int Class, Rno; 
 char Section; 
protected : 
 char SName[20]; 
public : 
 Student () ; 
 void Stentry (); 
 void Stdisplay () ; 
}; 
Class Score: private student 
{ 
 float Marks [5]; 
protected: 
 char Grade[5]; 
Public: 
 Score (); 
 void Sentry (); 
 void Sdisplay (); 
}; 
Class Report : public score 
{ 
 float Total, Avg; 
public: 
 char OverallGrade, Remarks [20]; 
 Report (); 
 void Revaluate (); 
 void RPrint (); 
}; 
(i) which type of inheritance is shown in the above example? 
(ii) Write the names of those data members, which can be directly accessed from the objects of class Report. 
(iii) Write the names of those members, which can be directly accessed from the objects of class Report. 
(iv) Write the names of data members, which can be directly accessed from the Sentry () function of class Score: 
3. (a) Write the code for a function void Convert (int T() int Num) in C++, which re-positions all the elements of the 
array by shifting each of them one to one position before and by shifting the first element to the last position. 
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(b) An array P[5][10] is stored along the column in the memory with each element requiring 4 bytes of storage. If the 
base address of array P is 14000, Find out the location of P[8][5]. 
(c) Write a user-defined fucntion DispNTen (int L[] [4], int R, int C) in C++ to find and display all the numbers, which 
are not divisible by 10. 

 
 
 

The output should be 
17 12 19 
(d) Evaluate the following postfix expression. Show the status of stack after execution of each operation: 
60, 6, /, 5, 2, *, 5, -, + 
(e) Write a function QINSERT () in C++ to perform insert operation on a Linked Queue, which contains Client no and 
Client name. Consider the following definition of NODE in the code of QINSERT(). 
Struct NODE 
{ 
 Long int Cno;  //Client No 
 Char Cname [20]; // Client Name 
 NODE *Next; 
}; 
4. (a) Fill in the blanks marked as Statement 1 and 2, in the program segment given below with appropriate functions 
for the required task. 
class Customer 
{ 
 long  int CNo;  //Customer Number 
 char CName [20]; //Customer Name 
 char Email [30];  //Email of Customer 
public: 
 void Allocate ();  //Function to allocate a member 
 void Show ();  // Function to show customer data 
 void ModifyEmail () //Function to modify Email 
{ 

Cout<<”Enter Modified Email:”; 
Gets (Email); 

} 
long int GetCno () {return Cno;} 
}; 
void ChangeData () 
{ 

Fstream File; 
File.open (“CUST.DAT”, ios: : binary │ios : : in│ios : : out); 
 Int Change = 0, Location; 
 Long int Change CNo; 
 Cout<<”Cno –Whose email required to be modified: ” ; 
 cin>>ChangeCno; 
 Customer CU; 
 while (!Modify && File.read ( (char*) &CU. sizeof (CU) ) ) 
 { 
  If (CU.GetCno () == ChangeCno) 
  { 
   CU.ModifyEmail (); 
   Location=File.tellg () – sizeof (CU); 
 //Statement 1:To place file pointer to the required position 
  ______________________; 
 //Statement 2:To write the object CU on to the binary file 
  ______________________; 
  Change ++; 

20 17 30 

12 19 10 
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  } 
 } 
 If (Change) 
 cout<<”Email Modified …..”<<end1; 
else 
 cout<<”Customer not found….”…end1; 
File.Close (); 
} 
 
(b) Write a function CountHisHer () in C++ which reads the contents of a text file diary.txt and counts the words His 
and Her (not case sensitive). 
For example, if the file contains: 
Pinaky has gone to his friend’s house. His friend’s name is Ravya. Her house is 12km from here. 

The Function should display the output as  
Count for His : 2 
Count for Her : 1 
Assuming the class VINTAGE as declared below, write a function in C++ to read the objects of VINTAGE from Binary 
file VINTAGE.DAT and display those vintage vehicles, which are priced between 200000 and 250000. 
class VINTAGE 
{ 
 int VNO;  //Vehicle Number 
 char VDesc [10]; //Vehicle Description 
 float Price; 
public : 
 void GET() {cin>>VNO;gets (VDesc) ;cin>>Price;} 
 void VIEW () 
 { 
 cout<<VNO<<end1; 
 cout<<VDesc<<end1; 
 cout<<Price<<end1; 
 } 
 float ReturnPrice () {return Price;} 
}; 
 5. (a) Whats is the difference between degree and cardinality of a table? What is the degree and cardinality of the 
following table? 
 

NOTE: 
Write the SQL queries for (b) to (g) and write the outputs for the SQL queries mentioned shown in (h1) to (h4) parts 
on the basis of tables ITEMS and TRADERS. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Eno Name Salary 

101 John Fedrick 45000 

103 Raya Mazumdar 50600 

http://www.lscf.co.in/


www.lscf.co.in  9898187250 Page 157 
 

(b) To display the details of all the items in ascending order of item names: (i.e. INAME) 
(c) To display item name and price of all those items, whose price is in the range of 10000 and 22000 (both values 
inclusive). 
(d) To display the number of items, which are traded by each trader. The expected output of this query should be:  
T01 2 
T02 2 
T03 1 
(e) To display the price, item name and quantity (i.e. qty) of those items which have quantity more than 150. 
(f) To display the names of those traders, who are either from DELHI or from MUMBAI. 
(g) To display the names of the companies and the names fo the items in descending order of company names. 
(h) Obtain the outputs of the following SQL queries based on the data given in tables ITEMS and TRADERS above. 
 h1) SELECT MAX(PRICE), MIN(PRICE) FROM ITEMS; 
 h2) SELECT PRICE*QTY AMOUNT 
        FROM ITEMS WHERE CODE-1004; 
 h3) SELECT DISTINCT TCODE FROM ITEMS; 
 h4) SELECT INAME, TNAME 
        FROM ITEMS I, TRADERS T 
        WHERE I.TCODE=T, TCODE AND OTY<100; 
6. (a) Verify the following using Boolean Laws: 
 A+C=A+A’ . C+B . C 
(b) Obtain the Boolean Expression for the logic circuit shown below: 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BEST OF LUCK 
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